



Dear Fellow Employees:

Welcome to the City of Burleson! This handbook will serve as a starting point to answer many employment and conduct related questions. Don't hesitate to go to your Department Manager, Director, or the Human Resources department if you have additional questions.

There are many aspects of the manual that are important. The City's basic employment related policies and a separate City of Burleson safety manual are included here.

Ongoing updates to policies and employee related events can be found on the City's website at www.burlesontx.com/employeeforms.

If you have a city-issued email address, be sure to check it regularly for communications from Human Resources about benefits, policies, upcoming events, and other important notices. We look forward to working with you to maximize your employment with the City of Burleson.

Table of Contents
Human Resources Policy Manual
City of Burleson

Chapter 1:	Administration and General Information	page 6
1.1	Administration (11/01/16) (01/01/19)	
1.2	Department Policies (12/31/15)	
1.3	Amendments to This Policy	
1.4	Policy Distribution	
1.5	Personnel Records	
1.6	Fair Employment Practices	
1.7	Prohibition of Discrimination and Harassment (01/01/19) (10/01/2023)	
1.8	Expressing Breast Milk in the Workplace (11/01/16)	
Chapter 2:	New Employee Information	page 10
2.1	Application and Initial Employment	
2.2	Probationary Employment Period (3/01/10)	
2.3	Nepotism (05/13/19) (10/01/21)	
Chapter 3:	Federal, State, and Local Law Notices	page 12
3.1	Equal Opportunity Policy (11/01/16)	
3.2	Conditions of Employment	
3.3	Compliance with Regulations and Laws	
3.4	Public Information Policy	
3.5	Media Relations	
Chapter 4:	Standards of Conduct	page 16
4.1	Anti-Harassment Policy and Procedures (11/01/16) (01/01/19) (10/01/23)	
4.2	Replacement and Disposal of City Equipment (01/31/08)	
4.3	Solicitations	
4.4	Employee Conduct (01/01/13) (11/01/16)	
4.5	Social Media Policy Guidelines (10/01/11) (10/01/2023)	
4.6	Dress Code (01/01/13) (09/08/16)	
4.7	Uniform Policy (03/09/15)	
4.8	Conflict of Interest (01/01/13) (01/01/19) (05/13/19) (10/01/20)	
4.9	Political Activity	
4.10	Outside employment (01/01/13) (10/01/20)	
4.11	Possession of Weapons (12/31/15) (10/01/21)	
4.12	Workplace Violence	
4.13	Relations with City Council	
4.14	Employee Business Relationships	
4.15	Tobacco in the Workplace (03/12/12)	
4.16	Fitness for Duty (01/31/08)	
4.17	Animals / Pets in the Workplace (01/01/13)	
4.18	Workplace Relationships (01/01/19)	
4.19	Cell Device and Usage (10/01/20)	

Deleted: Use

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 5: Disciplinary Action, Appeal, Complaints and Grievance Procedures page 41

- 5.1 Discipline (01/01/19)
- 5.2 Employee Grievance Guideline (01/01/13)
- 5.3 Employee Grievance Procedure (01/01/13) [\(10/01/23\)](#)
- 5.4 Attendance at Grievance Meetings
- 5.5 Administrative Notes

Chapter 6: Vacation, Sick, Leave of Absences, and Other Absences from Work page 48

- 6.1 Holidays
(01/31/08)(07/01/10)(01/01/13)(10/1/14) (12/31/15)(11/1/16)(11/15/16)(02/28/18)
(03/28/18)(01/01/19)(10/01/20) [\(10/01/2023\)](#)
- 6.2 Vacation Leave (10/01/11)(01/01/13)(01/01/19)(04/05/21)(10/01/21)
- 6.3 Sick Leave
(10/01/11)(01/01/13)(12/31/15)(10/6/17)(01/01/19)(10/01/20)(04/05/21)(10/01/21) [\(10/01/2023\)](#)
- 6.4 Paid Parental Leave (04/01/21)
- 6.5 Compensatory Leave (01/01/19)(01/01/19)
- 6.6 Injury Leave
- 6.7 Military Leave (01/01/13)(02/28/18)(10/01/21)
- 6.8 Inclement Weather Policy (10/01/11)
- 6.9 Other Leave With Or Without Pay
(08/15/08)(11/1/16)(01/01/19)(10/01/21) [\(10/01/2023\)](#)
- 6.10 Absence Without Leave And Job Abandonment
- 6.11 Absence Control Policy (01/01/13)(04/01/2021)
- 6.12 Return from Leave (10/16/09)

Chapter 7: Performance Evaluations page 70

- 7.1 Purpose
- 7.2 Procedures, Method, and Forms
- 7.3 Rating Period (01/01/13)
- 7.4 Notice to Employee
- 7.5 Use of Evaluation Results (01/01/19)
- 7.6 Employee Coaching

Chapter 8: Transfers, Promotions, Training page 71

- 8.1 Promotions and Transfers (01/01/19)
- [8.2](#) Training and Development
- 8.3 [City Internship Policy \(10/01/2023\)](#)

Chapter 9: Compensation and Wage Administration page 73

- 9.1 Work Periods
(02/15/13) (12/19/14) (12/31/15) (11/1/16) (8/3/2022)
- 9.2 Hours of Work
- 9.3 Job Sharing (01/31/08)

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 2022

- 9.4 Compensation (10/01/11) (12/31/15) (01/01/19) (10/01/20) (10/01/21) (3/1/2022) (10/01/22)
- 9.5 Payment of Compensation Upon Employee’s Death (10/1/20)(10/01/21)
- 9.6 Compensation Plan Design
- 9.7 Temporary Assignments (10/01/18)
- 9.8 Temporary and Part-time Employees
- 9.9 Wage Upon Promotion or Demotion (01/31/08)(10/01/22)
- 9.10 Wage Upon Transfer
- 9.11 Maximum Base Wage
- 9.12 Additional Taxable Benefits (01/31/08)
- 9.13 Safety Leave Pay
- 9.14 Pay Periods (01/01/19)
- 9.15 Pay Methods (01/31/08)
- 9.16 Separation Pay (12/31/15) (01/01/19) (10/01/20)(04/01/21)(10/01/21)
- 9.17 Payroll Records (10/01/11)
- 9.18 Reporting Questions or Errors (08/15/08)
- 9.19 Use of City Vehicles – After Hours (01/01/13) (01/01/19)
- 9.20 Work Related Training (01/01/19)

Chapter 10: Travel **page 86**

- 10.1 Purpose and Penalty
- 10.2 Responsibility for Administration of this Policy
- 10.3 Expenses and Documentation
- 10.4 Allowable Travel Expenses
- 10.5 Non-allowable Travel Expenses
- 10.6 Transportation
- 10.7 Extraordinary Expenses
- 10.8 Fraudulent Claims
- 10.9 Requests for Travel Advances
- 10.10 Filing Expense Reports

Chapter 11: Employment Separation, Reduction in Force and Rehire/Reinstatement **page 95**

- 11.1 Separation Requirements (04/01/21)(10/01/21)
- 11.2 Reduction In Force (Layoffs) (01/01/19)
- 11.3 Rehire/Reinstatement (01/15/12) (01/01/19)

Chapter 12: Employee Benefits **page 97**

- 12.1 Benefits-Regular Employees (excluding retirement) (8/2013) (01/01/19) (10/01/20)
- 12.2 Tuition Reimbursement (10/01/14)(08/01/17)(10/01/21)
- 12.3 Retirement Benefits (01/31/08)(01/01/12)(02/04/13)(06/06/16)(10/01/21)

Chapter 13: Fraud **page 105**

- 13.1 Purpose
- 13.2 Scope
- 13.3 Definitions
- 13.4 Policy

Deleted: ,

Deleted: Roles and Responsibilities

Deleted: 2022

- [13.5 Roles and Responsibilities](#)
- [13.6 Investigation Committee](#)
- [13.7 Investigation Types](#)
- [13.8 Investigation Procedures](#)

Deleted: Investigation Types
Investigation Procedures

- Chapter 14: Work Related Injury or Illness** **page 112**
- [14.1 Injury on the Job \(01/31/08\)\(01/01/13\)\(11/01/16\)\(01/01/19\)](#)
- [14.2 Wages During Work Related Injury Leave \(01/01/13\)\(10/01/23\)](#)
- [14.3 Life Threatening Illness and Injury](#)

- Deleted:**
- Deleted:** (01/31/08) (01/01/13) (11/1/16)
- Formatted:** Font: Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Bold
- Deleted:** (01/01/19)
- Formatted:** Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Bold
- Formatted:** Font: Not Bold
- Formatted:** Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: +Body (Calibri), 11 pt
- Formatted:** Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

- Chapter 15:** Drug Free Workplace (01/01/13) (10/01/22) **page 118**
- Chapter 16:** Information Technology **page 127**
- Chapter 17:** Family Medical Leave Act Benefits (FMLA) **page 138**
(12/31/15) (11/01/16) (01/01/19) (10/01/22)
- Chapter 18:** American With Disabilities Act Grievance Process (12/31/15) **page 145**
Via Risk Management
- Glossary of Terms **page 146**

***Note: This version of the manual supersedes prior versions of the Human Resources Policy Manual**

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 1: Administration and General Information

1.1 Administration. (revised 11/01/16) (01/01/19)

Responsibility: The City Manager is designated as the chief executive officer. As the head of the administrative branch of city government, the City Manager is responsible to the city council for the administration of all affairs of the city, including the hiring, and when necessary, removal of any employee, per city charter. The Deputy City Managers are appointed by the City Manager and assist the City Manager in administering the affairs of the city by performing assigned functions and providing general oversight to the directors of departments as designated on the city's organizational chart. Throughout this manual when the City Manager is noted, the Deputy City Manager is authorized to make decisions in the City Manager's place, if so designated by the City Manager or js the City Manager is physically incapacitated and unable to make such related decisions.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: if he/she is

The Director of Human Resources is responsible for administering the regulations of this policy in cooperation with department managers and directors. Directors are responsible for the proper and effective administration of this policy within their departments. Routine matters and duties, such as maintaining records and preparing reports may be assigned to another department staff member.

Deleted: d

Deleted: h

Deleted: r

This policy prevails over any individual department policy that may be contradicting.

The City reserves the right to interpret, change, suspend, cancel or dispute all or any part of the policies contained herein.

1.2 Department Policies. (revised 12/31/15)

(a) It shall be the prerogative of each department director and the Deputy City Managers, with the approval of the City Manager, to develop and implement departmental policies and/or practices which are separate from or in addition to these policies. If a departmental policy is inconsistent, in conflict or incompatible with any provision contained herein, the provision in this manual shall control. Directors shall review departmental policies and correct any inconsistencies, conflicts or incompatible provisions following the approval of any future amendments to this manual.

(b) Directors may choose to reorganize department operations and assign employees to new job duties and/or positions without posting job openings for City employees or public review, if they deem such a reorganization to be in the best interest of the department. Such decisions should be discussed with the City Manager, or designated Deputy City Manager, in advance. After CMO approval, the Director will communicate the circumstances to the Human Resources Director if job openings are not posted and made available for application or transfer.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: s

Deleted: 2022

1.3 Amendments to This Policy.

The City Manager may make revisions to this policy which do not involve a change in benefits offered or changes which would require an amendment to the city's current "Annual Operating Budget." The city council must approve all changes involving employee benefits and/or budget amendments. Any new rules or regulations issued supersede these regulations and are fully binding on all employees.

1.4 Policy Distribution. A copy of this policy shall be made available to all city employees.

1.5 Personnel Records.

- (a) Retention and inspection. The Human Resources Department will maintain the personnel file for each employee and retain those records in accordance with the city's records retention schedule. An employee's record is available for inspection in the Human Resources Department by that employee and the employee's immediate supervisor, manager, director, Deputy City Manager or the City Manager. In some instances, information in these files is available to the public, per open records state statutes.
- (b) Information update. Each employee shall report to the Human Resources Department any change in address, telephone number, or family status, to be included in the employee's personnel file.
- (c) Retention of Applications.
Whether or not an applicant is hired, promoted, or transferred, the application shall not be returned, but shall be retained by the city in accordance with the city's records retention schedule.

1.6 Fair Employment Practices.

- (a) Responsibility- All City Employees: The city workforce exists to provide essential municipal services to the community. The city organization is committed, within its financial constraints, to maintaining a workforce of the most qualified workers to provide reliable, quality, and cost efficient services to the community in a respectful and friendly manner.
- (b) Management responsibilities:
in keeping with the respect due each employee, city management is committed to:
 - provide effective and efficient delivery of services;
 - compensate employees fairly for work done;
 - provide safe, healthy, work conditions in accordance with provisions of all applicable law;
 - adequately instruct and train employees in their duties;

- supply necessary tools and equipment (except those customarily provided by employees);
- provide reasonable opportunities for development experience and competitive advancement; and
- actively engage in equal opportunity activities.
- City management shall not dismiss an individual, fail or refuse to hire an individual, or otherwise discriminate against an individual with respect to compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment because of the individual's race, color, age, religion, sex, national origin, disability, pregnancy, military status, political opinions, or affiliations.

(c) Employee responsibilities:

An employee shall:

- be loyal to and meet the reasonable expectations of city management and the citizens of the city,
- report to work regularly and at the time specified by their supervisor;
- consistently meet or exceed performance standards established for the employee's job;
- work in a professional, cooperative, safe, and friendly manner; and
- get along well with co-workers and citizens.

1.7 Prohibition of Discrimination and Harassment. (01/01/19) (10/01/2023)

(a) The City of Burleson does not condone, endorse, or tolerate conduct by employees, vendors, volunteers, elected officials or citizens that would constitute discrimination or harassment (including sexual harassment) based on race, color, religion, national origin, sex (includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy), age, the existence of a physical or mental disability, military service status or any other state or federally protected right. Employees who feel there is a problem in this area should refer to Standards of Conduct Chapter for further guidelines on how to address this concern and should report the problem to a member of city management immediately.

(b) Hair discrimination - at no time will the city allow any hiring, advancement, other employment or grooming policy or practice be made because of or on the basis of an employee's hair texture or protective hairstyle (braids, locks, and twists) commonly or historically associated with race.

Deleted: .

Deleted: 2022

1.8 Expressing Breast Milk in the Workplace:

- (a) It is the policy of the City of Burleson to follow mandates issued by the State of Texas (Texas Government Code, title 6, chapter 619) and the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (Section 7) related to a mother's right to express breast milk in the workplace.
- (b) It is the policy of the City of Burleson to support the practice of expressing breast milk and to make a reasonable accommodation for the needs of employees who express breast milk.
- (c) The City of Burleson will provide;
 - 1. a reasonable amount of break time for an employee to express breast milk each time the employee has need to express the milk; and
 - 2. a place, other than a bathroom, that is shielded from view and free from intrusion from other employees and the public where the employee can express breast milk. The location provided must be functional as a space for expressing breast milk. If the space is not dedicated to the nursing mother's use, it will be available when needed in order to meet the statutory requirements of the Department of Labor/FLSA regulations.
 - 3. Designation of Space: The Department Director or Manager will work with any employee to designate an appropriate space for expressing breast milk in accordance with #2 above.
- (d) Responsibility: It is the responsibility of department management to work with an employee who has a need for accommodation for expressing breast milk. It is the responsibility of the employee to communicate with management regarding the need for accommodation.
- (e) Breaks for Expressing Breast Milk: The City is not required to compensate nursing mothers for breaks taken for the purpose of expressing milk. However, where departments already provide compensated breaks, an employee who uses that break time to express milk will be compensated in the same way that other employees are compensated for break time. The provision to compensate employee for this break time applies only to non-exempt employees.
- (f) Per section 619.005 of the Texas Government Code, Discrimination Prohibited. A public employer may not suspend or terminate the employment of, or otherwise discriminate against, an employee because the employee has asserted the employee's rights under this chapter.

Chapter 2: New Employee Information

2.1 Application and Initial Employment.

- (a) The Human Resources Department will coordinate the process of recruiting employees, posting job openings, testing employees, assisting management with interviews, checking references, and making job offers. Supervisory and management employees should refer to internal written protocols for hiring new employees within the approved guidelines and the budget allocations.

2.2 Probationary Employment Period.

- (a) All new employees will serve a six-month probationary period (note differentiation when the probationary period begins for sworn public safety in subsection (1) below). During this time the employee is working to learn job skills and demonstrate an ability to perform the job in an acceptable manner. This is the period of time in which supervisory staff are assessing competency and training the employee. Throughout this handbook various benefits are explained and are made available to qualified employees. Successful completion of the six-month probationary period is required in order to secure these benefits. Employees may be given a brief written evaluation at the end of the probationary period:
 - (1) The six-month probationary period for commissioned peace officers in the Police Department and sworn firefighters working in the Fire Department begins at the conclusion of the departments' field training/orientation period.
- (b) No portion of the probationary period requirement alters the city's right to exercise the "at-will" employment option (see the Federal, State, and Local Law Notices). If an employee elects to quit during the probationary period a two week written notice is still required in order to be rehired, but may be waived by the employee's director following review with Human Resources should it be in the city's best interest.
- (c) New employees (not police officers) are required to complete six months of employment in the department in which they are initially hired before being eligible for consideration for transfer within city employment.
- (d) Completion of the probationary period does not guarantee continued employment or alter the employment "at-will" employment option. See the Federal, State, and Local Law Notices Chapter for more information on conditions of employment.

2.3 Nepotism. (05/13/19) (10/01/21)

- (a) City Charter Requirement. In keeping with Section 134 of the Charter of the City of Burlison, no person who is related within the second degree of affinity or within the third degree of consanguinity to a member of the city council or to the City

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

Manager is eligible for any office, position or service with the city or to the Zoning Board of Adjustment or the Planning and Zoning Commission. This prohibition does not affect an officer or employee within the named degree, who is already serving or employed by the city for 30 days prior to an appointed position and 6 months prior to an elected position from when the member of the city council or the City Manager takes office.

- (b) Other than prohibited nepotism in the City Charter, employment of relatives is permitted. However, employees may not appoint or employ family members, nor use their position to influence their appointment or employment. Employees shall not be placed in positions in which they would supervise or be supervised by a family member; or be in a position where family members could affect each other's employment, promotion, salary administration, work assignments, or other related management or personnel decisions and transactions. For applicable employment relationships existing prior to the policy, appropriate controls and oversight will be put in place with the Department Director and Human Resources to ensure no conflict of interest.
- (c) To the extent possible, family members working in the same department will not be assigned to the same work group or shift. If not practical, approval is required by the Department Director and Human Resources.
- (d) In situations where pending family relationships are being considered between employees post-employment that would violate the nepotism policy, a meeting between the employees, the department head(s) and the Director of Human Resources will need to occur. The continuance of employment of both employees will be determined based upon supervisory roles and conflict of interest that could occur if both are retained in their current roles and/or department. A transfer or separation could be the result of the meeting.

Deleted:

Chapter 3: Federal, State, and Local Law Notices and Public Information Policy

3.1 Equal Opportunity Policy. (01/30/2020)

No officer or employee of the city shall discriminate in employment practices based on race, color, religion, national origin, sex (includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy), age, the existence of a physical or mental disability, military service status or any other state or federally protected right. The equal opportunity policy of the city applies to all areas of employment, including, but not limited to recruitment, hiring, job assignments, pay, training, promotions, privileges, and conditions of employment.

3.2 Conditions of Employment

- (a) These Policies are not a Contract;
At-will employment. All employees of the city serve at the will and pleasure of the city. Neither this policy nor any other policy of the city nor any statement of a city official, shall be construed as granting a property interest in employment with the city. The existence

Deleted: 2022

of this policy does not constitute any limitation on the rights of the city to manage its affairs. The city reserves the right to interpret, change, suspend, cancel or dispute all or any part of this policy.

- (b) Requirements for continued employment. Although adherence to this policy is considered a condition of continued employment, nothing in this policy alters an employee's status, and this policy shall not constitute a contract or promise of employment. Employees are expected to continue to meet job performance standards, observe departmental regulations, and observe city rules of conduct in order to continue employment with the city.

3.3 Compliance with Regulations and Laws.

An employee shall comply with the provisions of the charter and ordinances and resolutions of the city, with this policy and with departmental policies; failure to do so may result in disciplinary measures.

Deleted: ¶

3.4 Public Information Policy.

- (a) Policy statement. The city recognizes that the public should have accurate, authentic information concerning events that affect the public welfare or the public interest. This information should be provided, when possible to do so, without interfering with the performance of services and without jeopardizing results of investigations or other pending matters. The city and all its departments are tax supported and must merit and retain public support. The city has the obligation to follow legal guidelines in providing public information as established in the Texas Public Information Act.
- (b) Public information coordinator. The City Manager and city council have, by ordinance, designated the city secretary to be Bureson's public information coordinator, responsible for administering the city's responsibilities under the Texas Public Information Act. The public information coordinator will coordinate requests for information with the various department directors to ensure compliance with all public information laws.
- (c) Referral of requests. Departments shall refer requests for information to the city secretary's office for required legal handling to ensure the city's compliance with open records statutes.

3.5 Media Relations Policy.

- (a) Policy statement. This policy establishes procedures and guidelines for all city employees concerning communication with members of the news media when the employee is on the job or acting as a city employee. The city seeks to provide consistent, accurate, and timely information to the media while keeping city officials informed of emerging media issues. To accomplish this goal, the city maintains a systematic, well-coordinated communications policy.

Deleted: 2022

(b) Public information officer (PIO). The City Manager shall designate a staff member as the city's PIO. The PIO is the city's official spokesperson for all city departments except the police department or as directed by the City Manager. The PIO promotes and provides background information about city issues, projects, and services to both the news media and the public.

(1) The PIO is on-call 24 hours a day in order to facilitate the city's media relations policy, answer questions, respond to developing situations, and offer assistance as needed.

(2) The PIO is available to all employees for advice, consultation, and assistance in media relations. Upon request, the PIO can be present for any arranged interviews with media personnel.

(3) When the PIO is unavailable to serve as the city's spokesperson, an alternate spokesperson shall be designated by the City Manager.

(c) Public safety. The Police Chief shall designate a member of that department to serve as the city's official spokesperson for police-related incidents, including but not limited to criminal reports. The city PIO shall serve as the fire department PIO until such time as the Fire Chief chooses to designate a spokesperson from within that department and has such designation approved by city management. The city, police department, and fire department shall jointly coordinate the release of all other material to news media outlets. On the scene of an active police or fire incident, the incident commander shall serve as the media contact until the departmental or city spokesperson is present, or unless an alternate spokesperson is designated by the Chief.

(d) Application to staff. An employee shall not initiate a contact with the news media relating to city business without permission of the department director and coordination with the public information officer.

(1) A department director may respond to simple inquiries from the news media, but must immediately notify the public information officer and the Deputy City Manager or the City Manager, whichever is appropriate, of the date, time, subject matter, and news media personnel who made the inquiry.

(2) Readily Available Requests. When an employee other than a PIO or department director is contacted by the media requesting readily available information about city operations that is known to be public, the employee shall make a reasonable effort to provide it. Such information includes, but is not limited to, city staff names, titles and extensions; public meeting dates, locations and agendas; provisions of city ordinances or city charter; and copies of materials prepared by the city for public distribution. If the employee is unsure whether the requested information is considered public, the employee shall forward the request to the appropriate department director.

(3) Other Requests. When an employee other than a PIO or department director is contacted by the media for information about city operations that is not readily available, the employee shall refer the request to the appropriate department director or the PIO.

Deleted: he or she

Deleted: 2022

- (4) News media personnel who visit city facilities will not be permitted in controlled access areas without the department director's authorization.
- (e) News releases.
 - (1) All departments are encouraged to disseminate news releases that reflect positively on the city and its image. A list of appropriate media contacts will be maintained by the PIO.
 - (2) News releases shall be submitted to the departmental director for approval before being forwarded to the PIO for formal issuance to the news media.
 - (3) The appropriate process for composition and distribution of news releases from the police department will be determined by department general orders.
- (f) Formal media interviews.
 - (1) An employee who receives a request from the media for scheduled interviews, tapings or recordings shall immediately forward the request to the PIO, who shall notify the City Manager as needed.
 - (2) Employees shall work with the PIO to provide a timely and thorough response to all interview requests, but the city may ask for and expect to be afforded additional time to research the relevant issues and to prepare for the interview.
 - (3) The PIO is the official spokesperson for the city. However, if it is determined to be more appropriate to have another staff member interviewed, as a subject matter expert, the PIO will be available to advise the employee on interviewing with the media.
 - (4) Upon termination of a formal media interview, the employee shall promptly discuss the topic with his or her departmental director and/or the PIO to determine if any further action should be taken.
 - (5) The appropriate process for conduct of a media interview on police matters will be determined by department general orders.
- (g) A city employee violating this policy is subject to discipline up to and including termination.

Chapter 4: Standards of Conduct

4.1 Anti-Harassment Policy And Procedures: (revised 11/01/16) (01/01/19) (10/01/23)

The purpose of this policy is to provide all employees a work environment that is free from harassment, including sexual harassment and any other form of illegal harassment or intimidation. Any conduct between a City employee and a volunteer or citizen that may be deemed harassment is also strictly prohibited. See the Administration and General Information Chapter for further policy statements related to this matter.

Director of Human Resources. The director of Human Resources will receive training about harassment and this policy, and will be responsible for investigating harassment complaints.

Distribution of policies. The director of Human Resources will distribute this policy to all employees. Employees are encouraged to read this policy and adhere to its provisions at all times.

Amendments. The City Manager reserves the right to amend this policy at any time. The director of Human Resources will notify employees of changes to this policy.

Training. The city shall provide mandatory training in harassment matters for supervisors.

(a) Harassment Definitions:

(1) Harassment consists of unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical, or visual, that is based on a person's race, color, ancestry, religion, national origin, age, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), marital status, disability, genetic information, or veteran status.

Deleted: gender, sex (including pregnancy, sexual orientation),

(2) Sexual Harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, verbal, visual, or physical acts of a sexual or sex-based nature, or other misconduct directed at a person's sex.

(A) Harassment becomes unlawful where:

- enduring the offensive conduct becomes a condition of continued employment or a submission or rejection of the conduct is a basis of employment decisions
- the conduct is severe or pervasive enough to create a work environment that a reasonable person would consider intimidating, hostile, or abusive.

(b) Prohibited conduct:

The city considers the following conduct to represent the types of acts which violate this policy regardless if the behavior was intended to harass. The conduct listed below is not an all-inclusive list:

Deleted: 2022

(1) Physical Harassment: Any actual or attempts at intentional physical contact, assault, impeding or blocking movement, leering; or the physical interference with normal work, privacy or movement when directed at an individual on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), age, or veteran status. This includes pinching, patting, grabbing, rape, sexual battery, molestation, brushing against another person's body, poking another person's body, or making explicit or implied threats or promises in return for submission to physical acts.

Deleted: pregnancy, sexual orientation, sex/gender

(2) Verbal Harassment: Inappropriate gestures, rumors, code words, slurs, jokes, unwanted advances, propositions, and other offensive words or comments on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), age, or veteran status whether made in general, directed to an individual, or to a group of people.

Deleted: pregnancy, sexual orientation, sex/gender,

(3) Visual Forms of Harassment: Inappropriate gestures, or demeaning, derogatory, prejudicial, stereotypical, or otherwise offensive written documents or publications such as posters, photographs, cartoons, notes, magazines, calendars, graffiti, bulletins, drawings or pictures on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), age, or veteran status. A picture is presumed sexually suggestive if it depicts a person who is not fully clothed or in clothes that are not suited to a professional workplace, or displaying or drawing attention to the private portions of the body. This applies to both posted material and material maintained in or on equipment or personal property in the workplace.

Deleted: pregnancy, sexual orientation, sex/gender

(4) Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an employee for submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any employee to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward is prohibited.

(5) Subjecting, or threats of subjecting, an employee to unwelcome conduct when directed at an individual on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), age, or veteran status; or intentionally making performance of the employee's job more difficult because of that employee's rejection of such misconduct is prohibited.

Deleted: pregnancy, sexual orientation, sex/gender

(6) Other acts of a similar nature on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, [sex \(includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy\)](#), age, or veteran status.

Deleted: pregnancy, sexual orientation, sex/gender

Deleted: 2022

(c) Retaliation Prohibited:

Retaliation for harassment complaints, such as disciplining, changing work environments, providing inaccurate work information, or refusing to cooperate or discuss work related matters with an employee because that employee has complained about or resisted harassment, discrimination or retaliation.

Deleted: ¶

(d) General Provisions:

Employees who make repeated, false, or unfounded complaints for the sole purpose of attempting to invoke disciplinary action on another employee or attempting to disrupt the workplace without merit will be counseled and may also be subject to disciplinary action as appropriate.

(e) Complaint Procedure for Harassment:

(1) The city encourages employees who encounter harassment to firmly and promptly notify the offender that the behavior is unwelcome and that the conduct must stop.

(2) An employee who experiences or observes behaviors that are or could be construed as harassment or retaliation must report the incident to a supervisor, Department Director, the Director of Human Resources, or the City Manager. See the Disciplinary Action, Appeal, Complaints and Grievance Procedures Chapter for details on how grievances related to protected employee rights are handled.

(3) The Director of Human Resources will report all harassment and retaliation complaints to the City Manager.

(4) Each complaint, including anonymous complaints, will be promptly and thoroughly investigated to determine if harassment occurred. To the extent practical and allowed by the Texas Public Information Act, the city will keep complaints and the terms of their resolution confidential.

(5) An employee will not be subject to retaliation or discipline for reporting or pursuing a harassment complaint. If the employee believes they are being retaliated against during or as a result of this process, they will report this to the Human Resources Department or the City Manager immediately.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: is

Deleted: he/she

(f) Responsibility of employees:

An employee or applicant for employment who has been harassed or knows of or suspects harassment in the workplace, sexual or otherwise, has the responsibility to report the conduct to a Supervisor, Department Director, the Director of Human Resources, the City Manager, or the Deputy City Manager.

Deleted: 2022

(g) Duties and responsibilities of supervisors:

- (1) Supervisors must treat all complaints seriously and confidentially. Each case will be thoroughly investigated to determine whether the harassment complained of occurred.
- (2) All reports or suspicions of harassment, sexual or otherwise, which come to a supervisor's attention must be referred immediately to the Director of Human Resources and/or City Manager.

(h) Discipline for harassment:

An employee found to have violated this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, including written reprimands, transfer, demotion, suspension, or termination. By enforcing this policy, the city will preserve the right of every employee and applicant to enjoy a workplace free of harassment of any type. Reports of harassment will be investigated; however, disciplinary action as a part of resolution of the matter is not automatic nor understood. Each matter will be handled on its own merits, and disciplinary actions taken will depend upon the specific circumstances surrounding the complaint. Validated misconduct that does not meet the criteria of harassment will still be addressed as a policy violation in our Standards of Conduct.

4.2 Replacement and Disposal of City Equipment:

- (a)** If an employee loses or damages city equipment, the employee must make a written report, documenting the circumstances, to the employee's immediate Supervisor who will submit the report for review by the Department Director. Determination of an employee's financial responsibility for replacement or repair of the equipment will be made by the Department Director.
- (b)** All employees are expected to follow specific protocols for disposal of equipment that is being replaced or discarded. Employees do not have authority to claim discarded city equipment without prior written permission. Capital equipment as well as incidental supplies, furniture and equipment will be properly disposed of or stored for auction when they are no longer in service.

4.3 Solicitations: (revised 01/01/13)

Solicitation will be limited to the following. Exceptions or additions to this policy will be brought to the attention of the City Manager's office for approval.

- (a)** Employee solicitations for personal gain or fund-raisers: Solicitation for the purpose of making additional money (i.e. personal product sales) or for fund-raising (i.e. for schools, churches, clubs) during working hours on city property is permitted only with the approval of the appropriate Department Director (or designee). Under no circumstances should

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

employees be approached individually regarding the purchase of products. However, the Director may approve employees placing items in a break room, on a table in the area, etc. making employee participation voluntary.

- (b) City sponsored events may prompt solicitation to employees who want to voluntarily contribute (i.e. United Way, Heart for Kids, Harvest House, school supplies, diaper drives, etc.). These activities are intended to provide the employee base an opportunity to make a positive impact in the community and are not considered solicitation.
- (c) Community Businesses: Community businesses, charities and churches will not be allowed to solicit to City employees in the workplace. This includes pamphlets, coupons, letters, etc. If a business wants to provide a discount to the entire employee base, they may submit a one-page announcement to the Human Resources Department that will be posted for a designated period of time (not to exceed 90 days) on the City's intranet. Employees can voluntarily visit the appropriate intranet location and opt to participate in the promotional offer.

4.4 Employee Conduct. (revised 01/15/12)

(a) Performance standards.

An employee is expected to consistently maintain satisfactory performance standards. Whenever work habits, attitude, production, or personal conduct of an employee falls below a desirable standard, the problem should first be addressed by the mutually cooperative efforts of the Supervisor and the employee. Those efforts include but are not limited to:

- (1) an analysis of the problem;
- (2) a determination of needed changes and assistance; and
- (3) implementation of a corrective plan of action and establishment of achievement dates.
- (4) Instruction on the consequences of the employee's failure to correct behavior.

- (b) If performance standards are not met within a reasonable period of time, the employee, depending upon the documented reasons for failure, may be either transferred, demoted, suspended without pay, or terminated. See the Disciplinary Action, Appeal, Complaints and Grievance Procedures Chapter for more information on protocols for such employment actions.

(c) Unacceptable conduct.

The following types of conduct are unacceptable and may be the reason for corrective discipline in the form of reprimand, suspension, demotion, or termination, depending upon the facts and circumstances of each case. These are merely examples of unacceptable conduct. The examples given are typical but not all-inclusive.

- (1) Unsatisfactory attendance exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
 - (A) unexcused absence or tardiness;
 - (B) failure to give notice of an absence or tardiness to the Supervisor from within two hours before to within 30 minutes after starting time;
 - (C) absences or tardiness which lack sufficient justification;
 - (D) excessive amounts of time off the job, regardless of the reason.
- (2) Job abandonment occurs when an employee deliberately, and without authorization, is absent from the job for two consecutive work days or refuses a legitimate order to report to work. The employee is considered to have abandoned the employee's job and voluntarily resigned without notice. See Employee Separations and Vacation, Sick, Leaves of Absences, and Other Absences from Work Chapters for more information.
- (3) Inability or unwillingness to perform assigned work satisfactorily is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
 - (A) failure to follow routine written or verbal instructions;
 - (B) arguing over assignments or instructions; or
 - (C) an accumulation of other deficiencies indicating the employee's continuing failure to adequately perform in a productive, efficient and competent manner.
- (4) Indifference towards work is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
 - (A) inattention, inefficiency, loafing, sleeping, carelessness or negligence;
 - (B) failure to remain at one's work station, leaving work without permission, or taking excessive time or more time than allowed for meal or rest periods;
 - (C) performance of personal business;
 - (D) excessive use of cell phones or city phones for personal business.
 - (E) interference with the work of others; or
 - (F) discourteous or irresponsible treatment of the public or other employees.
- (5) Sabotage is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
 - (A) deliberate damage to or destruction of city equipment or property;
 - (B) defacing of city property;
 - (C) unauthorized alteration, removal, destruction, or disclosure of city records or city property;
 - (D) advocacy of or participation in unlawful trespass or seizure of city property;
 - (E) encouraging or engaging in slowdowns, sit-ins, strikes, or other concerted actions or efforts to limit or restrict employees from working;
 - (F) interference with the public use of or access to city services, properties, or buildings; or
 - (G) threats to commit any act of sabotage as defined in this subparagraph.

- (6) Safety violations are exemplified by, but not limited to, failure to follow city or departmental safety regulations.
- (7) Dishonesty is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
- (A) acceptance of money or anything of value from a person subject to regulatory decision making or supervision of the employee. See the regulations related to gifts described in the Conflict of Interest policy of this manual.
 - (B) cheating, forging, or willful falsification of official city business matters, reports or records;
 - (C) false reporting of the reason for paid leave of absence; or
 - (D) any other falsifying action detrimental to the city or fellow employees.
- (8) Theft regardless of property value, is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
- (A) unauthorized taking of city property or the property of others;
 - (B) unauthorized use of city or employee funds;
 - (C) using or authorizing the use of city equipment or employee services for other than official city business; or
 - (D) using or authorizing the use of city equipment or employee services without proper authority.
- (9) Insubordination is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
- (A) willful failure or refusal to follow the specific orders or instructions of a Supervisor or higher authority; or
 - (B) pursuit of a denied request to a higher authority without revealing the lower level disposition; provided that:
 - if the employee believes an instruction or order is improper, he should obey the instruction or order and file a complaint; or
 - if the employee believes the instruction or order, if followed, would result in physical injury to the employee or others or damage to city equipment, the employee should request approval by the next higher level of supervision before performing the work, unless the danger complained about is inherent to the job.
- (10) Abuse of drugs or alcohol related to any use of illegal drugs, alcohol or controlled substances. Employees should refer to the Drug Free Workplace Chapter in this manual for details of the rules.
- (11) Disturbance is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
- (A) fighting or boisterous conduct;
 - (B) deliberate causing of physical injury to another employee or citizen;
 - (C) intimidation;

- (D) unnecessary disruption of the work area;
 - (E) use of profane, abusive, threatening, or loud and boisterous language
 - (F) spreading of false reports or rumors;
 - (G) offensive behavior or disruption of the harmonious relations among employees or between employees and the public.
- (12) Harassment, discrimination or retaliation against any employee, volunteer, or citizen, or any other Anti-Harassment policy violations as described in the Administration and General Information and Standards of Conduct Chapters of this manual are strictly prohibited.
- (13) Abuse of city property is exemplified by, but not limited to, the following violations:
- (A) negligent damage or destruction of city equipment or property;
 - (B) waste of materials or negligent loss of tools or materials;
 - (C) improper maintenance of equipment; or
 - (D) damage caused by use of tools or equipment for purposes other than that for which the tool or equipment was intended.

Administrative Note: In addition to appropriate disciplinary action, damage caused by proven intent will cause the employee to be responsible for the repair or replacement of any damaged property. Failure to reimburse the city is cause for dismissal.

- (14) Misconduct is any criminal offense or immoral conduct, during working hours (or while off duty), which could have an adverse effect on the city or on the confidence of the public in city government.
- (15) Disregard of public trust is any conduct, during working hours (or while off duty), which could impair the public's confidence or trust in the operation of city government.
- (16) Failure to report a violation is exemplified by, but not limited to, failure to report to the proper authority any known violation described in this manual.
- (17) Unauthorized or abusive use of official authority.
- (18) Abuse of sick, vacation, or other leave privileges.
- (19) Violation of rules as described in the Human Resources policy manual (known as employee handbook).
- (20) Inappropriate interactions or conduct with citizens who are participating in Community or Volunteer programs coordinated through the City of Burlison.
- (21) Conduct that is considered prejudicial to good order may result in employment action

taken in order to uphold the city's commitment to employees conducting themselves in a manner that is for the good of public service.

(22) Purchasing of personal items through city accounts or vendors is strictly prohibited. All purchases from companies such as ABC Distributing, LTD Commodities, and Oriental Trading Company (and others) are to be for city-related business only (no personal purchases) and are to be directed through the city's purchasing office.

(d) Disciplinary and legal actions. Where the evidence supports a violation of this manual, disciplinary action may be taken independent of and before any legal action or criminal conviction.

(e) Illegal Conduct Charges.

(1) Employees are expected to report any arrests and/or formal charges for illegal conduct (other than minor class C traffic violations) to the appropriate Director within five business days of the arrest or filing of charges. Regular reports of the disposition of the charges or court case will be required by the employee to the Director.

(2) The employee's Director is required to document the employee's circumstances, and submit the written report to the Human Resources Director.

4.5 Social Media [Policy Guidelines \(10/01/2011\) \(10/01/2023\)](#)

Deleted: Use

Purpose

To define the social networking and social media policy for the City of Burleson. This policy establishes a framework for the use of social media and is intended to supplement existing policy regulation and law, where applicable. The city allows the use of social media to further the goals of the city and the missions of its departments, where appropriate and when approved. The city has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is "spoken" on its behalf on social media sites.

Definitions

A. Social Media: A category of Internet-based resources that integrate user-generated content and user participation. This includes, but is not limited to, social networking sites (Facebook, Instagram, Glassdoor, Nextdoor); microblogging sites (Twitter); photo and video sharing sites (Flickr, Snapchat, Tumblr, Tik Tok, Yik Yak, WeChat, YouTube, Periscope, Facebook Live); messaging apps (Whats App, Kik, Skype, Facebook Messenger); wikis (Wikipedia); blogs; and news sites (Digg, Reddit).

B. Obscene: Content that the average person, applying contemporary community standards, would find that (a) the work, taken as a whole, appeals to the prurient interest; (b) the work depicts or describes, in a patently offensive way, sexual conduct

Deleted: 2022

specifically defined by the applicable state law; and (c) the work, taken as a whole, lacks serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value.

City Employee Professional Use

All official city-related communication through social media and social networking outlets must remain professional and always be conducted according to the city's communications policy and best practices. Employees who have access to official city sites are prohibited from using official city social media or social networking sites for political purposes, for conducting private commercial transactions, engaging in private business activities, or for personal, non-city-related use. Inappropriate usage of official city social media and social networking sites could be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. If social media and social networking sites are used for official city business, all such sites, regardless of personal views, must comply with city policy and standards. Only individuals authorized by the city may publish content to a city website, social networking outlet, or other technology platforms.

Approval and Registration

All new city social media sites shall:

- A. Be approved by the Community Services Department.
- B. Be published using approved social networking platforms and tools.
- C. Grant administrative rights to a designated member of the Community Services Department.
- D. Operate with a written social media strategy and content calendar.
- E. Be administered by the contact or their designee.

A written social media strategy, content calendar and training with the Community Services Department must be completed before a new social media channel is authorized. Each city employee authorized to post on city social media sites must first complete required training with the Community Services Department. Only city employees are authorized to post to city social media sites.

Oversight and Enforcement

Employees representing the city through social media outlets or participating in social media features on city websites must maintain a high level of ethical conduct and professional etiquette. Failure to do so is grounds for revoking the privilege to participate in city social media sites, blogs, or other social media features.

The information must be presented following professional standards for good grammar, spelling, brevity, clarity and accuracy, and avoid jargon, obscure terminology, or acronyms. Posts should reflect the tone of the city:

- Positive
- Aspirational
- Confident in pursuit of excellence
- First-person (but always "we," and never "I")
- Warm, as if "friends"

- [Engaging](#)
- [Humorous, when appropriate](#)
- [Educational](#)
- [Trendy, as appropriate](#)

[City employees recognize that the content and messages they post on social media websites are public and may be cited as official city statements. As city employees, pay special attention to sources when sharing other posts and/or retweeting. Social media must not be used to circumvent other city communication policies, including news media policy requirements. City employees may not delete or hide public comments unless they violate the City of Burleson Site Terms and Conditions. City employees may not block or mute followers on social media unless they violate the City of Burleson Site Terms and Conditions.](#)

- A. [Authorized staff shall utilize their city email account to administer social media accounts.](#)
- B. [Authorized staff may only post to city approved social media platforms.](#)
- C. [Employees may not use their personal social media accounts to post official comments on behalf of the city.](#)
- D. [Any posting or comment from a city employee shall be for professional purposes. Posts shall be factual and never contain opinions.](#)
- E. [Posts should provide sufficient information to describe the news event, topic, event or program being discussed. Whenever possible, content posts shall link or refer visitors to the city's official website at \[www.burlesontx.com\]\(http://www.burlesontx.com\) or the department's official webpage.](#)

[City employees may not publish information on city social media sites that includes:](#)

- A. [Confidential or proprietary information](#)
 - o [An example would be pages of a vendor's bid marked confidential that has proprietary information.](#)
 - o [Another example would be publishing or posting private facts and personal information \(date of birth, driver's license, social security number\) about someone without their permission that has not been previously revealed to the public, is not of legitimate public concern, and would be offensive to a reasonable person.](#)
- B. [Content that violated a legal ownership interest in another party](#)
 - o [Using another's trademark, logo or likeness without their permission would be an example of this.](#)
 - o [Another example would be publishing the creative work of another or photography without permission or giving proper copyright credit.](#)
- C. [Profanity, racist, sexist, obscene or derogatory content or comments](#)
 - o [An example of profanity would be language considered vulgar by societal standards.](#)

- An example of racist, sexist or derogatory content would involve comments made toward co-workers and/or members of the public that denigrates a particular race, religion, national origin, sexual orientation or gender identity.
- D. False or defamatory comments
 - These would include instances where comments aimed at co-workers and/or members of the public denigrate a person’s character or reputation and are untrue.
 - Another example would be publishing or posting false information that harms the reputation of a group or organization.
- E. Comments in support of or opposition to political campaigns or ballot measures
 - An example of this would be to post campaign materials in support of a political candidate in the comment section of a city social media post.
- F. Content that solicits or promotes commercial services or products
 - An example of this would include posting an advertisement on a city-sponsored social platform, excluding content developed for economic development.
 - Promoting a business outside of a documented sponsorship agreement would also be an example of this.
- G. Legal information: anything to do with pending litigation or legal issue, including attorney-client privileged communications and/or attorney work product
 - This would include pending litigation matters where the city is a party.
- H. Information not subject to disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act and other relevant state and federal law
 - Examples would include social security numbers and protected health information.
- I. Threat of physical harm or intentional disruption of city operations
 - An example of this includes information that may compromise the safety or security of the public, public systems, or employees.
- J. Advocating for or causing the damage or destruction of city property, illegal discrimination, or harassment (including sexual harassment).

Emergency Communications

In an emergency, refer to the Crisis Communications Plan provided by the Community Services Department. Suspend all prescheduled posts until cleared to resume normal posting.

Records Retention and Open Records

Social media sites contain communications sent by and received by the city and its employees. These interactions are considered public records subject to disclosure, in accordance with the Texas Public Information Act. Regular retention requirements apply regardless of the form of the record (for example, digital text, photos, audio, and video). The city preserves records pursuant to a relevant records retention schedule for the required retention period in a format that preserves the integrity of the original record and is easily accessible.

Deleted: 2022

City Employee Use of Personal Social Media Accounts

- A. It is not the intent of the City of Burleson to prohibit employees from participating, accessing, or posting to personal social media sites during off-duty time. However, off-duty conduct related to social media may not infringe upon the integrity or security of the City of Burleson's operations. City personnel are free to express themselves as private citizens on social media sites to the degree that their speech does not impair or impede the performance of duties, impair discipline and harmony among co-workers, or negatively affect the public perception of the City or department. No portion of this social media policy will affect the employee's right to engage in concerted protected activities, affect protections afforded employees under Federal Whistleblowing guidelines, nor prohibit an employee's written expression regarding a matter of public concern.
- B. Employees are not authorized to represent the city on their personal social media sites unless explicitly authorized by their Department Director, and approved by the Community Services Department, to do so. It is paramount for the audience to know the difference between your personal opinion and the official view of the city. State that the views expressed in your postings are your own by using a disclaimer such as: "The postings on this site are my own and don't reflect or represent the opinions of the City of Burleson." If you happen to be a Burleson resident speaking in a personal capacity, state that you are posting based on your status as a Burleson resident alone and not in the capacity of a city employee.
- C. The City of Burleson recognizes that many individuals use social media sites for their own purposes. Personal sites may not be designed in such a way as to cause users to believe the site is a city-administered or city-endorsed site, including the unauthorized use of the City of Burleson logo and trademarks.
- D. The use of official employment insignias, logos, uniforms or similar identifying items are prohibited for personal use on any social media site.
- E. Unless the employee is a designated site administrator for an official City of Burleson social media site, the employee shall not use the city e-mail account in conjunction with a personal social networking site nor use City resources to post to personal accounts.
- F. Employees are prohibited from disclosing confidential information with regards to the City of Burleson's computer systems, projects, facilities, or employees on any personal social media in any way. This includes photographs or depictions of activities, including investigations and incidents.

Monitoring

If you come across positive or negative comments about the city, consider forwarding them to the Community Services Director.

Media Inquiries

[Personal blog and website postings may generate media coverage. If a member of the media contacts you about a city-related posting or requests city information of any kind, contact the Community Services Director.](#)

Employee Responsibilities

[Failure to adhere to this policy may result in disciplinary actions.](#)

4.6 Dress Code: (Revised: 01/01/13) (09/08/16)

(a) **General Policy Statement:** All employees must maintain a clean, neat, and appropriate appearance while on duty and dress in a manner that (i) creates public confidence in the competence of the City and its employees and (ii) is appropriate for the type of services being provided by the employee, consistent with the expectation of customers served, and in keeping with professional practices. Department Directors may implement supplemental dress code requirements for their department(s) based on operational needs and/or regulatory requirements. Supplemental dress codes must be reviewed by the HR Director.

(b) Responsibilities:

(1) **Directors / Managers:** It is the responsibility of directors, department managers and front-line Supervisors to ensure employee compliance with this dress code and to treat employees fairly in the enforcement of it. Human Resources will be available to assist with more formal discipline if verbal conversations with employees regarding failure to follow the dress code are not effective.

(2) **Employees:** Employees are responsible for complying with this Policy.

(c) Dress Code: General Description

Administrative employees may use casual dress code Monday-Friday. When outside meetings or events are occurring in which the employee is representing the city in a more business formal capacity, the employee is expected to dress in a more professional manner than casual dress as described below. Managers have the option to cancel a casual dress day if a special event or meeting warrants such a change on a given business day.

Samples of appropriate casual dress include:

Slacks, Docker-style pants, jeans, shirts (preference should be given to logo shirts when available), sweaters. athletic shoes, loafers, casual shoes. Athletic shoes should be clean and in good repair.

Deleted: The City's social media policy provides employees with guidelines when participating in social networking websites, web pages or message boards. ¶

¶

Definitions:¶
Social media: a category of internet based resources that enable the user to generate content and encourage other user participation. ¶

¶
Social networks: a platform where users can create profiles, share information, and socialize with others using a range of technologies.¶

¶
Examples (partial list): Facebook, Twitter, Blogs, Email, Google Plus, LinkedIn, Wikis, any message board, instant messaging, and other related sources of social media.¶

¶
Post: Content an individual shares on a social media site or the act of publishing content on a site.¶

¶
Profile: Information that a user provides about him/herself on a social networking site.¶

¶
On duty and off-duty postings of social media comments (Facebook, twitter, etc.) should be professional and appropriate at all times. Employees are expected to discuss concerns regarding social media with their Director, Manager, the City Manager's Office or the Human Resources Department immediately upon learning of a possible issue. Individual Supervisors do not have the authority to make exceptions to these guidelines. Further, employees are expected to act responsibly on and off duty and to exercise good judgment when using social media.¶

¶
It is not the intent of the City of Burleson to prohibit employees from participating, accessing, or posting to these sites during off-duty time. However, off-duty conduct related to social media may not infringe upon the integrity or security of the City of Burleson's operations. City personnel are free to express themselves as private citizens on social media sites to the degree that their speech does not impair or impede the performance of duties, impair discipline and harmony among co-workers, or negatively affect the public perception of the department.¶

¶
No portion of this social media policy will affect the employee's right to engage in concerted protected activities.¶

¶
No portion of this social media policy will affect protections afforded employees under Federal whistle blowing guidelines.¶

¶
No portion of this policy prohibits an employee's written expression regarding a matter of public concern.¶

¶
Posting pictures of yourself or others containing images of City uniforms or insignia, City logos, City equipment or City work sites on personal websites are not allowed if the posting may be interpreted as derogatory or reflect a negative light on the City as a whole or its employees.¶

¶
Posting of any information that may defame, embarrass, insult, demean, or damage the reputation of the City or any employee or retiree is prohibited. Comments posted will not ridicule or disparage others.¶

¶
Posting any information that may be sexual in nature or may be construed as sexual harassment is prohibited.¶

Deleted: 2022

(d) **Exceptions:**

The City Manager may make an exception to this policy as [the City Manager deems](#) appropriate.

Deleted: he/she deems

(e) **City Wide Standards:**

(1) **Hygiene:** All employees shall be aware that appropriate hygiene is required at all times. Hair should be clean and appropriately kept. Beards and mustaches should be kept clean and neatly trimmed.

Deleted: ¶

(2) **Jewelry and body art:** Visible tattoos may be required to be covered. No tongue rings, brow rings, facial piercings, ear gauges, or visible belly-button rings are permitted. Persons who have facial piercings or ear gauges upon hire, will be required to plug or cover these items during work hours. Department management will work with the employee to approve the appropriate cover for such items. Religious accommodations may be made for some form of body jewelry or piercing, but will be discussed with department management and Human Resources should a religious accommodation be requested by the employee.

(3) **City Uniforms/Logo Apparel Off-duty:** Clothing with city logos or other uniforms or clothing items that identify a person as a city employee will not be worn to bars, night clubs, adult entertainment establishments, while consuming alcohol in public, or at any off-duty location in which a person of reasonable sensibilities would view as inappropriate for a city employee.

(4) **Boots/Shoes:** Foot protection may be regulated as needed and uniform or steel-toe boots may be required to prevent employee injury. Employees who are approved by the Director to purchase city provided boots, may be allowed an allowance equivalent to an entry level model of steel-toe boot by Redwing or equivalent. If additional City funds are spent on boots, Director approval is required and should be documented for the Finance Department.

(5) Directors who have field personnel that have job duties in which wearing of dress clothes is not functional due to outdoor job duties or duties related to moving heavy equipment may designate positions in which denim is allowed during the week

(f) **Prohibited and Restricted Clothing:**

Prohibited Items (at all times): No employee may wear sweats, wind-suits, athletic wear (excluding tennis shoes), flip-flops, beach/water shoes, skorts, skirts more than two (2) inches above the knee, overalls/coveralls, leggings/stirrup pants, tank tops, tube/halter tops, midriff tops (or any clothing which exposes the abdomen), "baggy" or "sagging" pants, clothing with holes or tears, clothing which advertises any product or displays writing or logo(s) of any kind other than the official logo/name of the City of Burleson or

Deleted: 2022

one of its Departments (note: discreetly placed name/logo of the clothing manufacturer are accepted)

Restricted Items:

(1) Sleeveless shirts/blouses/tops, sundresses, and spaghetti straps of any variety may be worn only if covered by a jacket, sweater, or top-shirt.

(2) Shorts, T-shirts and Jeans (Denim): Departmental Directors may permit these items to be worn when the Director determines wearing of such clothing is in keeping with the General Policy Statement above.

(g) **Fire and Police Sworn Personnel:** Sworn Fire and Police Personnel shall comply with the code established by their respective Chiefs.

4.7 Uniform Policy. (revised 03/09/15)

(a) City employees are required to have approval from their respective Directors in advance of spending City funds for any clothing, boots, or uniforms.

(b) This policy does not address specifics regarding Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Employees should refer to the Safety Policy and their department management for directives regarding safety gear.

(c) All shirts purchased with City funds will have the City of Burleson name and/or logo printed on them.

(d) No undergarments (i.e. thermal underwear) will be purchased by City funds.

(e) Jackets and/or rain gear purchased will include the City logo.

(f) All employees are required to complete the appropriate uniform/clothing forms. The city grosses up the cost of uniforms/clothes and reports this to the IRS as a taxable benefit in accordance with the law. When the cost of the uniform is deducted from the grossed-up pay, the City has effectively paid a large portion of the tax on behalf of the employee. This amount can vary with each employee's individual tax situation.

(g) Employees working in position for which uniforms are required are expected to assure all uniforms are clean and in good repair.

(h) The Department Directors will determine which Supervisory positions, if any, in the department are required to wear uniforms.

(i) Departmental logos on clothing may be approved in lieu of the logo, pending approval by the Deputy City Manager or City Manager. Directors will work to communicate to the City Manager's office regarding alternative department specific logos that would be used in lieu of the official City logo.

(j) Employees are prohibited from wearing City logo clothing in social situations unrelated to City business (i.e. clubs, parties, fund-raising events for political or religious affiliations). Clothing with City logos may be worn to economic development activities. Shirts worn by Hidden Creek Golf personnel that are sold from the pro-shop and do not indicate a person is a City employee do not apply to this restriction.

(k) Upon separation from the City, employees may be required to return any shirts, jackets, or hats purchased with City funds.

(l) Civilian clothing purchases may be approved for the purchase of under-cover police officers and the Chief of Police discretion, within the Police Department operating procedures.

(m) The Finance Department maintains the written schedule of reimbursement for uniforms. Employees should refer to Finance for the appropriate reimbursement amounts.

4.8 Conflict of Interest. (05/13/19) (10/01/20)

(a) **Policy.** It is the policy of the city that the proper operation of democratic government requires that:

(1) public employees be independent and impartial, and responsible only to the people of the city;

(2) governmental decisions and policy be made using the proper procedures of the governmental structure;

(3) no member of City Council, City Manager, Deputy City Manager, City Secretary, department heads, or deputy department heads of the city shall have a substantial financial interest in any contract with the city or be substantially interested in the sale to the city of any land, materials, supplies or services; except as provided by the City Charter in subsection 132(d). City Charter subsection 132(d) states the prohibition shall not apply to the acquisition of easements for right-of-way for public purpose when fair market value is established and paid for the acquisition. For purposes of this provision, substantial interest is established when:

- the official owns 10% or more of the total voting stock or shares of the business entity;
- the official owns either 10% or more or \$15,000 or more of the fair market value of the business entity;
- the official received more than 10% of [the official's](#) gross income for the previous year from the business entity, or;
- a relative of the official within the second degree by consanguinity or affinity has any of the preceding interests.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

(See Section 132 – Burleson City Charter)

(4) no employee or applicant for employment be delinquent in the payment of taxes or other payment due the city. Any person who becomes delinquent is ineligible to serve the city in any capacity for which compensation is paid if the delinquency continues after reasonable notification and opportunity to pay (see Section 132 - Burleson City Charter).

(b) Ethical Standards. In order to maintain the public trust in city government, an employee of the city shall not:

(1) accept or solicit a benefit that might reasonably tend to influence the employee in the discharge of the employee's official duties;

(2) use the employee's official position to secure special privileges or exemptions for the employee or others;

(3) grant any special consideration, treatment or advantage to a person or organization beyond that which is available to every other person or organization. This shall not prohibit the granting of fringe benefits to city employees as a part of their employment or as an added incentive to the recruitment or retention of employees.

(4) disclose information that could adversely affect the property or affairs of the city, or directly or indirectly, use any information understood to be confidential which was gained by reason of city employment for the employee's own personal gain or benefit or for the private interest of others;

(5) transact any business on behalf of the city in the employee's official capacity with any business entity with which the employee is an officer, agent, or member or in which the employee has a financial interest. In the event that such a circumstance should arise, then they shall make known their interest, and turn the matter over to their superior for reassignment, state the reasons for doing so and have nothing further to do with the matter involved;

(6) personally provide services for compensation, directly or indirectly, to a person or organization who is requesting an approval, investigation, or determination from the department of which the employee is a member in a decision making position;

(7) accept other employment or engage in outside activities incompatible with the full and proper discharge of the employee's duties and responsibilities with the city, or which might impair the employee's independent judgment in the performance of the employee's public duty;

- (8) receive any fee or compensation for services as an employee of the city from any source other than the city, except as may be otherwise provided by law. This shall not prohibit an employee from performing the same or other services for a public or private organization that are performed for the city if there is no conflict with the employee's city duties and responsibilities;
- (9) knowingly perform or refuse to perform any act in order to deliberately thwart the execution of city ordinances, rules, or regulations or the achievement of official city programs;
- (10) use city supplies, equipment or facilities for any purpose other than the conduct of official city business without proper authorization; or
- (11) engage in any dishonest or criminal act or any other conduct prejudicial to the government of the city or that reflects discredit upon the government of the city.
- (12) when in a management or supervisory position, engage in any outside business ventures with a subordinate employee within their chain of command or have an intimate, amorous or romantic relationship with a subordinate employee within their chain of command that (a) compromises (or is perceived to compromise) the manager's or supervisor's ability to objectively perform their job duties or (b) demonstrably has a negative effect on the work environment and operations of the City. For specific requirements, see the Employee Business Relationships and Workplace Relationships sections in the Standards of Conduct Chapter.

(c) **Gifts policy. (05/13/19)**

- (1) Prohibition. Except where otherwise allowed by law, employees are prohibited from soliciting, accepting or agreeing to accept a gift or benefit from any person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association which transacts or solicits business of any type with the city.

Section 133 of the City Charter provides that, "During term of office of a member of the city council or while employed with the city except as may be authorized by state law or ordinance, a member of the city council or employee of the city shall not accept a gift, favor, benefit, nor employment from any corporation, contractor, or franchise who conducts business with the city or a person the officer or employee knows to be subject to regulation, inspection, or investigation by the officer, employee, or his agency. Any officer or employee of the city who violates the provisions of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor and may be punished by a fine that may be prescribed by ordinance for this offense, and upon conviction shall immediately forfeit office or employment."

(2) **Required Protocol:** At any time an employee is offered a gift or token of appreciation from a citizen, company, or any other person in contact with the city, the employee is required to report the offering to the employee's manager. It will be decided by the appropriate director if such a gift is appropriate or is in any fashion considered of greater than nominal value. In addition, the director is bound to use discretion in discerning if public perception would in any way be affected by accepting the gift, regardless of value. If the director is uncertain, the director should discuss the matter with the City Manager's office before allowing the employee(s) to accept the offered gift.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: he/she

(d) **Tips/Gratuities:** Tips given to an employee engaged in serving food or beverages to customers at the Hidden Creek Golf Course or in providing any other individualized service related to approved golf course activities are permissible. Golf course employees are expected to communicate with golf course management to fully comply with the standards set by city management regarding tips.

(e) Employees will review the conflict of interest statement upon hire. A reminder notice will be sent on an annual basis in which employees are expected to review and report if any conflict of interest arrangements (i.e. outside employment) have been (or are being) performed. See Conflict of Interest policy for more details.

4.9 Political Activity.

The city encourages its employees to fully exercise their constitutional rights as citizens to vote and participate in political activities. Except as may be otherwise provided by law, the following restrictions on political activity shall apply to all city employees.

(a) An employee who becomes a candidate for election to the Burlleson city council must take an unpaid leave of absence during the campaign or resign from city employment.

Deleted: his/her

(b) If an employee is elected to the Burlleson City Council, the employee will be considered to have voluntarily resigned their employment, and it will be considered a resignation in good standing.

Deleted: he/she

(c) City employees are permitted to hold office in other jurisdictions (i.e. other Cities, school boards, Counties, etc.) as long as such office does not pose a conflict of interest related to their job duties, authority, work hours, or other related aspects of employment. Managers and Supervisors may be prohibited from holding some offices in which such an arrangement would impair the employee's ability to conduct the duties of office and the duties of employment without a potential conflict of interest or perception of impropriety. Employees in such positions are expected to contact the appropriate director or the City Manager to discuss the circumstances prior to running for or accepting office.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

- (d) City employees shall not perform or be involved in political activities, campaigning, or related activities on behalf of or against any candidate for public office or any referendum or petition on a public issue in any jurisdiction during working hours.
- (e) City employees shall not use city owned equipment, vehicles, computers, uniforms, insignia, city letterhead, or other property on behalf of or against any candidate for public office or any referendum or petition on a public issue in any jurisdiction.
- (f) City employees shall not use their official authority or influence on behalf of or against any candidate for public office or any referendum or petition on a public issue in any jurisdiction. This includes no use of official city logo or letterhead on correspondence related to political activity. In addition, an employee shall not use their job title for the purpose of influencing any political decisions.
- (g) Any employee who is appointed to a board, commission, committee, or task force of a political nature should fulfill such duties of office on [the employee's](#) own personal time, and [the employee](#) is expected to make every effort (real and perceived) to separate the duties of office and the duties of employment.

Deleted: his/her
Deleted: he/she

4.10 Outside employment. (revised 01/01/13) (10/01/20)

- (a) Though employees are allowed to have additional employment other than the City of Burleson, employees are responsible for assuring this employment does not create a Conflict of Interest (see the Conflict of Interest Policy in the Standards of Conduct Chapter)
- (b) If at any time the employee engages in outside employment that is deemed to create a conflict of interest, [the employee](#) is subject to disciplinary action.
- (c) It is the responsibility of the employee to communicate with the department management and Human Resources regarding any outside employment that may be problematic. The Request for Outside Employment form should be completed and reviewed for approval then retained in the employee's personnel record.

Deleted: he/she

4.11 Possession of Weapons. (10/01/21)

- (a) **Weapons.** Employees (other than a peace officer) are prohibited from carrying any weapon on a city work site, even though the employee may be authorized by the State of Texas to carry a handgun. Any exceptions to this requirement will require approval of the City Manager.
- (b) Persons who are authorized by the State of Texas to carry a handgun and have a weapon in their personal vehicle are required to keep the vehicle locked anytime it is parked on City property or at a City worksite or event.

Deleted: 2022

(c) Definition. For purposes of this policy, a "city work site" means all buildings or portions of buildings owned, leased, or otherwise controlled by the city, other assigned work locations, and city owned vehicles and equipment.

4.12 Workplace Violence.

Deleted: ¶

(a) **Prohibition.** The city prohibits any acts or threats of violence by any citizen, visitor, customer, volunteer, employee, or former employee against any other person in or about the city facilities or work sites.

(b) **Employee responsibility.** Employees have a duty to warn or notify the appropriate management personnel and the police department if they become aware of or suspect any workplace activity, situation, or incident that could lead to a violent confrontation. This would include threats, acts of violence, aggressive behavior, or offensive acts or comments. Employee reports made pursuant to this policy will be held in confidence to the maximum extent possible. Retaliation, in any form, against an employee who makes a report under this policy, will not be tolerated.

(c) **Supervisor responsibility.** Supervisors must remain alert to behavior that indicates a person is under excessive stress, is contemplating violent action, or is otherwise unduly disturbed. Supervisors must take seriously, reports from employees concerning potential violence and, when they arise, discuss them with the Department Director, the Deputy City Manager, the City Manager, or the director of Human Resources.

(d) **Management Crisis Team.** In the event of serious actions or threats against individuals or the city, the city's management crisis team may be assembled to take responsibility for handling the situation, including ensuring the safety of the workplace, determining the effect of the incident on the workplace and coordinating appropriate actions in response to the incident. The crisis team will be composed of the City Manager, the Deputy City Manager, the chief of police, the director of Human Resources and the director of the affected department, and other individuals needed as determined by the City Manager (i.e. fire chief, etc.).

(e) **Disciplinary action.** If violent acts or threats are committed by an employee of the city, depending on the nature of the acts or threats, action taken may include suspension to allow time for fact finding, written warning or other disciplinary action up to and including termination.

(f) **Documentation.** Any materials relevant to the incident are to be placed in the keeping of the director of Human Resources who will be responsible for maintaining a complete and detailed log of events.

(g) **Media communications.** All communications with the news media concerning a workplace violence incident will be handled by the City Manager or designee, in

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

coordination with the Public Information Officer, chief of police and the city's legal counsel.

- (h) **Threats:** Threats of physical violence will be taken seriously and will be subject to the same disciplinary procedures and consequences (up to an including suspension without pay or termination) as actual acts of violence.

4.13 **Relations with City Council.**

Employees are expected to be respectful, courteous, and cooperative with the mayor and council members and to do all that is possible to answer their questions. Article III, Section 26(b) of the city charter provides that "...except for the purpose of inquiry the city council and its members shall deal with the administrative service of the city solely through the City Manager and neither the city council nor any council member shall give orders to a subordinate of the City Manager, either publicly or privately."

Deleted: ¶
¶

4.14 **Employee Business Relationships.**

- (a) **With Supervisors.** An employee shall not engage in private employment or business with the employee's supervisor which may adversely affect the normal employee and supervisor working relationship. This prohibition includes the lending of money, the co-signing of bank notes, or any other activity that will distort the accuracy or objectivity of performance evaluations.

- (b) **Small loans.** This policy is not intended to prevent employees from aiding a fellow employee for lunch or gasoline expenses not to exceed \$25.00 loaned not more than once a month.

4.15 **Tobacco in the Workplace. (revised 03/12/12)**

- (a) **Background:** According to the U.S. Government's Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, tobacco use leads to disease and is the leading preventable cause of death. Smoking tobacco products produces "second hand smoke" which credible studies have linked to disease in persons who are not smokers themselves. For these reasons, use of any tobacco products by any employees is strongly discouraged at all times out of concern for (a) the health of employees, their loved ones, and their fellow citizens and (b) the negative impact of tobacco usage by employees on the city's health insurance costs. Employees who would like assistance in quitting tobacco are encouraged to contact their physician or Human Resources

- (b) **Prohibitions:** In an effort to preserve the health of non-smokers, protect private and public property and the public's investment in buildings and equipment owned by the city, employees are prohibited from smoking (or possessing a burning tobacco product).

Deleted: 2022

- (1) inside a building owned, operated, leased, or managed by the city or within 20 feet of an entrance to or exit from said building(s).
- (2) inside or on a vehicle owned or leased by the city;
- (3) at any location while on duty in which smoking (or possessing a burning a tobacco product);
- (4) causes, or could cause, injury to any person or damage to property, or
- (5) exposes a person of ordinary sensibilities to second hand smoke.

- (c) **Permissible Usage:** Employees who use tobacco during working hours must do so:
- (1) during their lunch break or at other such times as their departmental Director may allow, provided said usage is in compliance with the Tobacco in the Workplace policy and
 - (2) in a responsible manner, complying with all applicable ordinances and laws, and with respect for the environment as well as the health, safety, and welfare of fellow employees and the public.

4.16 Fitness for Duty.

(a) Employees may be required to submit to a fitness for duty exam if the Director, Manager, or Supervisor has reason to believe that the employee is unfit to perform essential functions and the employee's presence at the workplace may place the employee or others at risk of injury or harm. This will be required if the Department Director has reason to believe that the physical condition of the employee could result in danger to persons or property or that the physical condition interferes with normal work performance.

Deleted: his/her

(b) The initial exam to determine fitness may be done by the employee's physician with documentation providing clearance to work. If, however, it is in the City's best interest, the employee may be required to be examined by a City designated physician/clinic. If the employee and physician find a medical condition that requires additional medical treatment, tests, or follow-up, medical expenses will be the responsibility of the employee. Fitness for Duty exams are for the sole purpose of assuring an employee is safe in the work place, and will be conducted only after careful analysis by senior management, Human Resources and the City Manager's office.

Deleted: he/she

4.17 Animals or Pets in the Workplace. (01/01/13)

(a) Personal animals or pets brought to the workplace by employees need to be approved by the appropriate Director. Any animal brought to the job site should have the appropriate vaccinations, and employees may be required to show current vaccination records upon request. Further, employees will be required to sign a liability waiver

Deleted: 2022

holding the City harmless in the event that any person is injured or any property is destroyed by a visiting pet or animal.

- (b) Employees should be mindful of any person who may be uncomfortable around visiting pets or animals. Further employee and visitor allergies may prohibit the visit of some animals to the department.

4.18 Workplace Relationships. (01/01/19)

(a) The City encourages employees to build camaraderie and become effective team members. However, certain personal relationships can erode that camaraderie, create division among the team, expose the city to liability, and negatively affect the efficiency and effectiveness of City business operations. In keeping with the requirements of the Standards of Conduct Chapter and Conflicts of Interest sections, employees must not allow their personal relationships to create a conflict of interest that demonstrably affects, in a negative way, the City's operations or the City's workforce.

(b) Certain Personal Relationships Prohibited:

- (1) An intimate, amorous or romantic relationship that demonstrably exists between a management or supervisory level employee and their subordinate within their chain of command, whether on or off duty, is prohibited. A "subordinate" is an employee in lower rank or position that (a reasonable person of ordinary sensibilities would believe) is within the manager's or supervisor's span of control and influence.
- (2) Disclosure Required: Should any manager or supervisor be involved in (or wish to become involved in) an intimate, amorous, or romantic relationship with a subordinate, it is the duty of the manager or supervisor to immediately report the relationship to their direct report and to the Director of Human Resources.
- (3) Disciplinary Action: A manager or supervisor who fails to report an intimate, amorous, or romantic personal relationship as required or chooses to continue such relationship after being directed to terminate the relationship faces disciplinary action up to (and including) termination of employment.
- (4) Remedial Action: Provided the relationship is disclosed as required, when possible, the City Manager may choose to take action to preserve the employment of the parties involved while eliminating the conflict created by the relationship. Such resolution must be fair and equitable to all parties involved and be in the best interest of the City, as such is determined by the City Manager.

4.19 Cell Device Usage and Allowance. (10/01/20)

(a) It is the policy of the City of Burlison to provide cellular telephones to designated employees, or an allowance for employees to purchase and maintain such devices, in

order to improve productivity, enhance customer service to our citizens, and/or to enhance public safety services.

It is also the policy of the City to maintain the right to access and disclose any and all messages communicated through electronic means when City-owned equipment is used, or communication is used to communicate City related business.

Decisions regarding the use of City cellular telephones or an allowance, which are not explicitly stated herein will be left to the discretion of Human Resources, as authorized by City Management. Purchasing will administer, provide guidance on, and assure compliance with the features of this policy.

(b) Applicability.

Departments which use cellular telephones, or which have cellular telephones assigned to vehicles or positions instead of individuals, may develop departmental policies and procedures and/or regulations, which provide greater direction to their employees, as long as that direction is consistent with this policy.

(c) Eligibility and Other Criteria.

The Human Resources Department, as approved by City Management, will maintain the list of all designated eligible positions with job functions that require access to a cellular telephone and text messaging along with the approved allowance rate tier. Eligible positions and allowance rates as a part of this policy are subject to change. Annual allowance tiers are calculated and paid out each pay period in payroll.

Employees are ineligible to receive an allowance if they use a City-owned device.

(d) Responsibilities.

(1) City Management is responsible for:

i. Approving positions eligible for cellular devices and allowance rates.

(2) Human Resources, Purchasing, and Department Directors are responsible for:

i. Ensuring that all persons assigned a city-owned cellular telephone, or allowance, are provided access to a copy of this policy, and that the individual is in compliance with it;

ii. Conducting periodic inventories of cellular telephones and other wireless Communications devices within their respective departments to ensure accountability;

iii. Conducting annual reviews of assigned devices to determine if such assignments continue to be justified; and

iv. Informing appropriate employees responsible for city communications of all reassignments of cellular telephones and/or other wireless personal communications devices.

- (3) Department Directors or their designees are responsible for:
 - i. Requesting and issuing devices as approved and timely collecting devices when no longer needed.
 - ii. Timely notifying Human Resources when an allowance needs to begin, be discontinued, or updated rate tier based on an approved position change and eligible allowance for that position in accordance with this policy.
- (4) Human Resources is responsible for:
 - i. Timely entry of allowance changes as submitted.
- (5) Employees who are assigned the use of city-owned cellular telephones or other wireless communications devices are responsible for the following:
 - i. Ensuring the physical security of such devices;
 - ii. Maintenance and operation
 - iii. Ensuring that any personal information is not saved, or used on the device.
- (6) Employees who receive an allowance to provide payment toward the cost of cellular telephone service and associated taxes are responsible for the following:
 - i. Ensuring the security of all business-related messaging is communicated through the application the City is utilizing for retention purposes.
 - ii. Maintaining constant, uninterrupted service; and
 - iii. Notifying Human Resources and Purchasing of any changes to the cellular phone number.

(e) Authorized Usage and General Statements on Use of Wireless Communications Devices.

- (1) Use of a log-on or password does not imply any right to employee privacy of communication.
- (2) On city-owned wireless communications devices, the City or department reserves the right to monitor and record communications traffic at any time, without notice to any employee. In addition, the City reserves the right to monitor and record communications flowing through a City owned server, without notice to any employee, regardless of the ownership of the device used.
- (3) City-owned cellular telephones and other wireless communications devices are intended primarily for City business with personal use kept to a minimum. Incidental personal use should not increase direct costs to the city, interfere with efficient operations or productivity, be used for the benefit of outside employment or other financial business interests, discredit the city, or violate any other conduct standards including policies against inappropriate behaviors, harassment, discrimination, and improper social media use.

Inappropriate use of city-owned devices will be considered misconduct, resulting in possible disciplinary action, up to and including termination. An employee may also be held responsible for any resulting costs to the City if applicable.

Deleted: ¶

- (4) Employees must notify Purchasing immediately if a city-owned device, or personal device connected to the City network, is lost or stolen. If a device that is connected to the network via e-mail or other applications is lost or stolen, Purchasing reserves the right to remotely wipe the device of all data.
- (5) Employees that are not required to use their personal wireless communication device, but voluntarily opt to communicate city business using such personal device, must retain all city communication as required by law and the City's record retention schedule (including voice mail, text messages, emails using a personal account, etc.). Employees must be able to produce any city communications on personal devices upon request. Employees may routinely save copies of city communications and provide to department records retention designees or as budget allows, install and utilize the City application for recordkeeping of city communications.

(f) Disclosure of Information.

The City will disclose the contents of retrievable wireless communication messages, upon receipt of a valid court order or legal request, including Public Information (open records) requests. This may include business-related messages that are sent or received from a personal device. The City may disclose the contents of retrievable wireless communication messages if the information will assist in official internal or criminal investigations.

Deleted:Section Break (Next Page).....

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 5: Disciplinary Action, Appeals, and Grievance Procedures. (01/01/19)

5.1 Discipline. (01/01/19)

(a) Policy. It is the policy of the city that before the imposition of discipline, the following measures should be taken in the interest of ensuring that the department director has all necessary information, and in the interest of ensuring that mistakes in judgment are not made due to a lack of information. In all cases the Human Resources Director, City Manager or Deputy City Manager will be notified by the department director or department manager prior to suspensions without pay, demotion, or termination of employment in order to assure all documentation is in proper order before taking action. It is recognized that it may occasionally be necessary to terminate an employee without progressing through lesser disciplinary levels due to the severity of the circumstances.

(b) Due to the severe nature of events that can occur in the workplace, the supervisor, manager, or director may have a need to immediately clear the work-site. Management may send an employee home effective immediately on a suspension with pay if doing so would be in the best interest of employee safety or in order to restore a professional work environment. Management should tell the employee what time to report back to work for further discussion of the incident and secure a phone number where the employee can be reached before sending the employee home.

Deleted: He/She

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: him/her

(c) Types of discipline. The severity of a violation and the appropriate counseling may be determined by the department director, Human Resources Director and City Manager. The following guidelines are used when considering types of discipline:

(1) Verbal reprimand (documented) is best suited to the first occurrence of a minor rule infraction, incident of substandard performance, or after continued issues of a minor infraction following informal coaching. The supervisor will compose a memo providing an explanation of incident details, expectations, and consequences for future problems. A record of this counseling should be maintained by the supervisor and the Human Resources Department (in the employee's personnel file). Note: Written notes the supervisor makes for their own files to record informal coaching are not required to be sent to the HR Department, but may be shared if issues continue.

(2) Written reprimand is used for the repeated instances of a minor offense or a first occurrence of a more serious incident. The written reprimand is a memo used as a formal warning of suspension or dismissal should the violation recur. The supervisor will compose a memo providing an explanation of incident details, expectations, and consequences for future

Deleted: 2022

problems. A record of this counseling will be maintained by the supervisor and the Human Resources Department (in the employee's personnel file). A documented Performance Improvement Plan is a form of a written reprimand.

- (3) Suspension without pay is used to bring about a change in behavior. The employee is encouraged to use the time away from the workplace to decide whether the employee wishes to correct the behavior or seek employment elsewhere. The length of time for the suspension is determined by the director and is reflective of the seriousness of the circumstances. A written memo will be provided as described in #2 above.
 - (4) Administrative leave may be with or without pay during the investigation, hearing or trial of the employee in any civil matter, on any criminal charge, or for any city policy violation when it is in the best interest of the city.
 - (5) Demotion is an appropriate disciplinary action for a flagrant disregard or violation of personnel rules or policies, or for repeated refusal or inability to improve performance. This action may be taken by a department director after consultation with the director of human resources. Documentation will be signed by both parties and retained in the employee's personnel file. Demotions may be permanent or for a specified period of time. Demotion may be accomplished by reducing an employee's pay within the classification of the position held, by assigning the employee to a position of a lower classification, or both. It is noted that the City of Burlison is not obligated to demote an employee in order to continue the employment relationship.
 - (6) Termination. A director, after consultation with the director of human resources or City Manager, may terminate an employee in accordance with these policies. A written memo will be provided as described above.
- (d) Procedures and notices. The procedures for a disciplinary action including reprimand, suspension, demotion, or termination include the following:
- (1) Suspension, demotion and termination. A department director has the authority to suspend, demote or terminate an employee following review of documentation by the Human Resources Director, City Manager, or Deputy City Manager. When one of these disciplinary actions is taken, the employee should be given written notice stating:
 - (A) the type of disciplinary action taken;
 - (B) the rule violated;

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: 2022

- (C) the specific acts of the employee which were in violation of the rule or are considered unacceptable;
- (D) the expectations from the employee for the future, and
- (E) the consequences if the employee makes a choice not to follow the directive.

5.2 Employee Grievance-Guideline

In the interest of employee efficiency and morale, employees have the opportunity to discuss grievances with their employer after decisions are made or actions occur that present a problem. In order to ensure this opportunity, the City has adopted the following protocols:

- (a) Purpose: The purpose of this procedure shall be to settle matters on as low an administrative level as possible, as soon as possible after the applicable event, and to discover, whenever possible, mutually satisfactory solutions to problems which arise.
- (b) Grievance Defined: an allegation that an employee's employment conditions or protected rights have been adversely affected. Example grievances, if unresolved within the department management include (but not limited to);
 - (1) hours of work/schedule,
 - (2) procedures,
 - (3) daily operations,
 - (4) department specific rules,
 - (5) performance evaluations,
 - (6) discriminatory application of a policy or rule,
 - (7) general treatment that rises to the level of a hostile work environment,
 - (8) disagreements among employees that have not been resolved within the department,
 - (9) disciplinary actions taken (including termination),
 - (10) discrimination or harassment based upon a protected right
 - (11) retaliation for participation in an investigation or filing a grievance
- (c) Probationary and Temporary Employees: Probationary and temporary employees may not use this procedure in cases involving their performance evaluation or termination. However, in cases where the employee considers performance evaluations or termination to be improperly based upon one of the employees' s protected rights [age, sex, race, religion, national origin, disability, pregnancy, military service status or harassment (including sexual harassment)], the employee has the right to file a grievance for consideration.

(d) Unlawful Discrimination/Harassment Grievance: Any employee who feels that they have been unlawfully discriminated against or harassed in matters relating to working conditions or other conditions of employment, because of the employee's age, sex (includes gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, pregnancy), race, religion, national origin, disability, pregnancy, military service status, or harassment (including sexual harassment) shall have the right to file a grievance directly with human resources or the City Manager. Employees are encouraged to provide a copy of the complaint to the appropriate director. If the director is the person creating the problem, providing a copy of the written complaint to the director is the employee's option.

Deleted: he or she has

(e) Harassment and Sexual Harassment: If an employee feels the employee is subject to harassment (including sexual harassment), an immediate report should be made in order to rectify the problem as soon as possible. Harassment of any kind is strictly prohibited at the City of Burleson.

Deleted: he/she

5.3 Employee Grievance Procedure (10/01/23)

The following procedure will be followed in the event an employee elects to present a grievance.

(a) Timely Initiation: In order to be considered, grievances will be filed promptly after the situation occurs. Grievances must be presented to the employee's immediate supervisor within ten business days from the occurrence, or from the time the employee first became aware (or with the exercise of reasonable diligence should have become aware) of its occurrence. The requirement of presentation of a grievance within ten days may be waived in the case of harassment or discrimination based upon protected rights, at the discretion of the City Manager, Deputy City Manager, or Human Resources Director. Reasons for waiving the ten-day requirement will be documented and become a part of the grievance records.

Deleted: working

(b) Procedural Step One: Oral Presentation
Grievances should be initially presented orally to the employee's immediate supervisor. The grievance will be thoroughly discussed in this step by the parties concerned in order that every effort can be made to resolve the matter to the mutual satisfaction of the employee(s) and supervisor. If resolution does not occur, the employee has the option to file a formal written grievance as explained below.

Discrimination and harassment grievances (as defined above) are to be taken directly to the Human Resources Department and/or City Manager (see 5.2).

Deleted: 2022

(c) Procedural Step Two: Written Presentation

If verbal discussions do not resolve the matter, the employee has the option to file a formal written grievance with the employee's director. This must be done within ten working days after the discussion with the immediate supervisor.

Though employees are encouraged to make a written report, the employee has the option to report violation(s) of protected rights verbally. Every effort will be made to work with the employee to prepare a written summary of the concerns, if the employee has not already prepared a written report.

- Deleted: he/she
- Deleted: has
- Deleted: the
- Deleted: he/she

In presenting the written grievance the following information should be stated with reasonable clarity in the written report:

- The identity of the employee making the complaint (name, title, department).
- The nature of the complaint (what happened?).
- The dates in which the problem occurred (or as reasonably close to the date as possible).
- The names of other parties involved, if known.
- The outcome or remedy the employee is seeking. What corrective action is requested?
- The complaint / grievance will be signed and dated.

The director shall meet with the employee and the employee's immediate supervisor, Department Manager, and any other member of management necessary to discuss the matter thoroughly. The decision of the director will be presented in writing to the employee within ten business days of the signed and dated grievance.

- Deleted: working

(d) Procedural Step Three: Final Resolution.

If the employee is not satisfied with the resolution of the matter related to a grievance, the employee has ten business days to file further appeal to the City Manager. At the City Manager's discretion, a review committee may be appointed to review further details related to the grievance. Appointed committee members may include legal counsel, other directors, or employees as appropriate to achieve a resolution to the grievance.

- Deleted: he/she
- Deleted: working

Further, the City Manager may simply review the initial complaint, related documentation, and discuss the matter with others as needed making a final determination. If the City Manager feels it is prudent, the City Manager may elect to meet with the employee filing the grievance. A request for an appeal does not automatically result in a meeting with the City Manager.

- Deleted: he/she

- Deleted: 2022

At any stage, the City Manager may review the decision of Directors, request more information, speak with parties involved, or issue another appropriate decision that brings the matter to a close. The decision of the City Manager is considered final, and will be submitted to the employee within ten days of receiving an appeal request.

5.4 Attendees at Grievance Meetings:

City employees and other persons who were directly involved with a grievance are the only persons authorized to be present at grievance related meetings. Though spouses, friends, other family members, or attorneys may join the employee to the meeting, they are required to wait outside the meeting room during meetings/hearings.

5.5 Administrative Notes:

(a) Documentation related grievances will be maintained in the Human Resources Director's files and retained in accordance with required records retention of such investigations. Should a complaint or grievance result in disciplinary action of any employee, the disciplinary memo will be filed in the employee's personnel file.

(b) If the Director of Human Resources determines that an employee is abusing the grievance procedure, [the Director of Human Resources](#) will provide the grievant with written notice of the finding and the basis for the finding and shall take appropriate action.

Deleted: he/she

(c) Grievances against directors: In the event that an employee's immediate supervisor is the director and [the director](#) is the subject of the complaint or grievance, the employee should submit the complaint directly to the Human Resources Director and City Manager.

Deleted: he/she

(d) Failure to Follow Procedures: Failure of an employee to follow the procedures set out above, or failure to appear at meeting(s) related to the grievance, shall result in the loss of further appeal rights by the employee.

(e) Time Limits: Time limits specified in this procedure may be lengthened if necessary due to holidays, vacations, sick leave, or other similar reasonable delays. The Human Resources Director will make appropriate adjustments if needed for unusual circumstances.

(f) Failure to Answer Grievance: If a grievance is not answered within the time limits as specified, the employee may proceed to the next step in the process.

(g) Reprisal or Retaliation: An employee will not be retaliated against or experience any form of reprisal or discipline for exercising [the employee's](#) good faith efforts under this policy. If the employee believes [the employee](#) is [being](#) retaliated against during or as

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: 2022

a result of this process, the employee will report this to the Human Resources Department or the City Manager immediately.

Deleted: he/she

(h) Effect of Procedure: The existence of and access to this procedure shall not constitute any limitation on the rights of the City of Burleson to manage its affairs. All employees hold their positions at the will and pleasure of the City.

(i) Failure to Follow Procedures: Failure of an employee to follow the procedures set out above, or failure to appear at a EEO Grievance Committee meeting shall result in the loss of further appeal rights by the employee.

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 6: Vacation, Sick, Leave of Absence, and Other Absence from Work.
Revised (01/01/13) (10/01/14) (12/31/15) (11/15/16)
(02/13/18) (03/28/18) (01/01/19) (10/01/20)(10/01/21)(10/01/23)

Deleted: ;

All paid time off/leave benefits are not considered hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime. Employees may not take unpaid leave when they have a paid leave benefit or applicable paid leave balance available where policy provisions allow for the benefit to be used for the employee's absence reason (excludes unpaid suspension, unpaid administrative leave, or when the employee is on short/long term disability). An exiting employee, resigning or retiring from the city, may not extend their last day of employment with the city using paid or unpaid leave except in the event of the employee being on an approved administrative leave or a medical leave of absence where the employee is unable to return to work.

6.1 Holidays (excluding Golf and Public Safety Non-Administrative First Responder Shift employees; policies for those work groups are included in this section separately).
(10/01/20)(10/01/2023)

Deleted: does not include

Deleted:

Deleted: see below for Golf

Deleted: y

(a) Worked holiday. As many employees as possible shall be given each holiday off without loss of pay. Employees required to work on the holiday shall be paid as follows:

(1) Full-time: employees will be paid for the holiday plus all hours worked, unless the time off for the holiday is rescheduled for another regularly scheduled workday. If the full-time employee does not work on the designated holiday, they will get paid only for the holiday. A rescheduled holiday must be used within 60 days or be forfeited.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: s

(2) Part-time: regular part-time employees working year-round will be eligible to earn holiday pay after five years of service at the Director's discretion. If awarded holiday pay, the employee will earn four hours of holiday pay if the facility is closed for a holiday and the employee does not work.

(3) The department director makes the final decision regarding granting holiday pay or rescheduling the holiday.

(4) Seasonal and temporary employees are not eligible for holiday pay benefit.

Deleted: ; no

(b) Holiday value:

- Fire (2912 shift) - 12 hours
- All Others (2080 shift) – 8 hours

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

(1) Non-exempt employees scheduled to work more hours than the value listed above will need to either use compensatory time or vacation time to account for the full scheduled day. Upon Director approval, employees may work a different schedule in order to make up the time if it occurs in the same week as the holiday.

Deleted: Each designated holiday will be valued as follows.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"

Deleted: below

Deleted: 2022

(c) Loss of holiday pay. An employee will not receive pay for a holiday if the employee is:

- (1) terminating employment with the city, and the last day as a paid employee is the work day before or the day of a paid holiday (the last day of employment cannot be a paid holiday);
- (2) on unpaid leave the work day before or following the paid holiday; or
- (3) absent without approved leave on a holiday when the employee is scheduled to work.

Deleted: Holiday Values are:¶
Non-Public Safety; 8 hours¶
Fire (those who work a 16 and 8 shift); 12 hours¶
Police; 8, 9, or 10 hours (based on required shift)¶

Deleted: . ¶

Deleted: a

(d) Holidays designated. The following days are the official paid holidays for the city:

- (1) New Year's Day (January 1);
- (2) Martin Luther King Day (3rd Monday in January)
- (3) Memorial Day / September 11th Remembrance (Fourth Monday in May);
- (4) Independence Day (July 4);
- (5) Labor Day (First Monday in September);
- (6) Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November);
- (7) Day after Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Friday in November);
- (8) Christmas Eve (December 24);
- (9) Christmas Day (December 25);
- (10) Personal holiday (1)

(e) Holidays will be reviewed on an annual basis by the City Manager. If a designated holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the City Manager will determine when the holiday will be observed. Holidays may be flexed to accommodate a four-day weekend during the Christmas Holiday week, if it is deemed advantageous by the City Manager. Appropriate announcements will be made as far in advance as possible, if such a change is made

Deleted: <#>Holidays may be flexed to accommodate a four-day weekend during the Christmas Holiday week, if it is deemed advantageous by the City Manager. Appropriate announcements will be made as far in advance as possible, if such a change is made.¶
<#>¶

Deleted: <#>h

Deleted: Those

Deleted: who desire

Deleted: Good Friday as their

Deleted: p

Deleted: h

Deleted: should be allowed to do so

Deleted: .

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.28", No bullets or numbering

Deleted: p

Deleted: h

Deleted: one work shift off

Deleted: 2022

(f) Personal Holiday.

(1) The use of the Personal Holiday will be coordinated through the Department Director, Department Manager (or their designee). Department Managers should make efforts to allow employees to use their Personal Holiday for a holiday of significance to the employee that is not on the list of closed office holidays where practical and does not create a continuity of operations issue. Denial of a religious or generally recognized non-religious holiday should not occur unless there has been unsuccessful efforts made to allow it and consultation with Human Resources showing there is a serious hardship for the department or work group.

(2) Maximum value of the Personal Holiday is equal to the holiday values in 6.1(b).

(3) The Personal Holiday can be used in partial day increments, depending on Department Director/manager approval and business needs of the department.

(4) All Personal Holidays will be forfeited on September 30th each year if not used during the prior fiscal year (October-September).

Deleted: p

Deleted: H

(5) Part-time employees: The Directors may elect to grant the Personal Holiday to the regular part-time employees (does not include seasonal or temporary) in their department. 4 hours (or 50%) will be granted, if approved. If the holiday is granted to one regular part-time employee, it should be consistently granted to all regular part-time in that Department. It is the Director's responsibility to notify Human Resources if the part-time employees will be granted the personal holiday in their area.

Deleted: rs

(6) The Personal Holiday is not paid when an employee leaves the City of Burleson employment.

(g) Golf Holiday Plan: Employees of the Hidden Creek Golf Course (HCGC) will follow the holiday plan as listed below:

(1) The full-time and part-time employees of the Hidden Creek Golf Course will earn 10 paid holidays each year. The following holiday pay plan goes into effect on October 1, 2007 (as revised 7/1/2010) for all full-time and part-time paid employees, based upon holidays approved by City Council for each fiscal year (October – September).

(2) Benefit:

(A) Full-time Golf employees will be credited with 56 hours of holiday pay at the beginning of the fiscal year. Time off requested (not for sick) will be deducted from holiday pay.

(B) Part-time Golf employees with benefits will be credited with 4 hours of Holiday leave time for each city holiday which occurs during the time they are employed with the City (maximum 40 hours annually), after six months of employment. Part time employees with benefits may utilize their holiday leave time in accordance with the terms of paragraphs 4-6 below.

(3) Designated Golf Holidays: Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Eve and Christmas Day will be designated holidays (included in the ten approved holidays), and the golf course will be closed.

Deleted: 2022

- (4) Employee Scheduled Holidays: The Golf course is closed for Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day. Employees will be required to schedule the seven remaining holidays with prior management approval. Employees will be expected to request the holidays off in writing in advance with a form as designated by the Director and should be used in increments of not less than four hours at a time. Advance approval of the time off is required. In general, no more than two holiday shifts may be used at one time.
- (5) Failure to schedule and use holidays: Holidays do not accumulate or carry over from year to year. Failure to use holidays by the established cut-off date, as set by Human Resources, will result in loss of the holiday benefit.
- (6) Holidays used in advance during the year the employee leaves the employment of the City of Burleson will deducted from available vacation hours when calculating the final paycheck.
- (7) New Hires: New, full-time employees will be allowed to schedule however many holidays remain on the actual city holiday calendar for the fiscal year once they join the organization. No holidays will be scheduled for the fiscal year for employees hired after July 4th each year. For example, an employee who joins the organization on May 15, will be allowed to schedule two holidays between hire date and September 30th of the same year.
- (8) Exiting Employees: Full time employees who leave the employment of the City prior to the end of the fiscal year (September 30th) and have used more holiday hours than have passed on the calendar, will have those excess hours deducted from their vacation balance.

(h) Public Safety Shift Employees Holiday Leave Plan (Fire, Police and Public Safety Communications): Non-administrative, first responder and/or shift employees of the public safety departments will have a holiday leave bank of hours in accordance with the policy as outlined below. Due to varying operational differences, each public safety department in conjunction with Human Resources will designate the work groups within the department that will have a holiday leave bank of hours versus using the established city observed closed office holiday schedule.

(1) Full-time employees will earn hours of holiday equivalent to the same number of paid holidays each calendar year observed by the City (including the personal holiday) multiplied by the holiday value for the employee in 6.1 (b), which is 12 hours for Fire on an annual 2912 schedule and 8 hours for all other employees on an annual 2080 schedule. Employees hired during the calendar year will be credited a prorated amount of holiday hours equivalent to the observed holidays remaining for the calendar year from the date of hire or

Deleted:
Deleted:

Deleted: 2022

transfer. Each department may establish in their department procedures if holiday leave time may be used in partial shift increments with a minimum usage, with the exception of FML. If holiday leave is being used for FML, holiday leave may be used in quarter hour increments.

(A) Public safety departments may require advanced scheduling of holidays and holiday leave for proper staffing plans.

(B) If requesting time off on an actual holiday or observed closed office holiday, holiday leave bank hours are required to be used first and will be deducted from the holiday leave bank, if holiday leave is not exhausted.

(C) If requesting holiday leave on another date, the holiday leave hours requested will be deducted from the holiday leave bank.

(D) Employees can request to be paid out for the holiday throughout the calendar year in lieu of scheduling to take the hours off. Employees can only request to be paid out throughout the year for a holiday at the time of the actual or closed office observed holiday. Lump sum holiday leave payout will only be made as outlined in 6.1 (h) (2) and (3).

(E) It is the responsibility of employees to accurately request and document the proper use of the holiday leave hours bank (i.e. paid out, taken on the holiday/closed office observed holiday, or scheduled for another day).

(2) End of Year Holiday Leave Balance: Holidays do not accumulate or carry over from year to year. Any remaining holiday leave balance that is not scheduled as time off or paid out at the time of the holiday will be paid to the employee at the end of the calendar year on the established pay out date.

(3) Exiting Employees: Employees who leave employment prior to the end of the year and have used more holiday hours than have passed on the calendar, will have those excess hours deducted from their vacation or compensatory time balance. Employees that leave employment with more holiday hours in their bank than what is left with holidays remaining in the year, will be paid out for the equivalent of holidays that had passed and were not taken or paid out. The equivalent holiday hours for the remaining, future holidays that have not occurred at the time the employee leaves the city are not eligible to be paid out. An employee cannot use their last date of employment as a paid or paid out holiday in accordance with paid leave provisions for exiting employees.

6.2 Vacation Leave. (revised 04/05/21) (10/01/21)

Deleted: Fire Department Holiday Plan: Shift personnel of the Burleson Fire Department will follow the holiday plan as listed below:¶

¶
The full-time and part-time shift (A, B, C shifts) employees of the Burleson Fire Department will earn 10 paid holidays each year. Each holiday is valued at 12 hours with a total annual bank of 120 hours (12 hours X 10 holidays). ¶

¶
Benefit: ¶
Full-time Fire shift employees will be credited with 120 hours of holiday pay at the beginning of the fiscal year. The Fire Department may require advanced scheduling of holidays for proper staffing plans.¶

¶
Part-time Fire shift personnel may be credited with 50% of the full-time benefit after six months of service, with the Fire Chief's approval. Part time employees with benefits may utilize their holiday leave time in accordance with the terms of paragraphs 4-6 below. ¶

¶
If requesting Holiday leave on another date, the Holiday leave time off must be requested in minimum 12 hour increments, and up to 24 hour increments are acceptable. Holiday leave hours requested will be deducted from holiday pay, and in lieu of scheduling a holiday for another calendar date, Fire shift personnel will be given the option to be paid for the holiday, if they work on the designated holiday. ¶

¶
It is the responsibility of the Fire personnel to accurately document the use of the holiday hours bank (paid when worked or scheduled for another day). ¶

¶
Failure to schedule and use holidays: Holidays do not accumulate or carry over from year to year. Failure to use holidays by the established cut-off date, as set by Human Resources, will result in loss of the holiday benefit.¶

¶
Holidays used in advance during the year the employee leaves the employment of the City of Burleson will be deducted from available vacation hours when calculating the final paycheck¶

¶
New Hires: New full time employees will be allowed to schedule however many holidays remain on the actual city holiday calendar for the fiscal year once they join the organization. No holidays will be scheduled for the fiscal year for employees hired after July 4th each year. For example, an employee who joins the organization on May 15, will be allowed to schedule two holidays between hire date and September 30th of the same year.¶

¶
Exiting Employees: Full time employees who leave the employment of the City prior to the end of the fiscal year (September 30th) and have used more holiday hours than have passed on the calendar, will have those excess hours deducted from their vacation balance. Employees that leave employment with more holiday hours in their bank than what is left with holidays remaining in the year, forfeit the holidays since holidays were made available for payout at the holiday, but were elected to be used. ¶

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 2022

(a) Eligibility. A full-time employee accrues vacation leave in accordance with this section, but vacation leave may not be taken until the employee has completed at least six months of service with satisfactory performance. Vacation leave does not vest during the first twelve months of employment, and vacation leave is forfeited if the employee terminates employment before completing twelve months of service.

(b) Vacation annual accrual, balance cap, and payout.

Non-Fire Shift Employees (working equivalent 8 hr shift or 40 hr work week):

Tenure with City Service (years)	Hours Accrued Per Year	Vacation Accrual Cap	Earned, Unused Maximum Paid Upon Exit
0-9	120	240	240
10-19	160	320	320
20 +	200	400	400

Fire Shift Employees (16 and 8 Shift {or 24 Hour Shift}):

Tenure with City Service (years)	Hours Accrued Per Year	Vacation Accrual Cap	Earned, Unused Maximum Paid Upon Exit
0-9	180	360	360
10-19	240	480	480
20+	300	600	600

- (1) Accruals are earned in per pay increments each pay period beginning from date of hire.
- (2) Accrual cap: the vacation leave balance is capped at two (2) times the annual accrual. Once the vacation leave balance reaches the cap, no more vacation time will accrue until vacation time is taken and the balance is below the cap. All hours accrued are available to be used while employed except during an unpaid disciplinary suspension or during the notice period (see payment upon separation below).
- (3) Employees who have a vacation leave overage bank from vacation leave policies prior to 04/05/2021, may use such vacation leave during their active employment with department approval as normal. Vacation overage for the policy change effective 04/05/2021 is a one-time only transfer of vacation leave hours just at the onset of the policy for earned, unused vacation hours within 6 months of the cap and hours over the cap, if applicable. Employees may use vacation time from their normal vacation bank or the overage bank in any order. Hours in vacation overage may be paid out upon exit provided the payout criteria

Deleted: ¶
¶
¶
¶
¶

Deleted: 2022

is met and the payout in both vacation banks combined do not exceed the maximum paid upon exit outlined in 6.2b. Following the payroll for paycheck dated 04/09/2021, calculations will be finalized for overage amounts, overage bank established and hours moved for each applicable employee, and employees notified.

- (4) Accrual of vacation hours will not occur during a pay period in which the employee is on disciplinary suspension without pay or for any periods where vacation leave has been exhausted ([excluding the last earned accrual on the pay date when accrued leave is exhausted](#)) and employee is on leave without pay status.
- (5) Payment upon separation. An employee who has completed at least twelve months of service with the city upon separation from employment and meets the separation requirements in the Employment Separation chapter, will be paid for accrued vacation leave in accordance with the maximum paid upon exit (see 6.2b). Vacation payout will be paid from the vacation leave bank first, then the vacation overage bank, if applicable, not to exceed in total the maximum paid upon exit limit. An employee may not extend their last date of active employment by taking vacation during a notice period for purposes to extend benefit coverage or use vacation overage that exceeds caps prior to policy change.

(c) Taking vacation leave.

(1) Vacation leave may be taken in the following increments:

- (a) Fire Shift – 12 Hour increments (0800-2000 or 2000-0800) except as follows:
 - i. Paid intermittent or reduced schedule leave under a qualified, approved FML reason may be taken in one hour increments.
 - ii. Short duration urgent/emergency leave can be approved by the staffing officer on a case by case basis depending on circumstances.
- (b) All Other City Employees - not less than one-quarter hour, unless the department director establishes a greater minimum increment of no more than one hour

(2) Vacation leave shall be taken only at a time approved by the department director or their assigned supervisory staff.

(3) Directors are to advise the City Manager or Deputy City Manager if an employee requests the use of more than one year's accrual of vacation in consecutive days.

6.3 Sick Leave. (revised 12/31/15, 10/6/17) (10/01/20) (04/05/2021) [\(10/01/2023\)](#)

(a) Eligibility. Sick leave is intended to provide full-time employees with accrued leave to assist them, when needed, in keeping with the provisions of this policy. All full-time employees accrue sick leave in accordance with this section, but sick leave may not be taken until the employee has completed at least two months of service. Sick leave does not vest during the first five years of employment, and sick leave is forfeited if the employee terminates employment before completing five years of service.

(b) Sick annual accrual, balance cap, and payout.

Non-Fire Shift Employees (working equivalent 8 hr shift or 40 hr work week):

Tenure with City Service (years)	Hours Accrued Per Year	Sick Accrual Cap	Earned, Unused Maximum Paid Upon Exit
0-4	104	unlimited	0
5-9	104	unlimited	240
10-14	104	unlimited	480
15-19	104	unlimited	600
20+	104	unlimited	720

Fire Shift Employees (16 and 8 Shift {or 24 Hour Shift}):

Tenure with City Service (years)	Hours Accrued Per Year	Sick Accrual Cap	Earned, Unused Maximum Paid Upon Exit
0-4	156	unlimited	0
5-9	156	unlimited	360
10-14	156	unlimited	720
15-19	156	unlimited	900
20+	156	unlimited	1080

- Accruals are earned each pay period for the total of the annual accrual (4 hours per pay or 6 hours per pay period).
- There is no cap on the sick leave accrual balance.
- Accrual of sick leave will not occur during a pay period in which the employee is on disciplinary suspension without pay or for any periods where sick leave has been exhausted ([excluding the last earned accrual on the pay date when accrued leave is exhausted](#)) and employee is on leave without pay status or using donated time.

Deleted: ¶
¶

Deleted: 2022

- Payment upon separation. An employee who has completed at least five years of service with the city upon separation from employment and meets the separation requirements in the Employment Separation chapter, is entitled to be compensated for their accumulated unused sick leave according to the maximum paid upon exit in 6.3b unless otherwise noted below:
 - (a) Employees classified as “grandfathered” employees as of the sick leave payout policy change on 4/5/2021, will be paid according to their individual established earned, unused maximum paid upon exit. Grandfathered employees are those that would have a larger payout of sick leave hours using the 2016 sick leave policy payout formula calculated on the earned, taken and credited donated sick leave hours through 4/4/2021 than that of the updated policy payout maximum top level of 720 and 1080. The larger sick leave hours amount is locked as the individual grandfathered employee’s earned, unused maximum paid upon exit when they leave employment with the City. Any employees that had a payout calculated equal to or under the updated maximum paid upon exit of 720 and 1080 effective 04/05/2021 are not grandfathered and will be paid according to policy effective 04/05/2021. Following the payroll for paycheck dated 04/09/2021, calculations will be finalized, employees will be notified of their grandfathered status and grandfathered sick leave payout maximum, and a record kept for ongoing administration. Accordingly, active use of the 2016 payout formula is discontinued for all employees effective 04/05/2021.
 - (b) For current fire department employees, actively employed as of February 1, 2021, the City is adding the applicable calculated sick leave hours for those that were on a 24 hour fire shift from 10/1/2002 to 12/31/2015 to adjust for a 1.38 per pay period difference in fire accrual of 4.62 (120 annual accrual beginning 10/1/2002) to 6.00 (156 annual accrual beginning 1/1/2016). This accrual adjustment is not applicable for inactive fire department employees.
 - (c) Taking sick leave. After an employee has been employed for two months, the employee may take (use) their accumulated sick leave, with pay, when:
 - (1) the employee is unable to work due to an illness, surgical procedure, or injury;
 - (2) a medical, dental, or optical examination or treatment is necessary, provided that approval of the supervisor is obtained;
 - (3) the employee is unable to work due to pregnancy, miscarriage, or childbirth;

(4) the employee has been exposed to a contagious disease that would warrant quarantine by a health officer, and the employee's presence on the job would jeopardize the health of others;

(5) the employee needs to remain with a sick family member living in the employee's household; or

(6) any applicable FMLA qualifying leave; or

(7) any member of the employee's immediate family is hospitalized (includes care needed for outpatient surgery)

(d) Increments taken. Sick leave may be taken in the following increments:

- Fire Shift – 12 Hour increments (0800-2000 or 2000-0800) except as follows:
 - (a) Paid intermittent or reduced schedule leave under a qualified, approved FML reason may be taken in one hour increments.
 - (b) Short duration urgent/emergency leave can be approved by the staffing officer on a case by case basis depending on circumstances.
- All Other City Employees - not less than one-quarter hour, unless the department director establishes a greater minimum increment of no more than one hour.
- When an employee has a need to use sick leave, the employee will be allowed to use only hours worked and available sick leave to total the regular scheduled work day (i.e. 8 hours, 10 hours, or 12 hours only – depending upon regular work day schedule). For example, an eight-hour employee may work 3 hours and go home sick; sick time used will be 5 hours for a total of 8.

(e) Use of other leave. Upon request of the employee and approval by the director, accrued paid leave may be used when absence due to reasons described above, exceeds the amount of accrued sick leave. When on approved leave after exhaustion of sick benefits, employees are required to use available vacation, earned compensatory benefit time, or other available paid leave.

(f) In the event of an employees' approved Short-Term Disability, employees will be required to use at least the equivalent amount of sick time to compensate the portion of unpaid, base compensation. For example, if Short-Term Disability compensates 60% base wages, employees are required to use leave hours equivalent to 40% base wages. Employees may use up to the maximum amount of leave up to their normal work schedule.

(g) No available leave hours: Employees who have no available sick or vacation hours and who call in absent, do not work, or do not report to work, will be unpaid. Should this

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: e.

Deleted: Non-exempt e

Deleted: 2022

event occur repeatedly, the employee, whose absence is not due to an approved FMLA qualifying event or other reasonable need, may be subject to disciplinary action in accordance with the Standards of Conduct policy for unsatisfactory attendance. Supervisors are responsible for documenting this event to assure the correct paid or unpaid status and to record the incident.

(h) Physician's statement. An employee may be required to furnish a statement from an attending physician when:

- There is reasonable cause to question the merits of an employee's claim that an absence is due to a qualifying reason;
- the employee's safety or ability to work is in question;
- when the employee is initiating Family Medical Leave or other regulatory requirements such as review of reasonable accommodations ([see Family Medical Leave Act Benefits Chapter for information on Family Medical Leave](#)); or
- [department procedure requires it consistently for all employees. Physician notes may be turned in to Human Resources if there is private health information in the note.](#)

Deleted: or

Deleted: . s

Deleted: .

6.4 Paid Parental Leave. (04/01/2021)

Paid Parental Leave (PPL) is a benefit provided to qualifying employees in recognition of the importance of work/life balance and to offer new parents and foster parents the opportunity to bond with a new child residing in the home.

- (a) PPL is provided to eligible employees who are birth mothers and fathers of a newborn child , or for whom a child has been legally placed for adoption, or who are the new foster parents of a child under 18 years of age named in a placement agreement with the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services (TXDFPS). Surrogate mothers and sperm donors are not eligible for PPL.
- (b) PPL provides 80 contiguous, uninterrupted hours of leave for non-fire shift and 106 contiguous, uninterrupted hours of leave for fire shift, and shall be paid immediately following:
- (1) the birth of the employees' child
 - (2) the placement of a child for adoption
 - (3) the placement of a child for foster care
- (c) To be eligible for PPL, the employee must be approved under FML including being a fulltime employee for one year prior to the leave and having available FML in the

Deleted: 2022

entitlement year. Eligibility for PPL is determined at the time of application with HR.

- (d) An eligible employee cannot receive PPL benefits more than twice in their lifetime, regardless of the number of positions held by the employee or the separate number of times that they are employed by the City of Burlison.
- (e) The concurrent use of PPL and FML will not increase, in whole or in part, the amount of FML or PPL time available to employees.
- (f) Pay for PPL will be at 100 percent of the employee's base pay rate and will not reduce any accrued vacation or sick leave balances or accruals.
- (g) Multiple births, adoptions or foster care placements occurring at the same time do not increase the length of PPL or the number of times that PPL may be received by an employee.
- (h) PPL may not be retained for future use or used intermittently, and any balance will not be paid out at upon termination of employment with the City of Burlison.
- (i) PPL must be exhausted before other forms of paid and unpaid leave allowed under FML may be used. Holidays occurring during this time will not increase PPL time.

6.5 Compensatory Leave.

- (a) Eligibility. Nonexempt employees, at their option, may take accrued compensatory leave.
- (b) When taken. Compensatory leave may be taken only when approved by the department director. Leave requests must be submitted in compliance with established departmental guidelines. The department director may refuse the leave request if it would be unduly disruptive to departmental operations. The city reserves the right to require nonexempt employees to use compensatory leave.
- (c) Payment. Payment for accumulated compensatory leave shall be paid to a nonexempt employee or nonexempt employee's estate upon separation or death in accordance with the retirement system protocols related to beneficiary payouts. The city may pay a nonexempt employee anytime for all or part of accumulated compensatory leave upon approval of the City Manager. In the event a non-exempt employee transfers to an exempt position, the accrued compensatory time will be automatically paid out to the employee at the time of the classification change unless there is an arrangement to take the compensatory time prior to the effective date of the change. If not all compensatory time is taken, the remaining time will be automatically paid out. At Department Director discretion, an

Deleted: 2022

exception may be granted to employees with a specific plan to use compensatory time within a reasonable future time period after the classification change, however, any excess compensatory time beyond what is approved for the specific purpose will be automatically paid out at the time of the classification change. It is the employee's and Department Director's responsibility to notify Human Resource and Payroll about such arrangements for proper handling.

- (d) Exempt employees. Extra hours of work are generally common for exempt employees, but these employees do not record overtime hours nor accumulate compensatory time. Exempt employees may take time off from work in recognition of extra hours worked, upon approval of the City Manager or Deputy City Manager, whichever is applicable. As such, compensatory leave payments are not applicable to an exempt employee nor to an exempt employee's estate upon separation or death.
- (e) Records. Records of compensatory leave taken are kept by staff accountant overseeing payroll and the Human Resources Department.
- (f) Maximum accruals: Fire personnel working 16 and 8 Hour Shifts may accumulate a max of 72 hrs of compensatory hours. SRO/CRO/Task Force in PD may accumulate up to 80 hrs. All other employees may accumulate up to 48 hrs.

6.6 Injury Leave.

Note: For more information on work related injury leave, see Work Related Injury or Illness chapter in this manual.

6.7 Military Leave. (revised 02/15/18)(10/01/21)

In accordance with USERRA and Texas Government Code, employees are eligible for Military Leave; one or both regulations provide employment protection, income protection and a means to secure time off when called to any form of military training and service including duty performed on a voluntary or involuntary basis. All provisions of the Federal rules (USERRA) and State Local government code will be followed to afford employees full rights and responsibilities for military leave.

- (a) Eligibility: An employee who joins or is a reserve member of the state's military forces, National Guard or United States armed forces shall, upon notification to the department director and submission of appropriate documentation, be granted leave for the period required to perform any military training, duty, or service including days needed to complete military pre-induction physical examinations.
- (b) Paid Military Leave: Employees will be eligible to receive up to 15 paid military leave days a year with carry over allowed from one year to the next for unused

days up to 45 days net accumulated leave including the current year's accrual. Paid military leave days will be paid out in hours based on shift hours the employee typically works. Paid military leave may only be granted to an employee for the days the employee would otherwise have worked and received pay. Military orders are required to be turned in for payment. The employee's Director will work with Human Resources and Payroll to ensure the employee's paid military leave days are documented and paid correctly.

- (c) Notice to department director: An employee shall give as much advance notice as possible to his supervisor regarding dates for military leave, as well as provide copies of the orders. Annual or quarterly training schedules should be given to the department director as the schedules become available to the employee.
- (e) Use of Military Leave and Vacation Leave: While serving military duty, an employee may use any accrued vacation once paid military leave exhausts.
- (f) Group health benefits: An employee on military leave less than 30 days is eligible to remain on the city group health plans same as any active employee. For extended military leave over 30 days, employees may continue the city group health plan coverages under COBRA for up to 24 months (or enroll in the military insurance benefits). Medical opt out benefits, if applicable, will cease for extended military leave after 30 days as well.
- (g) Once on unpaid military leave, an employee is not eligible to accrue time off or receive certification/incentive pays.
- (h) Rescheduled work days: With the approval of the department director, a full-time employee who participates in weekend military training that occurs on a scheduled work day may reschedule a work day rather than have the absence charged to military leave, if the employee reschedules the work day within the same work period.
- (i) Re-employment: In accordance with '4312, Title 38, United States Code, an employee may serve, in most cases, a total of five years on active duty in the armed forces and still be eligible for reemployment. An employee's right to reemployment is not protected for cumulative periods of military active duty longer than five years, in most cases.
 - (1) Temporary Fill-in for Absent Employee: The Director and/or Department Management will work with the Human Resources Department to determine if there is a need to hire a temporary employee to fill-in for the absent employee. Any arrangements for fill-in employees will be on a temporary basis.

Deleted: 2022

(2) **Position and Benefits Reinstatement.** An employee who returns from active duty in the armed forces of the United States is entitled to reemployment in the same position held upon entrance to active duty, or in a position of comparable status and pay, as well as restored benefits the employee would have attained had they not been absent due to military service (generally health plans will not have waiting periods or exclusions), if the employee:

- (A) is physically and mentally qualified to perform the duties of the position;
- (B) was discharged, separated, or released from military active duty under honorable or general conditions;
- (C) the cumulative length of all absences from employment with the city by reason of service in the uniformed services does not exceed five years, in most cases; and
- (D) makes written application for reemployment within required USERRA guidelines based on military service period after discharge, separation, or release from military active duty and presents evidence of the discharge, separation, or release from military active duty:

- Service of 1 to 30 days - Employee must report to his or her employer by the beginning of the first regularly scheduled work period on the day following completion of service, after allowing for safe travel home and eight hours of rest.
- Service of 31 to 180 days - An application for reemployment must be submitted no later than 14 days after completion of a person's service. If submission of a timely application is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the person, the application must be submitted as soon as possible.
- Service of 181 or more days - An application for reemployment must be submitted no later than 90 days after completion of a person's military service.
- Injury or illness occurring or aggravated during a period of service - The reporting or application deadlines are extended for up to two years from the date of completion

of service for persons who are hospitalized or convalescing because of an injury or illness occurring or aggravated during a period of service. The two-year period will be extended by the minimum time required to accommodate a circumstance beyond an individual's control that would make reporting within the two-year period impossible or unreasonable.

6.8 Inclement Weather/Condition Policy. (10/01/2023)

- (a) Essential employees. In the event of a natural disaster, severe weather conditions, or other extraordinary conditions beyond the employee's control, certain employees will be assigned to perform essential duties. These employees will be paid for all hours worked in accordance with standard payroll procedures.
- (b) Employees sent home. Employees who report to work, but are sent home prior to the end of their normal work day, will be paid for their scheduled time for that day without having to use accrued leave time.
- (c) Unable to report. Except as provided in Subsection (d), employees who are unable to report to their work station due to severe weather or other extraordinary conditions, will be paid only for those hours actually worked. Accrued vacation, compensatory, or holiday leave may be used to cover the lost time, or, when possible, employees will be allowed to work extra hours during the same and following pay period to make up for hours missed. Hours worked in excess of the maximum hours per work period, will be credited at the overtime rate.
- (d) Non-essential city operations closed. If the City Manager determines that due to the severity of the conditions, it is necessary to close non-essential city operations, this decision will be reported in keeping with protocols set by the City Manager's office and the director of communications. Employees are expected to check with the appropriate director and/or manager for clarification on closing protocols, dependent upon inclement conditions. When the City Manager closes non-essential city operations, and the media announcement is made, employees in the closed operations will be paid for their scheduled time for that day without having to use leave time.

(1) At the request of an employee or supervisor, Human Resources will review the appropriate paid leave to be used in the event any employees had scheduled a pre-planned day off if they were scheduled to work.

(A) If an employee had a pre-planned day off, and they were unable to complete the purpose of that day off because businesses were shut down, unsafe road conditions, or other related factors, HR will review the request

Deleted:

Deleted: weather

Deleted: weather

Deleted: 2022

to be revised to “Weather Closing” instead of the originally requested paid leave.

(B) If an employee was able to complete their purpose for the preplanned time off, then the requested leave time will still be used since employees were not on the schedule and not available to work regardless of weather. These circumstances include being able to leave and take scheduled vacation plans, keep appointments scheduled, already out on a medical or personal leave of absence and unavailable to work.

(C) The City retains the right to interpret and determine intent of the policy to apply the policy guidelines consistently.

(e) Closure Protocol. In general, the closure protocol will be handled as follows;

The City Manager will use two primary methods for informing citizens and employees of changes to city non-essential operational hours. In cases of inclement weather or other conditions, city management will post a notification on the website and the phone system prior to the start of non-essential operations for the day in question, or as soon as practical. This notification will be posted no later than 6:30 a.m. if conditions are known prior to the start of the business day. Absent a notification on the website and the phone system by 6:30 a.m., citizens and employees should conclude normal operational hours will occur.

While the official notification will be posted on the website, secondary notifications may also be provided via:

- an automated message to each employee at the phone number provided by the employee to the Human Resources Department. It is important that employees make sure Human Resources has current telephone number(s) in order for this method to be effective.
- the City’s social media pages.
- An “Everybody” email sent to all city email accounts.

NOTE: These secondary notifications are provided to employees as a secondary means of notification and should not be relied on for official notification. Employees should always go to the city’s website or call the main number to learn the official status of non-essential operations.

If the City Manager does not close or delay non-essential operations, employees

Deleted: on

Deleted: tele

Deleted: on the day in question

Deleted:

Deleted: telephone call

Deleted: Employees can access city email from home by going to <https://mail.burlesontx.com> and entering domain name, username and password (bur\your first initial + last name).

Deleted: 2022

should use their best judgment on whether it is safe to drive to work. Section 6.8 (c) of the Policy Manual will be followed in such circumstances.

6.9 Other Leave with or without Pay. (Revised 11/01/16)(10/01/21)(10/01/2023)

- (a) Family Medical Leave. Employees who qualify will be afforded Family Medical Leave benefits in accordance with Federal statute. See Family Medical Leave Act Benefits chapter in this manual for a detailed policy on this benefit.
- (b) Jury service and court appearances. An employee formally summoned to serve on jury duty or to appear in court on a scheduled work day, shall be excused from work and receive pay for the hours required for the jury duty or court appearance not to exceed 40 hours in any one week. Proof of jury service or court appearance satisfactory to the city, must be produced upon request. This benefit does not extend to employees summoned to court for testimony, domestic court appearances, witness to a civil or criminal case, related to non-work related personal business. The employee is required to use available compensatory time or vacation leave for these court appearances. Court appearances by police, code enforcement, and animal control personnel which are required in the scope of their duties are not included in this provision.
- (c) Voting. An employee eligible to vote in a national, state, county, or municipal election, shall, when necessary, be allowed sufficient leave with pay to exercise this right. It is the responsibility of the employee to notify the employee's immediate supervisor of the time chosen to vote. The supervisor and employee may select another time if the one chosen conflicts with departmental duties.
- (d) Bereavement Leave. Bereavement leave may be used for those relatives of employees related by affinity (within the second degree) and by consanguinity (within the third degree) and will include miscarriages. See the glossary for more detailed definitions of these relationships. 24 hours per qualifying incident may be approved for non-Fire personnel. Fire personnel that work a 16 and 8 Hour Shift may be approved for 36 hours per qualifying incident. Department Directors and Managers will work with the employee to complete needed forms.
- (e) Safety Leave. In keeping with the city's safety policy, non-sworn personnel will be required to be off the clock at least six hours for each 24-hour period. If a director needs to authorize safety leave for the express purpose of allowing sleep time for an employee who is assisting during Public Works or other related emergencies, the director may do so. Safety leave is for non-exempt employees who are called back to work outside of the scheduled work hours and who are on duty for an extended period of time. The affected employee(s) will be paid straight time for up to six

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: 2022

hours. This time period will be classified as Safety Leave, and coded as such on the employee's time sheet. This will be used on a limited and select basis for the express purpose of addressing emergencies while still assuring adequate rest for essential personnel.

- (f) Administrative Leave With or Without Pay: The City Manager or Deputy City Manager may grant up to four weeks of Administrative leave (with or without pay) when such leave is in the best interest of the City of Burleson. Examples (not an exhaustive list) of use of such leave would be to allow senior management time to investigate a matter of employee conduct, or to allow an employee time to resolve a matter of significant personal business.

A Director who wishes to request administrative leave with or without pay should make a written request to the City Manager's office stipulating the amount of leave requested and the reasons for the request.

It is the responsibility of the Director and City Manager's office to advise Human Resources when administrative leave has been granted and the related circumstance. The Human Resources Director will assure related documentation is made and the Staff Accountant in Payroll is notified, if necessary.

No portion of the administrative leave with or without pay policy will disrupt or affect the absence control policy below. This policy is intended for the convenience of City management in order to address specific issues in which administrative leave maybe the most appropriate option.

- (g) Wellness Day. Employees may earn a paid day off if they meet certain criteria outlined each year in the Wellness Program. Wellness days may be used in partial or whole day increments, depending on Department Director/manager approval and business needs of the department. Wellness days, amounts, and criteria are subject to change each year at City discretion and/or based on budgetary funding. Wellness days not taken by the end of the calendar year will be lost. Wellness days are not eligible for pay out in the event an employee leaves the City.

- (h) Quarantine Leave. The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance in accordance with Section 180.008 of the Local Government Code regarding paid quarantine leave for Firefighters, Peace Officers, Detention Officers and Emergency Medical Technicians. The quarantine leave will be used to quarantine or isolate Firefighters and Peace Officers due to a possible or known exposure to a communicable disease while on duty. This policy will be applied with the Workers Compensation Policy, as this leave is granted only for on-duty exposures.

1.) Eligibility:

Deleted: ¶

¶

Deleted: 2022

- (a) "Firefighter" means a paid employee of the fire department who:
- holds a position that requires substantial knowledge of firefighting;
 - has met the requirements for certification by the Texas Commission on Fire Protection under Chapter 419, Government Code; and
 - performs a function listed in Section 143.003(4)(A).
- (b) "Health authority" has the meaning assigned by Section 121.021, Health and Safety Code.
- (c) "Peace officer" means an individual described by Article 2.12, Code of Criminal Procedure, who is elected for, employed by or appointed by the City.

2.) Procedure:

The use of quarantine leave will be granted to a Firefighter and/or a Peace Officer who is ordered by the City's Health Authority or City Management to quarantine or isolate due to a possible or known exposure to a communicable disease while on duty. The political subdivision's health authority will determine when a threat of highly communicable or life-endangering diseases are immediately present and may release orders for applicable/essential workers to follow general quarantine protocols. When this occurs, department supervisors will allow for the use of quarantine leave based on the health authority's protocols for appropriately dealing with the disease and/or its prevention of community spread. Employees will be released from quarantine leave based on guidance from the local health authority.

Employees are required to file all workers compensation notifications, as this leave will run concurrently with the worker's compensation process.

Applicable employees on paid quarantine leave will be treated consistently with other worker's compensation claims and continue to be eligible for all employment benefits and compensation, including continuing their leave accrual, pension benefits and eligibility for health benefit plan benefits for the duration of the leave. While on quarantine leave, the employee may not use any other paid leave type (vacation, sick, holiday).

When applicable, employees who must be quarantined may be eligible for reimbursement for reasonable costs related to the quarantine, including lodging, medical (in accordance with Worker's Compensation protocols) and transportation. The employee must receive approval from Human Resources prior to incurring quarantine expenses. Employees will be expected to provide receipts for reimbursement, which will be presented to Human Resources for appropriate review and processing in coordination with Finance.

(i) Mental Health Leave for Peace Officers. City peace officers may be eligible for confidential, paid mental health leave following a traumatic event as outlined in the police department standard operating procedures.

(i) Mental Health Leave for Telecommunicators. Public Safety Communications personnel who experience a traumatic event in the scope of their job may utilize Mental Health Leave. The traumatic events are those that have experienced an on the call fatality or near fatality that the telecommunicator audibly witnessed. The leave may be for a period of 5 workdays for the telecommunicator to access the services to recover from the trauma. Access to EAP and mental health providers on the city medical insurance plan will be made available. The telecommunicator will only contact the department Director who will work with Human Resources to ensure anonymity of the telecommunicator. HR will enter Paid Administrative leave on the employee's timesheet.

6.10 Absence without Leave and Job Abandonment.

Unauthorized absence without leave for two or more working days or failure to return for a period of two or more working days at the expiration of authorized leave is considered job abandonment. A job abandonment may be rescinded by the department director if the employee presents satisfactory reasons for the absence within two working days of the date the job abandonment became effective.

6.11 Absence Control Policy (effective 10/01/2012) (04/01/2021)

With full recognition that a leave of absence may occur for a variety of reasons, the City has an absence control policy. Employees who have accumulated paid time off such as sick or vacation hours may use them with approval.

(a) The employment status of an employee will not be determined by available leave balances or lack of leave balances or other paid leave programs. The employment status of an employee will be determined based on Federal, State and local regulations such as FMLA and the ADA, and in consideration of the expectation of the employee's ability to return to work in a reasonable timeframe in their position or to another open, available position for which they are qualified to perform with or without a reasonable accommodation with appropriate documentation, interactive meetings with the employee, and interview and selection.

(b) Employees with qualifying conditions under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) will be evaluated on an individual basis.

(c) Circumstances that may lead to termination of employment under the Absence Control Policy will be reviewed by the employee's Department Director, the Human Resources Director and the Deputy City Manager or City Manager. A decision related to termination will be issued in writing to the employee after such review.

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Left, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same style

Deleted:

Deleted: 2022

(d) Employees terminated under the absence control policy are considered terminated in good standing, and may apply for employment in the future, if they are qualified for jobs posted and can perform the essential functions of the job with or without a reasonable accommodation. This policy does not guarantee reemployment or reinstatement of employment.

(e) This policy does not apply to those on leave serving in the United States military (see military leave) or absences which violate the Standards of Conduct such as job abandonment or normal absenteeism issues.

6.12 Return from Leave (revised 11/2009)

Modified Duty.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide a process by which employees who have been on leave due to illness or injury may receive temporary work assignments that will benefit their full recovery. It is not intended nor to be used as a disability program.

(b) Evaluation of injured or ill employee. When an employee is required to be absent from work because of an extended period of recovery from injury or illness, the employee's case will be reviewed by the department director and the director of human resources. An examination and evaluation conducted by the attending physician or the city-designated physician will be used to determine the capabilities and prognosis for recovery of the injured or ill employee. A review of the potential work assignments will be conducted by the employee's director and the director of human resources to determine if an assignment is available which matches the injured or ill employee's training, skills and capabilities, as determined by the physician.

(c) Work assignment. A modified duty work assignment will be offered to an injured or ill employee if:

(1) a modified duty work assignment would enhance the recovery of an injured or ill employee and facilitate the employee's return to the regular duty work assignment held before the injury or illness; and

(2) the employee's department director determines that modified duty is available. If no modified duty can be found within the department, the employee may be temporarily assigned to work in another department, if there is an existing opening for which the employee is qualified and that meets the employee's work restrictions. A temporary assignment does not constitute the creation of regular or long-term employment in the assigned position. The salary of an

employee on modified duty will be paid by the employee's department and the employee will be returned to the original position and department when released for full duty. If modified duty cannot be found, the city will not create a position and the employee will remain on leave.

- (d) Length of modified duty work assignments. A modified duty work assignment may last until the time that the attending physician or city physician has set as the expected date of return to the employee's previous work assignment or until temporary work duties are completed, but not to exceed three months unless the City Manager gives written approval for a longer period.
- (e) Conditions of modified duty. As a condition of continuing in a modified duty work assignment, an employee must:
 - (1) adhere to prescribed treatment and make reasonable efforts toward rehabilitation;
 - (2) accept progressively more demanding assignments as the employee's condition improves; and
 - (3) make visible progress in returning to full performance capability.
- (f) Termination of modified duty. An employee's modified duty work assignment will be terminated if:
 - (A) the employee is found performing beyond the modified duty restrictions;
 - (B) the work assignment is completed;
 - (C) the employee performs unsatisfactorily in the position;
 - (D) budgetary constraints do not allow continuation of the position;
or
 - (E) the employee's medical condition worsens.
- (g) Reassignments. If an employee's injury or illness will permanently prevent the employee from performing the essential functions of the employee's regularly assigned duties, the director of human resources in conjunction with the employee's director shall attempt to locate a suitable city position for the employee. Such position must be authorized and vacant and the individual must be qualified to perform the essential functions of the position. If no position is available at the time the individual is determined physically unable to perform the essential function of the employee's job, or, should the employee refuse to accept an available position, then termination of employment will occur. The city will not create a position.

Chapter 7: Performance Evaluations

7.1 Purpose.

Performance evaluations are used to acknowledge good performance and recognize areas in which improvement is needed. Evaluation aids in more effective planning of the work of city departments and enables supervisors to identify common training and development needs. Evaluations promote fair treatment of employees by supervisors and provide increased communication between employees and supervisors.

7.2 Procedures, Method, and Forms.

Employee evaluations shall be conducted following procedures prescribed by the Director of Human Resources.

7.3 Rating Period. (revised 01/01/2013)

(a) Each full-time employee's work will be evaluated annually.

(b) Part-time employees may be evaluated annually, at Director's discretion.

(c) At the Director or department manager's option, a six month evaluation may be conducted for any employee.

7.4 Notice to Employee.

An employee shall be given a copy of each evaluation report as soon as it is complete. No use may be made of the evaluation results until the evaluator reviews the report with the employee.

7.5 Use of Evaluation Results. (01/01/19)

The results of employee evaluations shall be considered for the following purposes:

- making salary adjustments;
- giving merit pay increases;
- grounds for promotions, demotions, and support for re-assignment; and
- to determine whether disciplinary action is warranted against an employee (not intended to present a disciplinary notice to an employee during a performance evaluation, but merely to review past evaluations to see if issues were documented prior to determine if a disciplinary matter is new or ongoing; what efforts had been taken to make the employee aware of the issues).

7.6 Employee Coaching

As frequently as necessary, a supervisor may conduct an employee counseling interview. The supervisor should communicate frankly the supervisor's assessment of the employee's conduct and performance. The supervisor should offer positive assistance in correcting any deficiency. This informal conference requires no communication with the director of human resources.

Chapter 8: Transfers, Promotions, Training

8.1 Promotions and Transfers.

Policy. It is the policy of the city to allow the transfer of employees between positions and departments to promote from within, where possible, when filling vacant or newly created positions. Employees that meet the following criteria are eligible to apply for another open position within the City:

- have been with the City and in current position at least 6 months,
- are satisfactorily performing their duties,
- no documented verbal reprimands within ninety (90) days,
- no written reprimands within six (6) months,
- no documented final written reprimands, suspensions, or disciplinary demotions within last twelve (12) months.

Employees interested in available opportunities for promotion or transfer should review job postings as available on area bulletin boards, the city’s web-site or in the Human Resources Department. A letter of interest and an updated resume should be turned in to human resources prior to any posted closing date for openings.

This policy statement does not, in any manner, guarantee an employee promotion or create a contract of employment (expressed or implied).

Notice to department. If selected for transfer or promotion, the employee must give at least two weeks’ notice to the employee’s current department, unless waived by the employee’s department director.

Unless there are extenuating circumstances, managers who are considering a transfer or promotion of another employee from another department should contact the manager who is subject to losing the employee and advise them of the application status as a professional courtesy. Managers are expected not to retaliate against employees who are striving to change or better their employment circumstances.

Employees that are selected or placed in a different position within the City will be on a six (6) month evaluation period to ensure adjustment and adaptation to the new position in terms of learning the job requirements and department. This evaluation period doesn’t negate any provisions employees obtained once successfully completing their new hire probationary period.

The City may make exceptions to these standards to meet the business needs of the City, as it deems appropriate with Department Director(s), Human Resources, and Deputy City Manager review and approval.

Deleted: 2022

8.2 Training and Development.

The city endeavors to provide training and development programs to meet specific organizational needs. Training programs will encourage high quality performance, prepare employees for new or increased responsibilities, and extend opportunities for job-related growth and development. The Human Resources Department will assist departments in developing and conducting training programs to meet specific departmental needs and will identify resources and programs to increase employee productivity, knowledge, and safety and departmental efficiency and effectiveness.

8.3 City Internship Policy. (10/01/23)

The intent of the internship program is to allow students the opportunity to receive first-hand experience in specific areas of study and to get a better understanding of particular career fields.

- (a) The interns need to be upper college class level students or recent graduates.
- (b) The program will limit the number of interns citywide to a maximum of 6 at any time regardless of the department the intern is assigned. This may be adjusted through budget or approval of the City Manager's Office.
- (c) Department heads are responsible to submit an intern request in advance through the Director of Human Resources in order to be sure the City Manager's Office approves the internship and that the maximum number of interns allowed is not exceeded. Departments using a formal university or higher education internship program, must submit the program requirements to Human Resources along with the request to ensure the city mutually agrees with the criteria. Any administrative processes required by the educational institution will be reviewed to ensure responsible parties are assigned in advance at the city (i.e. performance feedback, hours reporting, etc).
- (d) The internships will last no longer than 4 months and be considered temporary seasonal employees without benefits.
- (e) Interns will work no more than 20 hours weekly and at a set rate of pay per hour determined annually by the HR Department. Costs will be funded by the specific department in which the intern is assigned. Alternate work schedules must be requested and approved in advance through Human Resources to ensure compliance with applicable regulations.
- (f) All interns are to apply through the city website and must pass the standard hiring process and background checks.

(g) At the end of the maximum 4 month assignment (season), the intern will be separated from employment and cannot rehire with the city for a period of one year as an intern. The internship program is not to be construed as a guarantee of employment for a specific time period or alter the at will nature of employment. Assignments may be ended early by either party. Requests to end the internship early by the department must be requested through the Human Resources Department to ensure compliance with regulations and/or the educational institutions requirements, if applicable.

Chapter 9: Compensation and Wage Administration

9.1 Work Periods. (revised 12/2014); (12/31/15; 11/01/15) (03/01/2022)

- (a) Standard work periods. Standard work periods are established for purposes of compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. For payroll purposes the following work periods are established for city employees:
 - (1) Civilian personnel (non-public safety) working a 9/80 schedule: the work period begins at noon on Friday and runs through 11:59 a.m. Friday morning.
 - (2) Civilian personnel (non-public safety) not working a 9/80 schedule: the work period begins at midnight on Monday and ends at 11:59 p.m. on Sunday.
 - (3) Sworn employees of the police department: the work period shall begin at 6:00 a.m. Monday and end at 5:59 a.m. 14 days later.
 - (4) Sworn employees of the fire department: the work period shall begin at 12:00 a.m. Monday and runs 28 consecutive days until 11:59 p.m. Sunday. Details of the two 14-day pay cycles are documented within the Burleson Fire Department standard operating procedures.

- (b) Meal periods. Except for sworn employees of the fire and police departments, the standard work day does not include approved meal periods. Meal periods for nonsworn employees are time off without pay. Meal periods for Police Department telecommunications staff are considered hours worked.

- (c) Rest periods. The standard work day may include two 15-minute rest periods each work day if authorized by an employee's immediate supervisor. A rest period is not guaranteed and is considered a privilege. Breaks shall not interfere with proper performance of the work responsibilities and schedules of a department. Rest periods or breaks do not accumulate if not taken.

- (d) 40-Hour Work Schedules: In general, Directors and Managers may set hours of work most appropriate to assure job tasks are performed and the work week remains 40 hours per week (except Fire Department). Work schedules may include combinations such as:
 - Schedule A: 8 hours per day; 5 days per week.
 - Schedule B: 10 hours per day; 4 days per week.
 - Schedule C: Combination of 9, 8, and 4 hour shifts to equal 40 hours per work period.

- (e) Time Sheets: At the end of every pay period, non-exempt employees are required to review and approve their own timesheet using the employee approval method in the electronic timekeeping system, or with their signature or initials if using manual timesheets. The immediate supervisor will then review and approve the timesheet prior to processing by Finance. Any adjustments or corrections after the initial employee approval will require a subsequent approval/signature by both the

Deleted: 2022

employee and supervisor prior to processing by Finance. In the event an employee does not approve their timesheet by the payroll deadline, the supervisor or another member of management is authorized to approve the timesheet on behalf of the employee so payroll can be processed timely. As a general rule, the City may still require full-time employees to approve their own timesheet even after a supervisor approves on their behalf whereas part-time employees' approvals may be waived given the variable work schedule. All employees are responsible for their own timesheet and/or reporting issues with their payroll to their department, HR or Finance, if any, regardless if another had to approve a timesheet on an employee's behalf.

9.2 Hours of Work.

Department directors may establish working schedules to meet their specific needs; provided the standard schedule is for no more than 80 hours per work period for sworn employees of the police department, 212 hours per work period for sworn employees of the fire department, or 40 hours per work period for all other employees. The hours during which city offices are open for business shall be determined by the City Manager. The fire department 24-hour personnel work 2912 hours per calendar year. All other full-time employees work 2080 hours per year.

9.3 Job Sharing.

Some full-time positions may be approved for job-sharing. Job sharing includes two employees sharing the duties and benefits of one full-time position. Directors and Managers will have the authority to determine which positions will be approved for this work arrangement. A more detailed policy regarding Job Sharing is available in Human Resources for management and employee review.

9.4 Compensation. (Revised 12/31/15) (01/01/19) (10/01/20)(10/01/21) (08/03/2022) (10/01/22)

- (a) Salaries. All wage ranges of city employment shall be identified in the wage schedule approved by the city council. Generally, changes in the schedule are made through adoption of the annual operating budget.
- (b) Exempt Employees-Function and pay. An employee who performs an executive, administrative, or professional function is an exempt employee. In keeping with Fair Labor Standards Act – Department of Labor guidelines positions are determined to be exempt or non-exempt by the Human Resources Department. This designation is based on work performed, not job title or job class. An exempt employee is paid on a weekly wage basis regardless of the number of hours worked unless the employee is absent and:
 - (1) permission has not been sought or has been sought and denied;
 - (2) accrued leave has been exhausted; or

- (3) the employee requests to use leave without pay (requires approval by director).
 - (4) in order to record the use of benefit time, exempt employees are required to complete an exempt employee leave form reporting their vacation and sick usage and submit it to the Payroll Staff Accountant following approval by the appropriate Director or City Manager.
- (c) Prorated Wage. If part of a week is taken as leave without pay, a proportionate part of the weekly wage will be paid to an exempt employee for the part of the week worked. A proportionate part of the weekly wage will also be paid to an exempt employee for the part of the week worked in the initial or last week of employment.
- (d) Compensation for Overtime Work.
- (1) Overtime pay. Nonexempt employees, other than sworn employees of the fire and police departments, are entitled to overtime pay or overtime compensatory leave for all hours worked in excess of 40 during a seven-day work period. Sworn employees of the police department are entitled to overtime pay or overtime compensatory leave for all hours worked in excess of 80 hours in a 14-day work period. Sworn employees of the fire department are entitled to overtime pay or overtime compensatory leave for all hours worked following a 28-day work cycle as permitted under the Fair Labor Standards Act. This policy is adopted pursuant to Section 207(k) of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Working of overtime hours must be approved in advance by the appropriate supervisor.
 - (2) Compensatory leave. Nonexempt employees will be granted compensatory leave at the rate of one and one-half times the actual overtime hours worked, upon approval of the employee's supervisor, if the supervisor determines the leave will not be unduly disruptive to the department. Compensatory leave may be accrued to a maximum of: 48 overtime hours worked unless special arrangements are made by the department director, 16 and 8 Hour Shift Personnel in the Fire Department may accrue up to 72 hours, and school resource officers, task force staff, and community resource officers in the Police Department may accrue up to 80 hours.

Compensatory leave may be taken in increments of not less than one-quarter hour, unless the department director establishes a greater minimum increment of no more than one hour. The city may, at its discretion, pay a nonexempt employee at any time for all or part of accumulated compensatory leave or may require that a nonexempt employee take accumulated compensatory leave, except for members of

police or fire department as defined by state regulation. For members of police or fire department as defined by state regulation, compensatory time may be taken or paid out when there is mutual agreement by the city and the employee. The accrual of compensatory leave is governed by the Fair Labor Standards Act and also by the local government code for members of the police and fire departments as defined in the code.

- (e) Exempt employees. Exempt employees do not receive overtime pay nor accrue compensatory leave. However, Exempt employees may take time off from work in recognition of extra hours worked, upon manager approval.
- (f) Recording compensatory leave. If an employee works in excess of the number of hours in the employee's shift during the same work period as the employee takes compensatory leave, the amount of time the employee worked in excess of the shift on all worked days, is subtracted from the amount of time the employee actually took compensatory leave, when the compensatory leave taken is recorded in the leave records.
- (g) Paid Time Off/Paid Leave in Calculating Overtime Hours.
Paid time off benefits/paid leaves are not considered hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime hours,
 - (1) An employee is charged with paid time off/paid leaves only on days the employee would otherwise have been scheduled to work. No more than 40 hours paid time off/paid leave may be charged in one seven-day work period.
 - (2) If an employee takes any form of paid leave in the work week/work period and works over in another part of the week/period, the paid leave hours are not required to be reduced by the amount worked over unless the arrangement was considered a flexible schedule, hours worked over were not approved nor deemed necessary by the supervisor, or hours were worked during the employee's normal shift while on leave (the combined hours worked during the shift and on leave for the shift will not exceed the scheduled shift). Departments may implement staffing and schedule guidelines to manage the use of paid leave and hours worked within the work period.
- (h) Fire Department personnel: Overtime is paid based on the standard 24 hours on duty (a 16 and 8 Hour Shift) /48 hours off duty schedule, which is permissible by the Department of Labor, Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. For more information, Fire Department personnel should refer to the payroll section of the finance department and/or the fire chief. Holidays are not included in the calculation of overtime for fire department personnel. See the Vacation, Sick, Leave of Absences, and Other Absences from Work Chapter for more information.

(i) Police Department Commissioned Personnel: Overtime is paid based upon a 14-day duty schedule, which is permissible by the Department of Labor, Fair Labor Standards Act. Holidays are paid as straight time and are not included in the calculation of overtime.

(j) Overtime Rate.

A nonexempt employee will be paid for overtime worked at the rate of 1-1/2 times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay. For purposes of calculating overtime pay, this hourly rate shall include base, merit, incentive, and longevity pay and stand-by pay.

(i) Authorization for Overtime. An employee shall not be permitted to work overtime unless authorization has been given by the department director in advance. The department director or designee has the responsibility to determine that funds are available before authorizing overtime work. A department director may authorize overtime under the following circumstances:

Deleted: his/her

- (1) hours worked in excess of the number of regularly scheduled hours for the work week;
- (2) a call back for an emergency, if otherwise off duty; or
- (3) attendance at an approved training class or city sanctioned meeting, required by the department director, if time for attendance is in addition to the employee's regular work schedule.

(j) Documentation of Overtime.

The Human Resources or finance department (staff accountant-payroll) shall keep records of all overtime worked and compensatory time accrued and taken by nonexempt employees. Department directors should report overtime hours worked in their departments, with departmental payroll records. The records must include the following information:

- (1) number of overtime hours worked each work week or work period;
- (2) number of overtime hours paid each work week or work period;
- (3) number of compensatory hours accrued and used each work week or work period;
- (4) number of compensatory hours compensated monetarily, the amount paid, and the date of payment; and

Deleted: 2022

- (5) any written understandings or agreements with respect to the accrual and use of compensatory time.
- (k) Call Backs and Scheduled Overtime. (revised 12/31/15)
(01/01/19)(10/01/20)(10/01/21)(10/01/22)
- (1) This policy applies to the divisions and departments that participate in a weekly On-Call program or standby pay practices.
- (2) Responsibility:
- (A) Directors/Managers: Oversee the record keeping, assignment of on-call or standby status, and the other procedural decisions related to paying an employee to be on-call or in a standby status in order to respond to emergencies, repairs, etc.
- (B) Employees: Accurately record incidents of call-back assuring that department management is kept informed when situations arise warranting an on-call or call-back status.
- (3) Requirement for on-call status. An employee who provides essential services to the public is expected to respond to a reasonable assignment by the employee's supervisor to be in "on-call status" periodically. The employee is free to pursue personal activities, but must respond to a call back within designated guidelines, set by the department director. On-call status is not considered time worked and will not be counted in the total number of hours the employee works during the work period. However, employees will receive a flat rate of on-call pay for each week they are in "on-call status."
- (4) Policy Elements.
- (A) Designation of "on call": An employee will be considered to be officially scheduled and designated as "on-call" when an on-call need has been identified by the department director, instructions have been communicated by the supervisor to the employee concerned and the employee has acknowledged the on-call status and availability instructions; and the employee indicates to the supervisor how the employee can be contacted by phone.
- (B) Timeline for On-call Status: Employees are in "on-call status" for a calendar week.

(5) Pay for On-Call/Call Backs (except Police Department).

- (A) Employees called out 1 or fewer times per week will be paid \$100 for being in an on-call status.
- (B) Employees called out 2 or more times per week will be paid \$200 for being in an on-call status.
- (C) When an employee who is designated as “on-call” is called back to work, they will receive a minimum of one-hour of pay. When an employee is not in an “on-call” status but is called back to work, ~~the~~ employee will get a minimum of two hours of pay. Time worked during the call backs will be at overtime rate even if hours worked during the week had not reached the minimum hours worked for overtime in the work period, provided the employee had actually left work for the day and was required to physically return back to the worksite.
- (D) Employees who are called back into work will have the Call Back event protected and can be paid for the event in excess of the normal scheduled hours on the timesheet. However, employees who are scheduled to use leave in the week called back may elect to reduce the leave hours equal to the call back hours worked and use that leave time on a future date as approved under the normal leave approval process. Holidays/Weekends - No additional pay or arrangements are paid for holidays or weekend except as noted in (E).
- (E) Full-time employees that would typically have been off on a holiday with the rest of a department or work group, but are required to work either on an actual holiday (or observed holiday as substitute) to support city services or events will be paid at overtime rate for hours worked on such holiday as call back (excludes Golf and Police/Fire normal scheduled operational shifts).

Deleted: he/she

(6) Pay for On-Call (Police Department).

- (A) Employees designated on call for the week will be paid a flat rate of \$100 for 1 or fewer call backs, \$200 for 2 or more call backs, and any time worked while called back in to work. Hours worked will be paid in accordance with the normal regular and overtime rates based on hours worked in the period.
- (B) Certain police assignments with advanced approval may receive call back pay when not designated on call for the week. When an employee is in an approved assignment for this arrangement, ~~the~~ employee will get a minimum of two hours of pay when called back, and the time worked during the call back will be at overtime rate.

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: 2022

(l) Longevity Pay.

(1) Fire and police departments. In accordance with the requirements of state law, sworn employees of the fire and police departments shall be paid longevity pay at the rate of \$4.00 per month for each completed year of full-time service to a maximum of 25 years of service.

(2) Other employees. All other full-time employees shall be paid longevity pay after five years of service at the rate of \$4.00 per month for each completed year of full-time service to a maximum of 25 years.

(m) Incentive or Certification Pay. (revised 10/01/20)(10/01/21)

An employee who obtains a specialized certification that is recognized by the City Manager as beneficial to performance of the employee's duties, may be paid a flat annual rate, calculated and paid out per pay period, in addition to the employee's regular pay. The rate of payment for incentive pay and eligibility to receive incentive pay will be established through adoption of the annual operating budget. Director level positions and above are not eligible to receive incentive pay. Employees on an unpaid leave of absence are also not eligible for incentive or certification pay for pay periods where there is no compensation paid to the employee. Human resources will maintain the official list of positions and employees qualifying for incentive pay.

9.5 Payment of Compensation upon Employee's Death. (revised 10/01/20)(10/01/21)

(a) An employee may complete a Terminal Pay Beneficiary Designation form to designate the payee of the employee's final earnings upon the death of the employee. This form should be reviewed and updated routinely by the employee.

Deleted: his/her

(b) If no Terminal Pay Beneficiary Designation form is on file for an employee, compensation due a deceased employee for any final wages, sick and vacation benefits, or other due income will be paid in accordance with the state statute. A deceased employee's wages is the property of the deceased person's estate and payment can be made to the executor/administrator of the estate upon receipt of a probate court issued letters testamentary or letters of administration, confirmation of the identity of the executor/administrator, and having executor/administrator sign for receipt of the wages. In the case of a deceased employee that was married at the time of death, the payment may be made to the surviving spouse if that person presents a suitable affidavit that no executor or administrator has been appointed.

(c) Sick and vacation will be paid according to leaves policies with the exception of waiving the waiting period and length of service provisions.

Deleted: 2022

9.6 Compensation Plan Design

(a) All employees of the city are compensated on the basis of one or more position classification and compensation plans. These pay plans are based on wage schedules adopted annually by the city council as part of the budget. The wage schedule consists of a series of pay grades to which city positions are assigned according to the type of work, difficulty, and responsibility entailed.

9.7 Temporary Assignments. (revised 01/01/13) (10/01/18)

- (a) Non-public safety personnel: A department director may designate an employee to fill a position on a temporary basis. A person temporarily filling a position in a higher classification shall be paid the base wage of the higher position or a wage that would provide at least five percent increase, during the time the employee performs the duties of the higher position. The wage paid will be dependent upon the scope of temporary duties and the length of time the temporary assignment is in place.
- (b) Public Safety commissioned staff who are responsible for serving as Officer in Charge (OIC) during a shift(s) will be paid in accordance with the Public Safety Step Plan- see Public Safety Step Plan for OIC pay matrix. (effective 12/1/12) (10/01/18)
- (c) Officer In Charge (OIC) compensation is subject to budgetary review on an annual basis. This compensation is subject to change.

9.8 Temporary and Part-time Employees.

An employee who regularly works less than the established hours of employment for each month, may be paid by the hour or pursuant to a wage scale proportional to the amount of time worked. The Wage or hourly rate will be determined during the budget process.

9.9 Wage upon Promotion or Demotion. (10/01/22)

- (a) **Promotion:**
 - i. Non-sworn personnel who are promoted to a position in a higher pay range and are below starting pay for the promotional position, shall be paid at least the minimum of the position’s internal starting pay or 5%, whichever is greater. Otherwise, those who are above the internal starting pay for the new position will have pay determined based on current pay in the new pay range, skills, experience, and pay compression with others currently in the new position with the same or similar skills, without going over the maximum of the pay range. Compensation above the minimum standards must be reviewed with the Director of Human Resources and approved up to the City Manager.
 - ii. Sworn personnel who are promoted are paid based upon a pre-determined matrix.
- (b) **Demotion:** Employees who are demoted (voluntarily or involuntarily) will be paid no more than the maximum of the pay grade to which the employee demotes.

Deleted: 2022

9.10 Wage upon Transfer.

If an employee is transferred from one position to another in the same classification or the same wage range, the wage and merit eligibility date shall not change.

9.11 Maximum Base Wage.

Newly-hired employees are generally brought in at the entry level in the pay grade for the employee’s position. At director discretion an employee may be hired at a base pay higher than entry level if the director documents the experience, skills, qualifications that warrant a higher pay and advise the Human Resources Director of the pay structure planned. Internal equity for other employees will be taken into consideration during these decisions.

Deleted: he/she

An employee shall not be compensated at a base rate higher than the maximum for the position unless the employee was above the maximum wage for the position at the time the plan was adopted.

9.12 Additional Taxable Benefits.

Some city-provided benefits are subject to being taxed on the value of the items. The Internal Revenue Service considers this benefit a form of compensation. As a result, applicable employees receiving city-issued clothing will be required to document the items received on a form (generated by the Finance Department), and the appropriate taxes will be deducted from employee wages. Other items provided to employees for their use, as designated by the Internal Revenue Service, may fall under this provision. When this occurs, the employee will be notified as soon as possible.

9.13 Safety Leave Pay.

In keeping with the city’s safety policy, non-sworn personnel will be required to be off the clock at least six hours for each 24-hour period. If a director needs to authorize safety leave for the express purpose of allowing sleep time for an employee who is assisting during Public Works or other related emergencies, the director may do so. Safety leave is for non-exempt employees who are called back to work outside of the scheduled work hours and who are on duty for an extended period of time. The affected employee(s) will be paid straight time for up to six hours. This time period will be classified as Safety Leave, and coded as such on the employee’s time sheet. This will be used on a limited and select basis for the express purpose of addressing emergencies while still assuring adequate rest for essential personnel.

Deleted: he/she

9.14 Pay Periods.

Wages shall be paid on alternating Fridays with 26 paychecks per year. If a scheduled payday falls on a holiday or weekend, paychecks will be issued on the last work day preceding the holiday or weekend.

Deleted: 2022

9.15 Pay Methods

All employees will be paid their wages via direct deposit.

9.16 Separation Pay. (revised 12/31/15) (01/01/19) (10/01/20) (10/01/21)

(a) Employees that terminate from City employment will be eligible for certain payments in their final check, which is paid in the next normal pay schedule, as follows:

- (1) accrued, unused compensatory time, if applicable, regardless of length of service or reason separating employment with the City.
- (2) accrued, unused vacation time up to maximum paid upon exit criteria if employee completes one year of employment with the City and meets the separation requirements listed in Employment Separation Chapter.
- (3) accrued, unused sick leave according to maximum paid upon exit criteria if employee completes five years of employment with the City and meets the separation requirements listed in Employment Separation Chapter.
- (4) Retirement or resignation notice periods are paid as long as the employee works the notice period in accordance with normal pay practices and provisions. Pay in lieu of working the notice period is not typical and will be determined by the City. Pay in lieu of a working a notice period requires Department Director, Deputy City Manager or City Manager, and HR Director approval.
- (5) Any indebtedness to the City, which the employee has incurred in the course of employment, shall be deducted from the final paycheck, in accordance with the limitations of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

9.17 Payroll Records.

Nonexempt employees shall prepare an accurate record of all hours worked, to be submitted to the Finance department, on the schedule established with human resources and the staff accountant for payroll functions.

9.18 Reporting Questions or Errors.

Employees who have reason to believe an error has been made in calculation of time or payment of wages should contact the Finance Department (Payroll Staff Accountant) or the Human Resources Department. Every effort will be made to correct errors and update records accurately.

9.19 Use of City Vehicles After Hours. (01/01/19)

Management has adopted the following policy regarding personal use of City-owned vehicles:

- (a) For business reasons, certain employees have been designated to drive a City-owned vehicle to and from their residence. This shall be the only authorized personal use of the vehicle. Individuals driving City vehicles may have occasions where an incidental stop is necessary between business stops. Such use shall not be considered to be in violation of this policy.
- (b) Unless required in the course of conducting official city business (i.e. police department transfer of an individual), no employee may transport any other person in a city vehicle. As an exception to this policy for special or unique circumstances, an employee may, in advance of transporting another person for non-business reasons, sign an insurance waiver in a form acceptable to the City's insurance carrier. These forms are available in Human Resources.
- (c) City vehicles cannot be used for supplemental income purposes, and only incidental personal items may be stored in the vehicle.
- (d) When applicable, the City will compute a daily value for the commuting which will be included in the employee's biweekly pay and reported on Form W-2 for the fringe benefit at the end of the calendar year. Such amount will be the minimum allowed by federal income tax laws.
- (e) In general, company vehicles allowed to be driven home are considered a convenience to the employee and the normal time commuting home to work and work to home at the beginning and ending of the shift is not considered hours worked for payroll compensation. There are exceptions when travel time is outside normal commute and when this occurs, such travel time will be paid according to federal and state pay regulations. Contact Human Resources for further guidance.
- (f) Note: Internal Revenue Service regulations require the City to maintain evidence which would enable the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) to determine whether use of the vehicle is in accordance with policy maintained by the City.

9.20 Work Related Training. (01/01/19)

- (a) If an employee receives approval for training including those offsite or out of area, which are required for their position or some other continuing education for the City and City related business, the pay will be considered regular hours worked

(using training pay code for hourly employees) and will be paid according to federal and state wage and hour regulations. Actual expenses to attend such training, professional conferences, conventions or short schools, or to visit other cities for the benefit of the City will be paid or reimbursed at Director discretion based on approved budgeted expenses and in accordance with expense policies. All training costs and time must be approved in advance.

(b) In the event a training or conference is not approved, employees that wish to attend may do so at their own cost and time by requesting vacation or comp time subject to manager approval as normal.

Deleted: ¶
Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 10: Travel

10.1 Purpose and Penalty.

- (a) Purpose. The purpose of this travel policy is to regulate expenses for out-of-town travel, local meetings, entertainment, personal car mileage, and other travel related expenses. The policy applies to all employees of the city who are authorized to officially represent the city at various conferences, meetings, conventions, seminars, and other functions. The policy:
 - (1) governs and regulates the financing and reimbursement of allowable expenses incurred by city employees in their official capacity as a representative of the city; and
 - (2) provides uniform guidelines and procedures for submission and processing of allowable expenditure requests and establishes proper accounting for approved, allowable expenses, including travel advances and cash expenditures, made for the purposes authorized by this policy.
- (b) Penalty for Non-Compliance. Failure to comply with all provisions of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.
- (c) At all times employee conduct while on travel will be exemplary and will reflect positively on the city. This includes conduct at parties and dinners, decisions related to what establishments will be frequented and other related behavior.

10.2 Responsibility for Administration of this Policy.

- (a) City Manager. By city charter, the City Manager is designated as the employee who has financial responsibility for administration of funds. The City Manager may designate the Finance department to oversee daily administration of this policy. However, questions that arise related to expenses for travel outside the scope of what is covered here will ultimately be resolved by the City Manager.
- (b) Department director. The department director is responsible for communicating and administering the provisions of this regulation to employees and approving expenses as legitimate business related items. Directors may delegate the on-going administration of this policy to managers and other subordinate personnel. However, each director is ultimately responsible for the proper administration of the policy. Furthermore, any recommended deviation or exception to the provisions of the policy may not be delegated and must be specifically submitted in writing by the department director.
 - (1) Prior to allowing any employee to register for training, schedule business related trips, make accommodations for lodging, or otherwise incur

Deleted: He/She

Deleted: 2022

financial obligation as a representative of the city, directors shall require employees to be advised that they are expected to understand the entire travel policy. These employees shall be provided reasonable opportunity to review the policy and ask questions regarding its content, as they determine necessary. Furthermore, all employees must acknowledge such understanding and opportunity before traveling on behalf of the city. Finally, upon completing travel, employees are expected to acknowledge in writing, that they have in fact, complied with the terms of the policy.

(2) For purposes of this policy, whenever the employee requesting the reimbursement or advance, is a director, the term “department director” shall refer to the Deputy City Manager or the City Manager, whichever is applicable. Likewise, whenever the employee requesting reimbursement is the Deputy City Manager, the term “department director” shall refer to the City Manager. The City Manager’s reimbursement or advance requests shall be submitted to the Deputy City Manager for policy compliance review only.

(c) Director of Finance. The Director of Finance is responsible for the overall administration of the provisions of this travel policy. The Director of Finance and the department director, as well as any other employee, shall have the responsibility to report any abuse or misuse of travel and training funds to appropriate members of management.

10.3 Expenses and Documentation.

(a) Expenses must be reasonable. The allowance for expenses shall consist of the actual costs which a reasonable and prudent person incurs related to travel and local meeting attendance. Employees are expected to be conservative in their expenditures; as if such costs were being paid by themselves.

(b) Extraordinary costs. The city recognizes that the “cost of living” in some regions of the country may be sharply greater than corresponding prices typical throughout the Metroplex and the State of Texas. It is beyond the scope of this policy to detail or index a set of specific guidelines appropriate for all locales, at all times, in all circumstances. Whenever trips to such destinations (typically in the large northern metropolitan areas and along either coast) are anticipated, the department director may arrange for increased spending limits, by obtaining in advance, the written authorization of the City Manager or Deputy City Manager.

(c) Department restrictions. Due to budgetary constraints or unique situations existing within the various operations of the city, department directors may adopt more restrictive allowances and practices than those specified within this policy. These directives may be imposed within the departments on either a “standing”

or “case-by-case” basis. Otherwise, the general guidelines outlined in this policy shall apply. (Each department has the sole responsibility to monitor compliance with any special, more restrictive procedures which they may impose from time-to-time. The finance department monitors only the requirements of this policy and the exceptions appropriately authorized.)

- (d) Meal expense documentation. In general, employees will be allowed a per diem amount to cover meals during travel. Any circumstances that fall out of the norm as described in meal allowance below will require receipts and/or documentation.
- (e) Documentation of hotel, transportation or extraordinary expenses. Requests for reimbursement shall be returned to the originating department for further clarification whenever acceptable documentation is not provided. Acceptable documentation is a service provider name or logo printed receipt, where available. No reimbursement will be made for costs in excess of the maximum allowances except for “extraordinary expenses” as covered by this policy. Expenses in excess of maximum allowances are the responsibility of the employee. If receipts are lost or otherwise unavailable for submission with the claim for reimbursement, claimed expenses are subject to denial at the discretion of the Deputy City Manager or the City Manager, if applicable.
 - (1) Employees are expected to exert reasonable efforts to obtain and turn in original receipts for hotel, transportation, and extraordinary expenses. If a receipt is lost or otherwise unavailable, the employee may in some cases, be reimbursed. Such reimbursement may be granted if the employee provides adequate, reasonable, persuasive, and detailed documentation addressing the absence of the items. Reimbursement will be denied to the extent that the absence of receipts results from the carelessness or inattention of the employee. If a service provider does not present a receipt, the employee is expected to request documentation. An employee who asserts that documentation was "unobtainable" will be presumed to have performed such attempts and the supporting documentation should specifically refer to the employee's unsuccessful efforts.

Note: Most service providers will produce receipts and itemize charges (although some must be specifically requested to do so).

- (2) Although employees are not expected to go to unreasonable measures to obtain detailed receipts for hotel, transportation or extraordinary expenses, extra effort is expected when documenting items which cannot be supported by receipts or other vouchers created by service providers.

Deleted: 2022

In no case, should an employee ever personally create and submit documents which:

- (A) have the appearance of material provided by a service provider;
or
 - (B) could reasonably be presumed by a reviewer of the reimbursement request to be the documentation provided by a service provider when in fact, the item was created by the employee.
- (3) Without exception, such activity will be viewed as deceptive and a violation of this policy. Reviewers of reimbursement requests presume that items bearing the appearance of documentation typically obtained from service providers were in fact obtained from the service providers. Employees should take care that their own personal record keeping efforts will not reasonably be confused with the documentation of service providers.

10.4

Allowable Travel Expenses.

- (a) Generally. Actual, reasonable, and appropriate living expenses, within the specified limits, may be claimed by all city employees when they are representing the city on official business away from the city. Living expenses that will be reimbursed include the items listed and explained in this section.
- (b) Lodging. Employees must seek reasonably priced hotel rooms of acceptable quality. Employees must consider transportation costs, time, and other relevant factors in selecting the most practical and economical accommodations. This provision should not deter an employee from staying in a hotel where the meeting or convention to be attended is held. Overnight accommodations for conferences and training sessions and other meetings within the Metroplex must be justified in writing and approved by the department director.
- (c) Meals. Employees will be authorized a maximum per diem allowance for overnight travel only as stipulated in the most current Internal Revenue Service publication #1542, "Per Diem Rates" for meals during travel. The correct rate will be the meal and incidental expense (MandIE) per diem amount under the high-low substantiation method effective for the fiscal year in which the travel occurred. Any per diem allowed above the maximum as published in the IRS regulations will be itemized and substantiated with receipts.

The daily per diem is intended to cover the costs of meals, snacks, and gratuities. The amount allowed per diem is determined by the time of day of travel (see below). In some cases, advances will be given for meal per

diems, and in some cases the city credit card will be used. If a city credit card is used for per diem expenses, receipts should not exceed the daily per diem rate.

- (d) Partial day Allowance (over-night travel only). Partial per diem rates shall be provided based on the time of travel. Per diem for travel days will be set at 75% of the daily rate for the business trip.
- (e) Allowances (same day round trip travel). Advance issue of funds for meals for same day round trip training or travel may be approved at director discretion. These funds will be subject to withholding for income tax purposes and are considered compensation/income. See the Travel Chapter for procedures on securing advance funds.
- (f) Receipts: Receipts are not required to be turned in for meals, snacks and tips when cash is used. Receipts are required when the city credit card is used in keeping with the city's purchasing card processing policies.
- (g) Allowances at Training and Seminar Events (overnight travel only). A per diem allowance will be given for conference/seminars that do not include meals as a part of the registration fee. If meals are included, per diem will be reduced accordingly for each meal provided.
- (h) Ground Transportation. Employees may claim reasonable actual ground transportation expenses, including shuttle services and taxis, if documentation for these expenses is submitted along with the written approval of the department director.
- (i) Parking. Employees may claim actual parking expenses. Whenever possible, receipts should be submitted for parking fees. For parking meters or parking lots where receipts are not offered, the employee should submit a handwritten, signed, accounting of the expense.

Deleted: is based on the quarter system for computing the allowance for days or fractions thereof. Each quarter is six hours beginning at midnight, 6:00 a.m., Noon, and 6:00 p.m. The traveler is allowed one fourth of the allowance published by the IRS for each period of six hours or fraction thereof.

10.5 Non-allowable Travel Expenses.

The cost of alcoholic beverages, laundry, dry cleaning, in room movies, limousines, tours, personal entertainment, or other recreational activities that are not included in the cost of the registration or that are not an integral part of the conference or training session will not be reimbursed by the city. When an employee is accompanied by a spouse, family member or other guest, the employee will be responsible for all the guest's expenses and will be reimbursed only the expenses the employee would have incurred traveling alone.

10.6 Transportation.

- (a) Selecting transportation. Employees shall be flexible as to time of day, carrier selection, and routing in order to minimize total travel costs. Reimbursement may be made for travel performed by public motor vehicle, common carrier, chartered vehicle or privately owned vehicle. The principal mode of travel shall be approved in advance by the department director, taking into account such factors as parking, distance to and from airports, and the location of the event. The department director should generally designate the most economical mode of travel, taking into consideration the following factors:
- (1) the nature of the business;
 - (2) the time of the travel, cost of transportation and meals, lodging, and incidental expenses required; and
 - (3) the number of persons traveling and the equipment and material to be transported. Whenever an employee, for the employee's own convenience, chooses a mode of transportation which is not the most economical option, the city will reimburse only the amount of the least expensive alternative.
- (b) Airline. Except for reasons of time, or extenuating circumstances, trips of 200 miles or less (one way) shall be by city or personal vehicle, not air travel. Exceptions must be approved in writing by the department director. Airfare will generally provide more economical transportation between more distant destinations. If an employee chooses to travel by personal vehicle, the total mileage reimbursement may not exceed the price of a coach airfare ticket for the same distance traveled. Those employees receiving a car allowance will have the roundtrip reimbursement mileage reduced by 60 miles to account for Metroplex mileage. The price of airfare used for mileage comparison should be the rate listed as of at least two weeks prior to the first day of travel. Exceptions may be made if the employee can demonstrate that notwithstanding the fact that the mileage reimbursement rate exceeded the price of coach airfare, that all factors considered, the total cost to the city was lower when using a personal vehicle as opposed to air travel.
- (c) Passenger Car. Whenever practical, employees traveling within the Metroplex, are encouraged to use a vehicle assigned to their department or if necessary and practical, arrange for the use of another city vehicle. Otherwise, the employee's personal car may be used. For purposes of this policy, the Metroplex is composed of two Primary Metropolitan Statistical Areas (PMSA). Dallas PMSA (Collin, Dallas, Denton, Ellis, Henderson, Hunt, Kaufman, Rockwall) and Fort Worth PMSA (Hood, Johnson, Parker, Tarrant).
- (1) Mileage will be reimbursed at the rate established by the Internal Revenue Service.

- (2) When travel is by indirect route for the traveler's own convenience, reimbursement for expenses shall be based only on such charges as would have been incurred over the most direct route.
 - (3) Employees who receive a car allowance will not receive mileage reimbursement for travel within the Metroplex.
- (d) **Rental Cars.** Under ordinary circumstances, the cost of rental cars will not be reimbursed except when ground transportation is not available or economical. Approval of a rent car must be obtained from the department director prior to making the trip. Documentation must be provided to support this request. Employees should waive the liability/collision option typically offered at an additional cost, by the rental agency as this coverage is provided under the city's insurance coverage.

10.7 Extraordinary Expenses

There may be isolated occasions when extraordinary expenses beyond ordinary living costs can be justified as having a direct bearing upon city programs or which otherwise could be of benefit to the city. Expenses not specifically addressed in this policy that are incurred by an employee are allowable when determined by the department director to be reasonable and necessary for the conduct of city business. These expenses must be individually reviewed by the director and recommended as reasonable and proper and incurred in the pursuit of city business. In such cases, approval for reimbursement of expenditures may be secured if adequate written justification is submitted to the finance department. Notwithstanding the responsibilities and duties of the department director, the finance director may forward expenditures which, in the finance director's judgment might be questionable, to the Deputy City Manager or the City Manager for approval.

10.8 Fraudulent Claims

The city will fund or reimburse reasonable expenses as described in this policy, that are incurred by employees at conferences, meetings, conventions, seminars, and other functions, to the extent that the amounts are: 1) authorized, 2) incurred, and 3) documented. Every claim submitted pursuant to this policy shall be substantiated by a receipt or voucher and shall contain a statement that the expenses are actually incurred by the traveler as necessary in the performance of their official duties. Each claim shall be accompanied by a written declaration that the claim is true and correct as to every material matter and that the employee has read and understands the city's entire travel policy. Any person who willfully makes and subscribes to any claim which they do not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter or who willfully aids or advises others in falsifying claims, will themselves be in violation of this policy. Whomever shall receive an allowance or reimbursement by means of a false claim shall be personally liable in the amount of the fraudulent payment for the reimbursement to the public funds from which the claim was paid. Fraudulent claims may also result in additional disciplinary procedures up to and including termination.

For a definition of fraud, see the glossary in this manual.

10.9 Requests for Travel Advances.

- (a) When requested. When it becomes necessary that an employee travel in the interest of the city, the department director may request an Advance Payment Request Form from the finance department. The request should be prepared and submitted at the earliest practical time but preferably no less than seven full working days prior to departure.
- (b) Authorization. The Advance Payment Request Form shall include information indicating the name of the prospective traveler, amount requested, purpose of the trip, date(s), account number to be charged, and any other pertinent information. The employee shall sign the form indicating that the employee understands and agrees to follow this policy. The form shall then be signed by the department director and the City Manager or the Deputy City Manager of administration.

10.10 Filing Expense Reports.

- (a) Complete the Expense Report Promptly. Upon return from travel, the employee shall fill out an expense report for approval by the department director within 10 working days. If additional time is taken, it must be approved in writing by the department director, and the department director's approval must accompany the expense report at the time it is ultimately submitted.
- (b) Itemized Expenses. Each claim for expenses must be supported with an acceptable receipt. Miscellaneous items, such as pay telephones and parking meters, for which no receipt is available require hand written justification. Do not use guest receipts which are not original items provided by third party service providers or forms or vouchers which might reasonably appear to have been provided by third parties. Use only hand written documentation which is specifically acknowledged to have been produced by the employee. If an employee fills in an amount on a pre-printed "guest receipt", that figure should be initialed by the employee. Expense claims not supported by pre-printed receipts will be rejected unless written justification initiated by the department director is submitted. If a credit card is used for payment, whenever possible, the provider's bill/receipt/ticket should be submitted instead of the credit card receipt.

Whenever personal credit card receipts are used for documentation, employees should take care to fully obscure credit card numbers (for reasons of personal financial security).

- (c) Expenses of non-employees. Only department directors will be allowed to pay an expense not incurred directly by a city employee. Even in these instances, the directors must provide a detailed written explanation supporting the "business

purpose” of the expense. Exceptions to this general rule must be documented by advance written approval of the department director.

- (d) Submit to department director for approval. The department director shall review, sign, and submit the expense report to the finance department within five working days of its receipt from the employee. When payment or documentation is not received within the required time, the finance department will discontinue any advances to that employee, and will provide a list to the Deputy City Manager or City Manager, of employees who are delinquent and whose privileges have been revoked. The department director is also responsible for ensuring that all expense reports are completed in accordance with this policy.
- (e) Return of Unused Funds. In instances where an advance of city funds was made and not entirely used, or if the trip was not taken, the employee shall return the unused funds to the finance department for credit to the proper fund. The original receipt of this refund transaction must be attached to the expense report and submitted to the finance department.
- (f) Finance department review. The finance department shall review the items submitted and determine their mathematical accuracy and compliance with this policy. The finance department will make any corrections under this policy determined necessary by its review.
- (g) Petty cash. Expense reports submitted for reimbursement of expenses \$50 and less shall be reimbursed through petty cash.
- (h) Appeals. Disagreement as to whether an expenditure is allowed, may be appealed by the employee or the department director, the Deputy City Manager, or the City Manager, if applicable. The provisions of this policy will be the guideline in the final decision.

**Chapter 11: Employment Separation, Reduction in Force and Rehire/Reinstatement
(01/01/19) (04/01/21) (10/01/21)**

11.1 Separation Requirements.

- (a) Employees must provide a written notice period for voluntary separation of employment as follows:
- (1) Retirement notice – Employees must give a written, 30-day notice and be available to work during the notice period.
 - (2) All other resignations - Employees must give a written, 2- week notice and be available to work during the notice period. An employee may not extend their last day of employment with the city using paid leave except in the event of the employee being on an approved paid administrative leave of absence or a medical leave of absence where the employee is unable to return to work.
 - (3) The Department Director, City Manager, or Deputy City Manager may adjust the notice period or waive a notice requirement as described in (1) and (2) above after receiving a written resignation should such an adjustment be beneficial to the City. If the notice period is waived, the City shall determine if the employee is still considered to be eligible for vacation and sick leave payout.
- (b) Employees must return all city issued equipment, devices, uniforms, access badges and/or keys, and all other items at the time of leaving employment.
- (c) Vacation and sick leave payout eligibility at separation. An employee who meets the separation requirements below shall be entitled to payment of certain earned, unused vacation and sick leave as outlined in the chapter - Vacation, Sick, Leave of Absence, and Other Absence from Work. If an employee fails to meet the separation requirements, they shall not receive those payments. Unless other arrangements are made by the City Manager’s office, department director, employee, and director of human resources, an employee must:
- (1) meet the length of service requirements in the leave policy for payout.
 - (2) provide the proper written notice for voluntarily separations and return city-issued items noted in Separation Requirements (a) and (b) above.
 - (3) not be separating employment due to or in conjunction with circumstances involving an extreme or significant violation by the employee that could bring financial or other grievous harm to the City. Such violations include, but are not limited to theft, fraud, embezzlement, workplace violence, criminal acts against the City, or other serious matters as determined by the City. Any matter under investigation at the time of employee separation that could impact eligibility for payout will be fully investigated prior to making sick and/or vacation payments. All other compensation

owed for hours worked and compensatory time will be paid out in the normal pay cycle in accordance with federal, state, and local regulations.

(d) For other final pay provisions, see the Compensation Chapter under Separation Pay.

11.2 Reduction In Force (Layoffs). (01/01/19)

- (a) Procedures. Layoff of employees may occur when changes in duties, organization, or lack of work or funds necessitates such action. The order of layoff shall be determined by multiple factors to include the current operating needs of the City, employees' knowledge, skills, abilities, performance patterns, disciplinary history, and compliance with the City's guideline and standards. Length of service may be used as a determining factor when a decision needs to be made between employees of equal standing on those varying factors. When possible, employees to be laid off will be given 30 calendar days' notice. The Human Resources Department will coordinate all layoff actions with the affected departments.
- (c) Placement. When layoffs are required, every effort shall be made to place affected employees in other open positions for which they are qualified. A laid-off employee may elect to officially terminate employment with the City versus accepting reassignment with all of the rights of an employee resigning in good standing.
- (d) Re-Employment After Layoff. Employees are eligible for rehire when laid off. The City does not have recall rights. An employee may reapply with the City for open positions and will be considered along with other qualified applicants.

11.3 Rehire/Reinstatement. (01/01/19)

- (a) Rehire. Rehire of a former employee may be granted to applicants who can demonstrate acceptable prior service and meet current qualifications for the position. Rehire is at the sole discretion of the City.
- (b) Rehire when laid off. Providing an employee was laid off and accepts the first offer of rehire with the City, they will be reinstated with full service credit up to the time of layoff for purposes of longevity pay and vacation/sick accrual benefits. The accrual amount will be based on the new position for which rehired. Retirement benefits are managed at reinstatement in accordance with the policies of the Texas Municipal Retirement System regardless of rehire provisions above. Group health or other benefit eligibilities will be based on the re-employment date.
- (c) Other Rehires. Providing an employee left in good standing and rehires within ninety (90) days of separation, they will retain the same level of seniority for purposes of accruing vacation/sick benefits. The accrual amount will be based on

the new position for which rehired. Employees rehired after (90) days of separation will not maintain seniority for purposes of accruing vacation/sick benefits. Retirement benefits are managed at reinstatement in accordance with the policies of the Texas Municipal Retirement System regardless of rehire provisions above. Group health or other benefit eligibilities will be based on the re-employment date.

Chapter 12: Employee Benefits

12.1 Benefits – Regular Employees (excluding Retirement). (revised: 8/2013) (01/01/19) (10/01/20)

- (a) Employees who are in positions that are budgeted for benefits (full-time and some part-time employees working 20 or more hours per week) receive a core benefits package inclusive of health, dental, LTD, life, employee assistance programs, vacation, sick, holiday pay, and other paid time off leaves as described in the Handbook. Other supplemental benefits may include options to purchase additional life for self and dependents, vision insurance, participation in deferred compensation and other related benefits.
- (b) Benefits are not guaranteed, and no part of the employment arrangement affords an expressed or implied guarantee of benefits. The availability of any and all benefits is contingent upon available budgeted funds and the approval of that budget by the City Council following recommendations by the City Manager and Human Resources office.
- (c) A summary of benefits is available for all employees to review in the Human Resources Department.
- (d) All full-time employees are required to be covered on the health plan. Some employees may be eligible for an opt-out provision if [the employee](#) has coverage from another employer-based plan (i.e. spouse’s plan), the United States military, or retiree coverage provided from a prior employer/military.
- (e) Employees that leave City employment and are re-employed, will be required to meet the normal group health waiting period from the re-employment date.
- (f) In the event of an employee death, the City will provide six (6) months of COBRA coverage for medical, dental and vision for the current enrolled dependents and coverages as applicable; different or additional benefits may be available in accordance with state law for an in line of duty death.

Deleted: he/she

12.2 Tuition Reimbursement. (revised 10/01/2023)

Tuition reimbursement is intended to assist active, regular full-time and regular part-time employees in obtaining additional education to develop their careers within the City as well as improve performance in their current positions.

Deleted: 2022

Eligibilities:

Employee Participation: In order to receive tuition reimbursement, an employee must have:

- Completed the six-month probation period prior to beginning of the course
- Be a regular, full-time or regular, part-time employee (working year round)
- Received an overall “meets expectations” on the employee’s most recent performance evaluation

Coursework: The City will reimburse for coursework as follows:

- Pursuit of an associate’s, bachelor’s or master’s degree from an accredited or recognized secondary educational institution that benefits the City.
- Participation in individual coursework (e.g. computer courses) directly related to the position currently held by the employee. The employee must have prior approval of the Department Director.
- Involvement in Spanish or GED courses (a degree plan is not required).
- Participation in online courses that meet the requirements of this policy taken from an accredited institution of post-secondary education as certified through a commission on higher education of a regional educational agency for colleges and universities.

Courses not stated in the above specifications, continuing education courses, as well as training or education necessary for an employee’s continued employment are not eligible for this reimbursement.

Grade Requirement: To be eligible for reimbursement, an employee must submit proof of a grade of “C” or higher or passing for pass/fail courses. For courses where grades are not assigned, a certificate of completion by the institution will serve as proof of satisfactory for course completion.

Expenses: Expense eligible for reimbursement are tuition and mandatory fees. Books, optional fees, and late fees are not eligible for reimbursement.

Reimbursement amounts and application process:

Maximum Reimbursement: Employees are eligible to be reimbursed up to \$1200 per semester for qualified undergraduate out of pocket expenses and \$1500 per semester for qualified graduate out of pocket expenses. Reimbursements are limited to three semesters annually: Spring (January through May), Summer (June through August), and Fall (September through December). Institutions with other semester terms will be aligned into one of the recognized semester periods for purposes of reimbursement eligibility.

Deleted: 2022

The maximum reimbursement will be reduced by any amount received from other third party sources such as a grant, scholarship or tuition reimbursement from another employer, but does not include student or short-term loans.

Reimbursements are made dependent upon the availability of approved funds and per semester reimbursement amounts are subject to change per the approved budget. Reimbursements may be considered as taxable income as determined by federal tax laws.

Application, submission, and reimbursement procedure:

1. Employees must provide the following at least 30 days prior to beginning of each semester:
 - a. A completed tuition reimbursement request form signed by the employee and the employee's Department Director.
 - b. An official and current degree plan (only needs to be submitted once at the time of the first reimbursement request or as updated) to be kept on file with Human Resources for intended coursework approved by the Department Director.
 - c. A copy of the registration form listing the current semester's coursework.
 - d. [A copy of the paid receipt itemizing tuition, fees, and any financial assistance for the current semester's coursework, if available. An itemized, paid receipt must at least be provided when submitting the passing grade for the actual reimbursement.](#)
2. An acknowledgement will be sent to the employee informing him or her of the coursework tentatively approved.
3. Reimbursement requests will be date stamped as they are submitted. Allocations will be made for such requests in the order they are received according to policy until the amounts budgeted for the operating year have been exhausted.
4. Employees must submit a copy of the passing grade report (or certificate) and [itemized, paid receipt \(if not provided with the original request\)](#) to Human Resources no later than 30 days after the completion of coursework to complete the reimbursement request or reimbursement may be forfeited.
5. HR will review, process approved reimbursements, and notify employee of status.
6. Employees will receive reimbursement as a separate check generated through Finance.
7. In order to receive tuition reimbursement, employees must maintain an active status until reimbursement is issued.

Deleted: A copy of the receipt itemizing tuition, fees, and any financial assistance for the current semester's coursework (or as soon as available).

Deleted: a copy of the receipt for classes showing no balance due the school, if not already done,

Formatted: Not Highlight

Deleted: 2022

Service Requirement:

An employee must fulfill a 24-month service requirement with the City, which begins from the date of each reimbursement. The employee must agree to execute a written agreement that provides that if the employee voluntarily terminates employment with the City prior to fulfilling the 24-month service requirement, any reimbursements paid by the City shall be repaid either by personal check or, with prior authorization, from the employee's paycheck.

The City reserves the right to modify, amend, suspend or terminate this policy, its standard practices, and its administrative procedures at any time, at its sole discretion. Payment of reimbursement does not constitute an agreement of continuation of employment with the City.

12.3 Retirement Benefits. (01/01/12)(02/04/13)(06/06/16)(10/01/21)(10/01/23)

(a) Retirement pension system. The city participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). All employees regularly scheduled 1000 hours per year or more are required to be members of and contribute to TMRS. Employee contributions to TMRS are deducted from the employee's paycheck each payroll period. The city also makes a contribution on behalf of the member employee. All retirement activities are governed by the Texas Municipal Retirement System Act.

(b) Deferred Compensation. The city will participate in deferred compensation plans on a pre-tax or post tax basis for optional employee only contributions so employees may have the ability to build retirement income outside the city provided pension plan.

Deleted:

Deleted:

(c) Insurance Benefits Policy for Retiring City Employees.

General Policy Statement: This policy outlines the benefits offered to retirees from the City of Burleson, the qualifications for eligibility, and the administration of retiree benefits. All elements of this policy are subject to change by action of the City Council. This policy applies to persons retiring on or after January 1, 2012. Exceptions made to this policy must be approved by formal vote of the City Council and maintained in the retiring employee's personnel file.

(1) Responsibility

(A) It is the responsibility of the City Manager (or designee) and the Human Resources Director to review, update, and administer this policy, having briefed Council as appropriate.

Deleted: 2022

- (B) It is the responsibility of the Finance Director to maintain budgetary records as needed and accurately report retiree benefits in financial reports.
- (C) It is the responsibility of retiring employees to utilize this policy in good faith and to regularly and completely disclose needed information upon retirement and following retirement to assure the policy's intent is followed.

(2) Qualifying for and Administering Retiree Insurance Benefits

- (A) An employee must be qualified to retire under the standards of retirement as established by TMRS to qualify for any medical, dental, vision or other insurance benefit for retirees at the City of Burleson, and
- (B) An employee must have completed five (5) years of consecutive service immediately prior to retirement with the City of Burleson and/or meet whatever vesting requirement is in place with TMRS (whichever is greater) at the time of retirement,
- (C) An employee must provide a 30-day written notice of retirement to their supervisor and Human Resources. The notice period timeframe may be waived without affecting eligibility due to reasonable circumstances as determined at the discretion of the City.
- (D) The retiring employee must inform the City, not later than the day on which the person retires, that the person elects to continue insurance coverage with the City. Failure to advise the City of this election on or before the day on which the person retires will result in individual being ineligible for retiree insurance benefits.

- (E) Retirees are eligible to participate in retiree health insurance with the City of Burleson only until Medicare eligibility or as long as the retiree does not have access to other coverage as outlined in (F).

(F) Pre-Medicare Eligible Retirees

- 1. Pre-Medicare retirees are not eligible to be on the City's medical and/or dental plan if they have access to health and/or dental coverage upon or after retirement through another group plan/employer's plan, or have voluntarily chosen coverage under another individually held private health plan.

Deleted: life,

Deleted: at which time a Medicare supplement will be made available

Deleted: .

Formatted

Deleted: R

Deleted: Who Are Not-Yet Eligible for Medicare Benefits

Deleted: ¶
¶
Access to Other Coverage: A pre-Medicare eligible retiree must sign an affidavit stating that he/she will not have access to any other health or dental coverage

Deleted: new employer,

Deleted: .

Deleted: 2022

2. Retirees will be required to sign an affidavit upon electing initial retiree coverage and annually thereafter affirming they are eligible to be on the City's insurance plan.

Deleted: , in order to be a participating member of the retiree health or dental insurance benefit.
Formatted: Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Indent at: 2"

3. Retirees that meet eligibility requirements to be on another group plan/employer's health and/or dental plan or chooses to obtain an individually held private health plan at any point after initial retiree enrollment must notify the Human Resources department immediately to discontinue the City's medical and/or dental retiree insurance coverage at the time they cease to be eligible.

Deleted:
Formatted: Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.75" + Indent at: 2"

Deleted: s
Deleted: The Human Resources department may require that the retiree sign such an affidavit annually.

(G) Medicare Eligible Retirees

1. Retirees or dependents that are Medicare eligible will be unenrolled from the primary health insurance plan upon Medicare eligibility.

Deleted: will not be allowed to remain in the primary health insurance plan. She/he will be required to drop coverage in the primary insurance plan upon Medicare eligibility

2. Upon eligibility for Medicare, a retiree and/or eligible dependent may elect optional Medicare supplement coverage with a 100% of the premiums being paid by the retiree. The Medicare supplement plan will be reviewed annually in the budget and benefits review process.

Deleted:

Deleted:

3. If dependents are not yet Medicare eligible, a retiree may continue, at their own expense, dependent coverage options that they elected upon retirement after they become eligible for Medicare.

Deleted: All (100% of) premiums will be paid by the retiree.

Deleted: Medicare eligible dependents may not be covered under any city plan.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: s

Deleted: : (2/4/13); (6/6/16)

Deleted:

(H) Enrollment After Retirement

1. Retirees and retiree dependents may not enroll in the City of Burlison health plan at a later date unless item (G)(3.) applies below.

Deleted: he/she

2. A retiree may continue coverage that is in place at the time of retirement until Medicare eligibility, but they may not elect new coverage.

3. Retirees who elect to enroll in a Public Exchange upon retirement, will be allowed to return to the City's retiree benefit plan during open enrollment, if their Public Exchange carrier ceases to participate in the Affordable Care Act Public Exchange system. The retiree is responsible for showing proof of enrollment in public exchange system and proof that the carrier has elected not to participate in the Exchange system going forward.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

4. If the retiree loses coverage mid-year due to the carrier pulling out of participation in the Public Exchange system under the Affordable Care Act, the retiree has 30 days to re-enter the City health plan. This loss of coverage will be treated as a qualifying event.

(I) Ancillary Coverages (other than health)

1. A qualifying retiree (as defined above) may elect, upon retirement, the dental and other insurance products at their expense if they are utilizing Federally sponsored Medicare/Medicaid health insurance as their primary health provider as dental and other insurance products are not offered with Medicare/Medicaid benefits.

(3) Service Benefit: Those employees who retire on or after January 1, 2012 and have extended years of service may be eligible for a retiree service benefit. This benefit is subject to annual appropriation by the City Council during the budget process. Subject to available funding, employees with service as outlined below will have a portion of their premium paid by the city (retiree premium only) for health and dental coverage for five years.

Years of Service with the City of Burleson	Percent of Retiree Only Premium Paid by the City	Maximum Years of Benefit
20 years of service	50%	Lesser of 5 years or until Medicare eligible
25 years of service	60%	Lesser of 5 years or until Medicare eligible
30 years of service	75%	Lesser of 5 years or until Medicare eligible

(A) This benefit applies to non-contract employees. Employees with a written contract with the City Council should refer to their contract agreement for retirement benefit details.

(B) This service benefit ceases and will not resume if during the five year period the retiree (a) obtains coverage through either their employer or their spouse’s employer, or (b) becomes Medicare eligible.

(4) Financial Responsibility

(A) The retiree is responsible for 100% of premium costs for retiree and dependent health, dental, supplement policy, and any other insurance products offered for retirees. A retiree who elects coverage and fails to pay

Deleted: 2022

premiums or makes the decision to drop coverage for any insurance products elected upon retirement, will not be allowed to elect coverage later.

- (B) The retiree is responsible for payment of insurance premiums in a timely manner as established by Human Resources. It will be assumed that those retirees who have not paid monthly premiums by the last day of the month are voluntarily dropping previously elected coverage. Re-election of coverage will not be possible.

(5) Plan Design

- (A) The plan design for retirees is subject to change. As plans and premiums change, retirees will be required to re-elect existing coverage during open enrollment. Retirees are not guaranteed premium rates for future years upon enrollment.
- (B) Retirees are eligible to re-enroll each plan year only for coverages they elected upon retirement and only if the retiree affirms they do not have access to other coverage as noted in 12.3 (c)(2)(F)(1). Additional coverages not elected upon retirement may not be added during annual open enrollment.

(6) Upon the Retiree's Death

- (A) Surviving spouses who were covered under the retiree's benefits upon the retiree's death may remain in the health insurance plan. Premiums for the spouse will be the same as the premium cost for the retiree. If surviving children remain on the plan, the surviving spouse will be required to pay separately for the dependent coverage at the existing rate (retiree rate + dependent rate = total premium).

(7) Policy Revisions

- (A) Procedural aspects of this policy related to annual open enrollment procedures may vary from year to year in order to fulfill the elements of this policy. However, the content and eligibility does not change without City Council approval.

Deleted: ¶

¶

¶

Deleted: 2022

Chapter 13: Fraud

13.1 Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish a fraud policy to convey, both internally and externally, the intent and conviction that all City business is conveyed with integrity using the highest ethical standards possible. To accomplish this purpose, this policy seeks to establish rules that clearly define unacceptable behavior, prevent fraud and outline the appropriate response to allegations of fraud in connection with City programs, functions or activities. This policy applies to all City employees.

13.2 Scope

This policy establishes three key expectations of the City of Burlleson:

- (a) Since to “guard the public’s trust” is one of the core values of the city’s ethics mission statement, it is important to discourage and prevent fraudulent activity and report suspected fraud.
- (b) Strong procedures, outlined in this policy, will respond to allegations of fraud.
- (c) Investigation procedures ensure objective review of each situation.

13.3 Definitions

(a) **Fraud**: The intentional misappropriation of City assets by any act including, but not limited to, theft, embezzlement and intentional misrepresentation. Acts constituting fraud include but are not limited to:

- (1) Forgery or alteration of any document or account belonging to the City.
- (2) Forgery or alteration of a check, bank draft or any other financial document representing funds belonging to the City.
- (3) Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies or other assets of the City.
- (4) Impropriety in the handling or reporting of money or financial transactions involving the City and any other entity.
- (5) Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of City activities.
- (6) Disclosing confidential and proprietary information to outside parties.
- (7) Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors or persons providing services/materials to the City in return for a referral of business.

(8) Unauthorized destruction, removal or personal use of records, furniture, fixtures and equipment belonging to the City.

(9) Embezzlement, larceny or any other misapplication of City funds.

(10) Any official misconduct including the misapplication or misuse of City funds, property or information.

(b) Appropriate law enforcement authority: A part of a state or local governmental authority or of the federal government that an employee in good faith believes is authorized to:

(1) Regulate or enforce the law alleged to be violated in the report; or

(2) Investigate or prosecute a violation of criminal law.

13.4 Policy

Fraudulent activity is prohibited. All allegations of fraudulent activity will be investigated. If it is determined that any employee has engaged in fraudulent activity, the employee will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of employment, and referral may be made to an appropriate law enforcement authority.

Retaliation against any employee for reporting what is believed to be fraudulent activity or for participating or cooperating in an investigation of an allegation of fraud, is prohibited.

13.5 Roles and Responsibilities

(a) City Manager:

The City Manager has overall responsibility for compliance with this policy. As a public official, the City Manager has a duty to disclose all evidence of fraud. For this reason, when determined necessary, the City Manager, in consultation with an appointed Investigation Committee, if set up under Sec. 13.5 (g) below, will refer information to the appropriate law enforcement authorities on items that may result in criminal prosecution. Where it does not impede or interfere with a criminal investigation or prosecution, the City Manager may provide information to the City Council concerning a particular fraud investigation.

In the event that allegations of fraudulent activity involve the City Manager, the allegations shall be reported to the Mayor and City Attorney. The City Council will investigate allegations of fraudulent activity involving the City Manager in the manner as set out in the City of Burleson Home Rule Charter.

(b) Department Directors:

Department Directors have a responsibility to uphold the City's policy and to communicate the organization's values. They are expected to initiate appropriate preventative measures, implement necessary controls, encourage employees to attend training sessions and initiate investigations.

Department Directors will promptly report allegations or suspicions to the Director of Human Resources and will cooperate in investigations. This will be done prior to taking personnel action toward the employee(s) involved. Failure to report allegations or initiate investigations will result in disciplinary action.

Department Directors are responsible for conducting reviews/investigations of alleged fraud when the Human Resources Director feels it is appropriate for the Department Director to do so. If the Human Resources Director conducts the investigation, Department Directors will provide all necessary assistance.

Department Directors are responsible for determining and enforcing disciplinary action with the aid of the Human Resources Department.

(c) Supervisors and Managers:

- (1) Supervisors and Managers have a responsibility to uphold the City's policy. In consultation with the Department Head's they are expected to initiate
- (2) Appropriate preventative measures, implement necessary controls and initiate investigations by promptly reporting allegations to the department director or Director of Human Resources when they observe behavior that violates this policy and/or when they receive complaints alleging fraud.
- (3) Supervisors and Managers are also expected to cooperate in all investigations.

(d) Director of Human Resources:

- (1) The Director of Human Resources has the responsibility to ensure allegations of fraud are investigated in a timely manner.
- (2) The Director of Human Resources is also responsible for conducting reviews/investigations of alleged fraud or notifying the Department Head that the Department Head should proceed with the review/investigation.
- (3) The Director of Human Resources will develop and implement training programs designed to educate employees about this policy.

(e) Human Resources Department:

- (1) The Human Resources Department will track cases and their disposition. However, if the case is a criminal investigation, no information made

confidential by law or by discretion of the investigating officer will be maintained in the Human Resources Department to avoid impeding the criminal investigation. All criminal case information and documentation will be maintained by the investigating law enforcement authority. All administrative investigation case files will be maintained by the Human Resources Department.

(2) The Human Resources Department is responsible for advising City personnel in the determination and enforcement of disciplinary action.

(f) Employees:

(1) Employees will not engage in fraudulent activity;

(2) Employees who are contacted by citizens with evidence or written allegations of fraud shall immediately report it to their department director, the Human Resources Department, a Deputy City Manager or the City Manager

(3) Employees who suspect fraud shall immediately report their suspicions to their supervisor for appropriate action, or as provided in 3.a or 3.b below. Immediately shall mean as soon as the employee has the means to contact their supervisor or the alternatives, but shall be no longer than twenty-four hours after the employee becomes aware of the suspected fraud.

(A)As an alternative, City employees can go outside the normal chain of command and report suspected fraud directly to their department director, the Human Resources Department, the Police Chief, a Deputy City Manager, or the City Manager.

(B)Employees may also make anonymous reports via the employee anonymous reporting hotline. Details of the anonymous reporting will be placed in this Handbook as an addendum and distributed to all employees. In order to assure that this type of report may be appropriately responded to, employees are discouraged from making anonymous reports via means other than the reporting hotline (notes, phone message, letters, etc.).

(C)Employees are required to cooperate fully during any City review or investigation of an allegation of fraud. Anyone informed of an investigation in progress shall ensure that strict confidentiality is observed so as to not prejudice the investigation. During an investigation, any employee contacted by the media should refer all questions to the Director of Marketing & Communications. Employees should be aware that:

- (1) They are to maintain the confidentiality of the information they receive (except in the event of a public information request, court order or otherwise authorized by law).
- (2) They will not be subject to retaliation for cooperating.
- (3) The Human Resources Department is available to provide advice related to the City's personnel policies.
- (4) If they have questions concerning legal consequences to them personally, they should consult with a personal attorney at their own expense.
- (5) Failure to comply with this policy could result in disciplinary action pursuant to the City of Burleson Employee Handbook.
- (6) Employees who intentionally or knowingly make false accusations and/or provide false information concerning instances of fraud will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

13.6 Investigation Committee:

- (1) Many issues may be handled through normal disciplinary procedures; however, when warranted, the City Manager may appoint an Investigation Committee to respond to fraud allegations.
- (2) The Investigation Committee could include but is not limited to the:
City Attorney, Deputy City Manager, Department directors, Representatives from the Human Resources Department, and/or a third-party consultant with expertise in the area of concern.
- (3) The committee's responsibilities will be to:
 - (A) Respond to fraud allegations through coordination of necessary resources in determining future actions regarding the investigation.
 - (B) Communicate all committee findings and recommendations to the City Manager.
 - (C) Refer all allegations suspected to be criminal in nature to the appropriate law enforcement authority.
 - (D) Maintain accurate records of all matters related to the investigation.

13.7 Investigation Types

Depending on the seriousness and scope of the allegation, three types of investigations could be conducted. Some allegations may be considered less serious and can be handled by a Department Director while others may touch multiple departments and require an Investigation Committee.

If at any point within an investigation it becomes suspected that criminal activity may have occurred, whomever is leading the investigation shall promptly notify the appropriate law enforcement authority as well as the City Manager who will determine if the case should still be pursued as an administrative investigation in addition to any criminal investigation.

The three types of investigations are:

(a) Department Director Review

- (1) The Department Director, or designee, shall initiate an investigation within five (5) working days after the allegations have been received. All allegations shall be reported to the Director of Human Resources. The Human Resources Department will initially determine if a Department Director Review is appropriate and, if so, may assist in the investigation if the Department Director deems it necessary.

Deleted: his/her

(b) Human Resources Review

- (1) The Director of Human Resources, or designee, shall initiate an investigation within five (5) working days after an allegation has been received. The Director of Human Resources or designee shall meet with the Department Director or designee to discuss the allegations and shall promptly report the allegations to the City Manager. The City Manager will make a final determination as to whether or not an Investigation Committee is warranted and if so, who will serve on that committee.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: his/her

(c) Investigation Committee Review

- (1) When deemed necessary, an Investigation Committee appointed by the City Manager will prepare an investigation plan and coordinate with the individuals necessary to conduct different areas of the investigation.
- (2) If the committee suspects the conduct to be criminal in nature, the committee will forward all information to the appropriate law enforcement authority to take charge of any criminal portion of the investigation. If necessary, the Investigation Committee will serve as a resource.

Deleted: 2022

- (3) The Investigation Committee will notify the Department Director of any allegations submitted to them that require an on-site investigation, when appropriate, unless it is determined that such notification will harm the investigation. When the investigation requires the inspection of City facilities and for equipment, the City may initiate a search in compliance with federal and state law.

13.8 Investigation Procedures

- (a) The following procedures apply to all investigations, regardless of whom is leading the investigation:
 - (1) An investigation shall be planned in coordination with the Human Resources Department and initiated within five (5) working days after the allegations have been received.
 - (2) After all relevant information has been collected, a written report of findings regarding the allegations of fraud shall be completed. The Director of Human Resources and Department Director shall meet to confer about the findings and discuss the nature of appropriate action. Provided the investigation is not related to the City Manager the findings will be reviewed with the City Manager prior to final determination of disciplinary actions to be taken.
 - (3) A determination regarding the reported conduct will be made and communicated to the complainant, if necessary, and the accused employee.
 - (4) Based on the findings, the appropriate supervisor will administer the appropriate disciplinary action, including but not limited to, counseling, mandatory training, reprimand, suspension or termination of employees violating the provisions of this policy.
 - (5) Any disciplinary actions resulting from the application of this policy will be handled in accordance with the City's Employee Handbook.
 - (6) A copy of the findings report shall be provided to the accused employee(s), the appropriate department director, the Human Resources Director, the Deputy City Manager, the City Manager and the complainant, if deemed appropriate. A copy shall also be placed in the personnel file(s) of the accused employee(s).
 - (7) To the extent allowed by law, all documentation and matters regarding the investigation shall be handled with due sensitivity and confidentiality appropriate to the circumstances.

Chapter 14: Work Related Injury or Illness (Revised 11/01/16)

14.1 Injury on the Job:

- (a) **Medical Care.** The supervisor is responsible for ensuring that an employee who is injured during the course of employment receives appropriate initial medical care. When notified that an employee has been injured, a supervisor shall:
- (1) Assure that first aid is given, if qualified personnel are available.
 - (2) Call for emergency medical assistance, if the injury is serious, as may be indicated by, but not limited to, profuse bleeding, broken bones, unconsciousness, or shock; or
 - (3) Transport the employee to the emergency care facility designated by human resources or an approved physician, if the injury requires medical care but does not warrant emergency transport.
- (b) **Reports.** Regardless of the severity of the injury, an employee who is able must report immediately to the supervisor any injury incurred in the course of employment with the city. The immediate supervisor is responsible for filing the following reports with the Human Resources Department for inclusion in the employee's personnel file:
- (1) Employee's First Report of Injury or Illness: must be filed within 72 hours of the occurrence of injuries resulting in medical treatment or lost time;
 - (2) Supervisor investigation report: an incident report to be filed within 72 hours of the occurrence of an injury, regardless of severity.
- (c) **Family Medical Leave and Injury Leave:** Employees with a serious work related injury or illness that results in a physician authorized absence of greater than three days, will have the absence designated as Family Medical Leave. Injury leave and Family Medical Leave will run concurrently.
- (d) **Physical Exam; Fitness for Duty**
- An employee who has been injured at work shall obtain a physical examination from an approved physician if the employee has received emergency treatment at a hospital; or) the department director has reason to believe that the physical condition of the employee could result in danger to persons or property or that it interferes with normal work performance, and the department director instructs the employee to report for examination.
- (e) Employees who receive treatment (non-emergency) from a doctor are required to seek care from a physician that is approved through the City's workers'

117

Revised 10/01/2023

Deleted: 2022

compensation insurance carrier, Texas Municipal League (TML). TML has formed an "Alliance" with numerous area doctors, and employees are to see one of the designated doctors in the Alliance. If a specialist is needed, the employee will be referred through the Alliance physician. More information is available in Human Resources, and employees will work with department management and Human Resources and the TML carrier to follow required protocols.

- (f) Physician's release. If an employee receives treatment from a clinic or doctor, the employee must obtain a written release from the attending physician or the city-designated physician, indicating the employee's fitness to return to duty. The release must stipulate what kind of duty is permitted, specify limitations, if any, and state the date of the employee's release from medical care.
- (g) Physician Determination. If the physician determines that an employee is not able to perform all of the duties of the employee's position, as set forth in the job description, the physician will document the limitations.
- (h) Modified Duty.
 - (1) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide a process by which employees injured at work may receive temporary work assignments that will benefit their full recovery. It is not intended nor to be used as a disability program.
 - (2) Evaluation of injured or ill employee. When an employee is required to be absent from work because of an extended period of recovery from injury or illness, the employee's case will be reviewed by the department director and the Director of Human Resources. An examination and evaluation conducted by the attending physician or the city-designated physician will be used to determine the capabilities and prognosis for recovery of the injured or ill employee. A review of the potential work assignments will be conducted by the employee's director and the director of human resources to determine if an assignment is available which matches the injured or ill employee's training, skills and capabilities, as determined by the physician.
 - (3) Work assignment. A modified duty work assignment will be offered to an injured or ill employee if:
 - (A) a modified duty work assignment would enhance the recovery of an injured or ill employee and facilitate the employee's return to the regular duty work assignment held before the injury or illness; and

- (B) the employee's department director determines that modified duty is available. If no modified duty can be found within the department, the employee may be temporarily assigned to work in another department, if there is an existing opening for which the employee is qualified and that meets the employee's work restrictions. A temporary assignment does not constitute the creation of regular or long-term employment in the assigned position. The salary of an employee on modified duty will be paid by the employee's department and the employee will be returned to the original position and department when released for full duty. If modified duty cannot be found, the city will not create a position and the employee will remain on leave.
 - (C) Employees who receive a bona fide offer of temporary employment within a light duty assignment that complies with the physician's medical orders, may not refuse the work assignment. Refusal of the assignment will be considered insubordination and will subject the employee to disciplinary action. Failure to report to duty for a light duty assignment will be considered absence without approved leave and further subjects the employee to disciplinary action.
- (4) Length of modified duty work assignments. A modified duty work assignment may last until the time that the attending physician or city physician has set as the expected date of return to the employee's previous work assignment or until temporary work duties are completed, but not to exceed three months unless the City Manager gives written approval for a longer period.
- (5) Conditions of modified duty. As a condition of continuing in a modified duty work assignment, an employee must:
- (A) adhere to prescribed treatment and make reasonable efforts toward rehabilitation;
 - (B) accept progressively more demanding assignments as the employee's condition improves; and
 - (C) make visible progress in returning to full performance capability.
- (6) Termination of modified duty. An employee's modified duty work assignment will be terminated if:

- (A) the employee is found performing beyond the modified duty restrictions;
 - (B) the work assignment is completed;
 - (C) the employee performs unsatisfactorily in the position;
 - (D) budgetary constraints do not allow continuation of the position;
or
 - (E) the employee's medical condition worsens.
- (7) Reassignments. If an employee's injury or illness will permanently prevent the employee from performing the essential functions of the employee's regularly assigned duties, the director of human resources in conjunction with the employee's director shall attempt to locate a suitable city position for the employee. Such position must be authorized and vacant and the individual must be qualified to perform the essential functions of the position. If no position is available at the time the individual is determined physically unable to perform the essential function of the employee's job, or, should the employee refuse to accept an available position, then termination of employment will occur. The city will not create a position.

14.2 Wages During Work Related Injury Leave (revised 01/01/2013)(10/01/2023)

Deleted:

- (a) Eligibility. A full-time employee, injured in the course of employment with the city is eligible for injury leave for 60 calendar days during the period of time the employee is unable to work due to the injury.
- (1) The Texas Workers' Compensation Commission will approve the workers' compensation insurance carrier to pay wages only for serious injuries. In general, a serious injury is one that a physician documents the employee is unable to work for more than eight calendar days. The City of Burleson relies on the physician to determine any physical work restrictions and when the employee can return to a full-duty status.
 - (2) It is the responsibility of the designated supervisor or timekeeper to code all timesheet records appropriately during missed time.
 - (3) The City of Burleson pays the injured employee's wages as a benefit on the day of injury and the first eight calendar days, if the above conditions apply.
 - (4) If the employee is approved to receive wages from the Texas Worker's Compensation Commission, the salary continuation benefit (see A.2, b, below) may apply, if the employee is unable to work after the eighth calendar day.

Deleted: 2022

(b) Salary Continuation Benefit for Non-First Responders. An employee who takes injury leave receives the following benefits:

- (1) The employee continues to receive the employee's current rate of pay, exclusive of overtime, for not to exceed the number of work periods in 60 calendar days. In exchange for salary continuation, the employee must endorse the employee's workers compensation wage benefits over to the city. It is the responsibility of the employee to turn in state issued workers' compensation wage to the Finance department. If an employee is unable to come to the department due to injury, alternative arrangements will be made via the Human Resources Department to assure the wages are exchanged.
- (2) If at any time the employee abuses the privileges related to the salary continuation benefit, their employment may be terminated immediately.
- (3) At the end of 60 calendar days, the employee may elect to supplement workers' compensation wage benefits by using accrued vacation, compensatory leave, or sick leave to make up the difference between workers compensation payments and the employee's full rate of pay.
- (4) After all accrued leave has been exhausted the employee shall receive only workers' compensation benefits as authorized by state law.

Deleted: his/her

(c) Salary Continuation Benefit for Injured First Responders (as required by law).
(10/01/2023)

(1) If a sworn member of the Police or Fire Department are injured specifically related to the line of duty and becomes incapacitated, the city shall place the injured employee on a paid leave. The leave provided will be fully paid for a period commensurate with the nature of the illness or injury and, if "medically" necessary, the leave must continue for at least one year.

(2) If, upon the expiration of the initial leave and any extension(s), the employee remains disabled by a line of duty illness or injury, then the employee may use any accrued sick leave, vacation time or other benefits before being placed on temporary leave. If the employee exhausts any sick leave, vacation time, or other benefits and still requires additional leave, the employee must be placed on temporary leave.

(3) If able, the firefighter, police officer or emergency medical services personnel may return to light duty while recovering from a temporary disability.

Deleted: 2022

(4) Medical documentation, completed by the employee's healthcare provider, will be provided to Human Resources noting any limitations and exclusions required of the employee will be used in determining any possible light duty work, if available.

(5) After recovery from a temporary disability, a firefighter, police officer or emergency medical services personnel shall be reinstated at the same rank and with the same seniority the person had before going on temporary leave.

(6) During this one year of temporary leave for the on duty illness or injury, the City will be responsible for the full pay for the employee and the employee will receive no workers compensation benefits during this period.

(d) Responsibility. An employee on injury leave is responsible for contacting the employee's supervisor, either in person or by phone, at least once every workweek.

(e) Benefits and Accrual. An employee on injury leave is not eligible for merit raises or promotions. During salary continuation, the employee will continue to accrue vacation and sick leave at the normal level. After salary continuation, the accrual will continue only as long as the employee is using other available leave. When all available leave is exhausted, the employee will cease accruing vacation and sick leave until the employee returns to work.

(f) Return to work. Before an employee returns from injury leave or Family Medical Leave (FML), the employee must present a written release to work to the director of human resources from the employee's treating physician.

Deleted: c

Deleted: d

Deleted: However, d

Deleted: the first 60 calenda

Deleted: days of injury leave

Deleted: 60 days

Deleted: e

14.3 Life-Threatening Illness and Injury:

(a) Fair and equal treatment. Pursuant to its commitment to providing fair and equal opportunity to all employees while providing a safe work environment, the city will treat employees with life-threatening illness like other employees as long as they meet performance standards, are able to perform the essential functions of their position, and medical and other information indicates that their condition is not a threat to themselves or to others. The city will attempt to reasonably accommodate these employees whenever practical.

(b) Confidentiality and sensitivity. If an employee contracts a life-threatening illness, or if an employee discovers a fellow worker has contracted a life-threatening

Deleted: 2022

illness, all reasonable efforts should be exercised to ensure that this information remains private and confidential. All employees should treat employees with a life-threatening illness with compassion and understanding.

- (c) Physical examination. To assure the city that an employee with a life-threatening illness is not a danger to anyone, the city may require the employee to be examined by a physician. All information related to the examination will be confidential and will be disclosed to the department director and/or supervisor only when necessary.

Chapter 15: Drug Free Workplace

The City is committed to maintaining a drug-free work place in order to provide a safe environment for all city employees and the citizens we serve. In doing so, the City prohibits the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, sale, purchase, use, or presence of prohibited substances, illegal drugs, controlled substances without a valid prescription, alcoholic beverages, or drug paraphernalia in the work place, during working hours, or in/on a city vehicle. This policy applies to all employees and job applicants.

- A. Prohibited activities – The following acts are prohibited and employees or applicants for employment who commit these acts shall be subject to immediate termination from City employment, or being discontinued in the hiring process/rescinding an offer of employment if not yet employed.
1. Consumption of illegal drugs or controlled substances, for which the employee does not have a valid prescription. Employees may be tested anytime they are on-duty in accordance with Subsection D of this policy; and off-duty use may result in on-duty positive.
 2. Consumption of alcohol:
 - a. While on duty (includes hours worked and breaks)
 - b. Prior to reporting to work, in an amount and timeframe where there is still a prohibited alcohol level detectable in the employee's system
 - c. Until tested following an accident
 - d. During on-call status
 - e. While off duty and wearing City of Burleson apparel/uniforms
 3. Being impaired or under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs while representing the City, or while operating a City vehicle, equipment, or while operating a personal vehicle and conducting City business.
 4. The use or possession of alcohol or illegal drugs in a City vehicle (whether on or off duty) is prohibited.
 5. Unlawful manufacturing, distribution, dispensing, possessing or using controlled substances in the workplace.
 6. Possessing any drug paraphernalia in a city facility, city vehicle, whether on or off duty, or possessing drug paraphernalia in a personal vehicle while representing the city on official city business.
 7. Employees designated for "on-call status" who fail to report for a call to duty because of being impaired, or who report for duty under the influence of drugs or alcohol (employees on call are expected to be free of alcohol or illegal drugs, and available to report to work for the duration of their on-call status).
 8. Refusing to consent and/or submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when required by this Policy.

It is not the city's intent to intrude upon the private lives of its employees. The city does, however, reserve the right to take disciplinary action, up to and including termination, in the event that an employee's off-duty involvement with illegal drugs or alcohol is damaging to the city's reputation or business, or interferes with the employee's job duties.

Employees attending a city sponsored social function or in conjunction with a training and/or conference may consume a moderate amount of alcoholic beverages if the function permits it, does not involve the use of a City vehicle or driving a personal vehicle on city business, and the employee's conduct does not reflect poorly upon the City.

The City recognizes that employees who are not designated for on call may be requested to report for emergency or unexpected duty. Employees who may be under the influence of alcohol or legally obtained medication must report this fact to their supervisor and may decline calls for emergency duty. In this event, the employee will not be subject to any disciplinary action or penalty.

B. Testing type to be performed

1. Drug testing is conducted by a valid salvia test kit by trained, in-house city staff, and/or by a certified lab analysis of an employee's urine specimen collected by a credentialed third party collection site. In the event a salvia test kit yields a positive result, the employee may be sent to the City's third party urine collection site for a certified urine lab test.
2. Alcohol testing will be conducted either by a valid salvia test kit by trained, in-house city staff, and/or by breath analysis. In the event a salvia test kit yields a potential positive result, the employee may be sent to the City's third party testing vendor to perform a breath analysis test (BAT).
3. The testing method used will be at the discretion of the City based on what it believes would yield the most accurate result based on the circumstances of the testing reason.

C. Consent

Anyone over the age of 18 submitting a sample for a drug and/or alcohol test is considered to have consented to a drug and/or alcohol test, as well as their signature on the collection forms affirms consent. The form is available in the Human Resources department.

Minors under the age of 18 must have signed consent from a parent or legal guardian prior to a drug and/or alcohol test and is received on the collection forms.

D. Testing reasons – the city will conduct testing for prohibited drugs, drug metabolites, and alcohol in the following circumstances:

1. Pre-Employment - All applicants are subject to post offer, pre-employment test.

1. All employment offers are contingent upon successfully passing a drug/alcohol test.
2. Any applicant who refuses the pre-employment test or yields a positive result will not be considered for employment.
3. If a pre-employment test is cancelled for any reason, the applicant will be required to take another one with a verified negative result.
4. Applicants, who were tested more than 90 days prior to beginning employment, must have a new post-offer, pre-employment test performed with a negative result.
2. Post Accident - All City employees who are involved in an on the job accident involving a motorized apparatus are subject to post accident drug/alcohol testing, including those whose performance could have contributed to the accident. Motorized apparatus includes, but is not limited to fleet vehicle, personal vehicle on city business, riding lawnmower, backhoe, golf cart, etc.
 - a. All employees must remain readily available for drug and alcohol testing after an accident. The test must be conducted immediately following the accident unless urgent medical care is required first. If urgent medical care is required, they City will notify the provider to perform the drug and alcohol test as appropriate. An employee will not return to duty or perform job functions unless a negative drug result is received.
 - b. The Director of Human Resources must be consulted before making a determination not to post-accident test. All determinations not to test must be documented.
3. Reasonable Suspicion – an employee will be required to consent to a drug and/or alcohol test when a supervisor, manager, director, or city official has a reasonable suspicion that the employee appears to be under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or other prohibited substances, or otherwise impaired, and unfit for duty.
 - a. Circumstances which constitute a factual basis for determining reasonable suspicion may include, but are not limited to:
 1. Direct observation of drug or alcohol use or possession;
 2. Possession of drug paraphernalia;
 3. Observation of physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use, such as slurred speech, odor (or smell), red watery eyes, dilated pupils, unsteady gait, poor coordination or reflexes, drowsiness, or sleeping;
 4. Sudden, unexplained personality changes, abnormal or erratic behavior, drastic mood swings, or changes in personal habits, including inattention to personal hygiene or frequently borrowing money;
 5. Documented deterioration of an employee's job performance, which may include excessive absenteeism or tardiness ([performance issues, absenteeism or tardiness alone do not generally meet the criteria for reasonable suspicion; they may be in conjunction with other circumstances for a basis to consider testing](#));
 6. Information provided by a reliable or credible source, which is independently corroborated;
 7. Involvement in accidents or injuries in which obvious precautions were not taken, improper or careless orders were given, or an unusually reckless attitude is present;

8. Arrest or conviction for a drug or alcohol-related offense on or off the job or the identification of an employee as the focus of a criminal investigation into illegal drug use, possession, or trafficking, and where on duty reasonable suspicion is suspected.
- b. Observation, documentation and approvals to test: Unless the supervisor directly observes the possession, consumption or inhalation of alcohol or drugs, a second City supervisor or director must also be notified and concur in the supervisor's reasonable suspicion before testing. In establishing a basis for reasonable suspicion, the department director, manager, or supervisor will interview the employee about possible causes for the observed behavior, and will describe the incident in writing. This process will serve to document the circumstances leading to the conclusion that a test for the presence of an illegal drug or alcohol is warranted. Once the initial interview and written description has been completed, the highest ranking available department official must contact the City Manager, Deputy City Manager, or Director of Human Resources for a review of the documentation. The City Manager, Deputy City Manager, or Director of Human Resources must agree with the department official's recommendation before a drug and/or alcohol test is performed. Outside of regular working hours, or at times when the City Manager, Deputy City Manager, or Director of Human Resources are not available within a reasonable time period, a department director or their designee may order an employee to submit to an immediate drug and/or alcohol test, in accordance with the policy guidelines. The City Manager, Deputy City Manager, or Director of Human Resources must be notified of the testing at the earliest opportunity, and all records relating to the incident will be maintained by the Human Resources Department.
- c. Testing process: Employees being ordered for reasonable suspicion testing will either get a saliva test at their worksite by an independent trained staff member outside the employee's department and/or be transported to a testing facility by a supervisor. The employee will not be allowed to drive themselves. If a reasonable suspicion event occurs after normal business hours, the supervisor will coordinate with an independent trained staff member outside the employee's department to perform the saliva test at the employee's worksite and/or transport the employee directly to an established after/hours facility for testing. The City will make arrangements to have the employee transported home after the testing is complete.
- d. Return to work and compensation: An employee will be on paid administrative leave pending the outcome of the test. While waiting for the results of a reasonable suspicion test, an employee will not be allowed to return to work or take work home. Access badges and keys to buildings should be collected and network accesses disabled. The employee will not return to the workplace until they have been contacted by Human Resources or their Supervisor.
- e. Searches: When reasonable suspicion, as defined by this article, exists, the City reserves the right to conduct unannounced searches for unauthorized substances anywhere on city property, including, but not limited to, lockers, desks, file cabinets, city vehicles and employees' personal vehicles parked on city parking lots. Personal

property on city premises shall be subject to such searches. All such searches must be authorized and conducted under the direction of the City Manager or designee and the grounds for suspicion must be described in writing prior to the search. Employees who refuse to cooperate during unannounced searches shall be subject to disciplinary action, including termination.

4. Random

a. Non-DOT Random – The random pool will include all non-DOT employees that work in safety sensitive position. The City will randomly test the equivalent of 10% of the workforce annually.

1. Safety sensitive positions:

- a. Employees assigned to drive or operate a city-owned vehicle or other motorized apparatus,
- b. Employees assigned to operate heavy machinery,
- c. All licensed peace officers in the police department divisions, licensed firefighters in the fire department divisions, and all licensed public safety communications specialists,
- d. All field staff in the public works department in water-wastewater,
- e. All certified lifeguards, and
- f. All employees in the animal services division.

2. Random selection and testing process - Random testing selections are made using a scientifically valid method (computer based random number generator) and are spread reasonably throughout all periods of the calendar year (all days and hours of operation). Each employee subject to this policy will have an equal chance of being tested each time random selections are made. Dates and times for random testing are unannounced. The Human Resources Department will ensure all testing is conducted as required. Human Resources will notify supervisors when an employee has been randomly selected. Upon notification, the supervisor will ensure the employee proceeds to the testing site as soon as possible.

b. DOT Random – The random pool will include all DOT regulated employees in accordance with the Department of Transportation-Federal Motor Carriers Safety Administration’s guidelines. The City will randomly drug test the equivalent of 50% of the DOT regulated workforce and alcohol test 10% annually in accordance with regulatory requirements. Should regulatory requirements change, regulation will supersede.

1. Random selection and testing process - Random testing selections are made through a third party administrator using a scientifically valid method. Selections and testing are spread reasonably throughout all periods of the calendar year (all days and hours of operation). Each employee subject to this policy will have an equal chance of being tested each time random selections are made. Dates and times for random testing are unannounced. The Human Resources Department will ensure all testing is conducted as required. Human Resources will notify

supervisors when an employee has been randomly selected. Upon notification, the supervisor will ensure the employee proceeds to the testing site as soon as possible.

2. DOT drug and/alcohol collections and testing are performed at a credentialed facility and certified lab only using the approved DOT testing panel and testing process.

E. Refusal to test or resigning in lieu of a test - An applicant's or employee's refusal to consent and/or submit to any drug and/or alcohol testing reason will be considered insubordination. If this situation arises, the person will be verbally advised that successful drug/alcohol screens are a condition of employment and refusing will warrant termination (or being discontinued in the hiring process, if relevant). If an employee requests the option to resign prior to taking a drug and/or alcohol test, they may be allowed to do so. Employees separated for refusal to test or that opt to resign in lieu of testing, will not be eligible for rehire, and eligibility for any sick and vacation leave payout will be determined based on the separation requirements guidelines. The following are considered test refusals:

1. Failure to appear for a test within a reasonable time, as defined by the employer.
2. Failure to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete.
3. Failure to provide a saliva, breath or urine specimen as required.
4. Failure to permit an observed or monitored collection specimen when required.
5. Failure to provide a sufficient amount of volume with no valid medical explanation.
6. Failure or declining to take an additional drug/alcohol test as directed by the employer or collector.
7. Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process (i.e., refusal to empty pockets, wash hands, remove hat, etc.).
8. The MRO reports the presence of a verified adulterated or substituted test result.
9. Refusal to sign any consent forms or other related testing and collection forms.
10. Leaving the scene of an accident without just cause prior to submitting to a test.

F. Retesting – the following outcomes will result in retesting:

1. Negative dilute (negative dilute with adulteration will be collected under direct observation)
2. Invalid result (Some invalid result reasons where potential positive or adulteration was suspected, will be collected under direct observation)
3. Fatal flaw
4. Lost sample

G. Test results

1. Negative - verified negative drug test result or an alcohol test result less than 0.02. A negative result for drugs includes a result that shows a legal, controlled substance where the individual had a valid prescription (see subsection {G, c} below).

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 2022

2. Positive – verified positive drug test result, verified adulterated/substituted sample, alcohol test result equal to or greater than 0.02, or a refused drug and/or alcohol test. Employees that receive a positive test result will be immediately removed from their job duties and terminated. Employees will be notified in writing of the test results including what substance they tested positive for. Employees will also be eligible to utilize the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for counseling services post termination for up to six-months. Employees will be provided SAP information for a positive under DOT testing rules.
3. Initial lab testing analysis with substances yielding a potential positive on a urine test will be reviewed by the Medical Review Officer (MRO) who will contact the employee and conduct an interview to determine if there is an alternative medical explanation for the positive test result. If the employee provides appropriate documentation and the MRO determines there is a legitimate medical use of the substance, the test result will be reported to the City as negative. Employees that do not contact the MRO timely or provide appropriate documentation will receive a positive test result.
4. Test results will be held in the strictest confidence. The personal identification of the employee failing to pass the test will not be communicated to anyone other than the employee's chain of command, the employee, the appropriate staff member in Human Resources and the City Manager's office (City Manager or Deputy City Manager). Other employees, on a need to know basis, may be made aware of test results, as determined by the City Manager's office and Human Resources. The information may be released, if required, by court order from any court of competent jurisdiction, as authorized by a signed release for a background check, or as otherwise required by law. Employees who are tested will be provided with a copy of the test results if requested in writing. Dissemination of information relating to the results of any drug test conducted on any employee to any person who has no need to know, may result in disciplinary action, including dismissal of the person disseminating the information.

H. Test dispute –

1. Urine test dispute - employees may dispute a positive test result and request a retest of the collected sample at their cost. Employees that request a retest must immediately contact the testing facility to arrange to retest and pay the facility's fee. The retest is performed on the same sample collected and will be retested using the testing facility's protocol. The employee must provide proof the retest is in process, at which time the city will place the employee on unpaid leave and disable any city building and computer access until retest results are complete. If the retest is positive, the city will proceed terminating the employee. If the result is overturned to negative, the city will reinstate the employee with pay for any scheduled work days missed.
2. Saliva test dispute - Employees may dispute a saliva test by requesting a new test using a urine test at the City's third party collection site. Employees must request a new test immediately. The city will place the employee on paid administrative leave until collection and test results are complete. Employees will be transported to the site, will

test under a direct observation, and then be transported home after the collection. The employee will be on unpaid admin leave and building and computer access will be disabled until the retest results are complete. If the test is positive, the city will proceed terminating the employee. If the result is negative, the city will reinstate the employee with pay for any scheduled work days missed.

- I. Prescription and over-the-counter (OTC) medications - Some prescriptions and OTC medications may adversely affect an employee's ability to perform their job safely. Employees should read all warning labels for OTC medications and should seek alternatives to those that indicate they affect mental functioning, motor skills, or judgment. The employee is responsible for discussing their job duties with their physician and encouraged to provide their job description (can be requested from Human Resources). The physician is responsible for evaluating the employee's ability to safely perform their job duties. Employees who are disqualified from performing their job duties while taking medication will immediately notify their supervisor. All employees are required to notify their supervisor when taking any prescription or non-prescription medication that may interfere with their judgement and/or safe performance of their job duties. The supervisor may either temporarily re-assign them or place them on sick leave. Re-assignment is not to be considered a permanent appointment and is to be temporary in nature with a specific ending date. Failure to comply may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

- J. Voluntary Admission - An employee may voluntarily admit to drug or alcohol abuse and be able to take leave to seek treatment; provided the employee does not admit at the time of a requested drug and/or alcohol test in order to avoid the testing and disciplinary requirements of this policy. The employee must make the admission prior to performing a job function (prior to reporting to duty). After admission, the employee may not perform their job function until the City is satisfied that the employee has been evaluated and has successfully completed educational and treatment requirements. A drug and alcohol abuse evaluation expert, i.e., an EAP professional, SAP, or a qualified drug and alcohol counselor will determine successful completion.
 1. The City will provide employees with confidential referral for assistance in resolving or accessing treatment for addiction to, or dependence on, illegal drugs or alcohol. The cost of treatment, counseling, or rehabilitation resulting from referral will be the responsibility of the employee. The City's group health plan may provide benefits for substance abuse treatment.
 2. Employee assistance activities, such as referral appointments, will be treated on the same basis as other personal business or health matters with regard to use of sick or compensatory leave and Family Medical Leave. Available leave may be taken as needed with advance arrangements made with the department management for the absence.
 3. Prior to the employee performing their job functions, the employee must undergo a return to duty alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 and/or a return to duty drug test with a negative test result.

4. Employees who have completed a drug or alcohol rehabilitation program will be subject to periodic, unscheduled testing for a period of two years after completion of the program. Employees who successfully complete treatment for use of drugs or alcohol and subsequently are found, during working hours, to be in possession of or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or test positive at any time will be subject to dismissal from employment.

This section is not intended to provide a means for an employee to avoid any required drug and alcohol testing. Once the process of establishing a test requirement has been initiated, or an accident has occurred, an employee may not seek treatment in an effort to avoid testing and possible disciplinary action.

K. Drug and/or Alcohol Arrests

1. Any employee who is arrested for criminal activity involving the illegal use or possession of drugs and/or alcohol must notify the employee's supervisor and Human Resources no later than five days after the arrest. Failure to do so may result in disciplinary action, including termination. Employees may be allowed to remain employed with City until the case is settled. However, employees may be terminated from employment depending on the circumstances of their arrest, conviction, nature of their position with the City, and/or ability to be able to continue to perform the job functions.
2. Employees who plead guilty or nolo contendere to a violation of criminal drug and alcohol statutes, which occurred during working hours shall be terminated from employment.
3. Except as provided by subsection (K, 2.) above, employees who are convicted under any drug or alcohol statute may be allowed to remain employed by the city, depending on the circumstances of their arrest and conviction, nature of their position with the city, and/or ability to be able to perform the job functions. Continued employment with the city may also be contingent upon the convicted employee's active participation in a recognized treatment program and the employee's work performance. Any convicted employee who is allowed to remain employed will be subject to periodic testing.

Chapter 16: Information Technology – Computer User’s Policy

16.1 Purpose:

The city provides computer resources for the purpose of accomplishing tasks related to the City of Burleson’s (‘city’) mission. The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to derive the benefits of increased efficiency through the use of the Internet, e-mail, and the City’s Home Page, while ensuring the protection of information assets and city integrity. It also provides guidelines for accessing and using publicly accessible networks such as the Internet and the World Wide Web (WWW) using the City of Burleson’s computer resources, gateways, and accounts. The city believes the proper use of this technology saves time and money, reduces administrative overhead, and improves service to the community.

This policy is also enacted to preserve the integrity of the city’s internal information, ensure compliance with anti-harassment and discrimination policies, and prevent workplace violence.

16.2 Policy Administration: This policy is administered by the Information Technology department.

16.3. Applicability:

This policy applies to all City of Burleson employees, elected officials, volunteers, and other affiliates or persons (collectively, ‘users’) who use City-provided accounts to access the Internet or WWW, or any other intranet, extranet, or other network (or access to these) provided by the City that may exist now or in the future, regardless of the user’s location when accessing the Internet or WWW. This policy uses the following definitions:

- A. Computer resources include hardware, software, communications networks, electronic storage media, electronic mail systems, and manuals and other documentation, including those systems administered centrally or within a department, in whatever form, model, or configuration, and using whatever operating systems, platforms, or interfaces, and whether single or multi-user, mainframe, or network server, etc.
- B. Data includes all files of any kind, regardless of size, format, or on what media stored or written, including but not limited to e-mail messages, systems logs, databases, documents, and commercial and locally developed software. This term also includes handwritten or printed material in paper form.
- C. Users include employees, elected officials, volunteers, and any other affiliate or individual with access to use the City’s computer resources. User does not include, however, the public use of the Internet through the Burleson Public Library.
- D. Provider includes an entity that provides Internet, e-mail, or other computer

resources over a network. An example of a public provider is AOL. An example of a private provider is the City of Burleson.

- E. Network includes Internets, intranets, extranets, local- or wide-area networks, and other networks of any kind.

Nothing in this policy should be understood to prohibit public use of the Internet for informational purposes as provided by the Burleson Library.

16.4 Condition of Employment:

- A. Users must agree to comply with this policy as a condition of their employment or continued employment with the City of Burleson.

This policy shall be distributed to newly elected, hired, and other users. Each new user will be required to sign a statement acknowledging receipt of this policy. For newly hired employee users, human resources will maintain the statement in the employee's personnel file.

- B. For other users, information technology will maintain the statement of receipt. Refusing to sign the statement acknowledging receipt of this policy or refusing to comply with any provision of this policy are grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

16.5 General:

Activities of a business nature dealing with the Internet or World Wide Web (WWW) such as home page development, training, setting up Internet accounts and problem resolution, will be coordinated through and approved by the information technology (I.T.) department, prior to being performed. Input from the communications director regarding web content should also be anticipated. Normal day-to-day Internet access is excluded from this provision. An Internet e-mail address will be assigned by the I.T. department to authorized users on the city's computer network. This internet e-mail address is for e-mail purposes only and will not provide the user with browser-based capability on the Internet. Users desiring browser access to the Internet must complete the Internet Access and Justification form.

16.6 Justification:

Each internet user will be required to justify why access to the internet / WWW or internet e-mail is needed. The user will be required to complete the Internet Access and Justification form stating how internet access and e-mail relate to the user's job description and further the city's mission. Users must forward the form to their department director. After review and approval, the director will then forward the request to the information technology department.

Deleted: 1
.....Page Break.....

Deleted: 2022

16.7 Policy:

- A. Internet access is provided by the city for use in attaining departmental objectives and goals. Use of Internet to perform job and/or enhance job effectiveness is permitted. The city may tolerate incidental and occasional personal use of the Internet and e-mail, provided that such use does not adversely affect business uses and/or productivity and does not involve prohibited uses as explained in this policy, but the city reserves the right to prohibit personal use upon a finding that a user has abused this policy. Users are required to delete personal or non-business related e-mail on city computers weekly. Users do not have an expectation of privacy in city-provided network (including Internet) access or e-mail.
- B. Users shall be responsible for any personal charges of any kind arising from use of the city-provided Internet access.
- C. The user in whose name the Internet account is issued shall be responsible at all times for its proper use. Users shall not reveal their password or otherwise breach security of the Internet account.
- D. I.T. shall maintain a directory of all city internet accounts and monitor the use of such accounts, including URLs (websites) visited by each user. Audits may be performed at any time.
- E. Users of city-provided Internet accounts should not assume any level of anonymity. Outside users wishing to identify users associated with the city can do so easily.
- F. Utilizing virus software provided by the I.T. department, users shall virus scan all data files downloaded from the Internet. The discovery of viruses must be reported promptly to the I.T. department. Deliberate attempts to degrade or disrupt system performance on any computer system shall be subject to disciplinary action or termination.
- G. Users must contact Information Technology to request downloading of any software applications (i.e. programs) from the Internet. All software installations must be performed by the I.T. Department. Users may not install personal software on city equipment without the express written authorization from the I.T. Department. Only city-approved browsers may be installed or used. The city reserves the right to uninstall any unauthorized software.
- H. All electronic messages, files, programs, software, or other computer information are the property of the city and therefore are not considered private. As a routine, the city may monitor electronic mail messages and Internet use. The city reserves the right to monitor such usage and to access messages, files, programs, software, or

Deleted: 2022

other computer information related to the user's computer use as allowed under this Policy and applicable laws, at any time without prior notice. Communications deleted by users may be retrieved and reviewed by the city.

- I. Users shall contact I.T. regarding all training needed for accessing the Internet, use of the city's approved Internet browser, or home page development.
- J. Departments using the Internet will have one person designated as the Internet Contact person. All requests within a department shall be channeled through the contact person.
- K. Use of city computer resources is a privilege, not a right. When using these resources, users must agree to abide by the applicable policies of the city, as well as federal, state and local laws.
- L. The city reserves the right to limit, restrict, or deny access to its computer resources at any time, as well as to take disciplinary action, up to and including termination, and/or legal action against anyone who violates city policies and/or applicable laws.
- M. This policy shall not be interpreted to require authorization for individual employees for the purpose of gaining access to Internet-based training, when that training is approved by the employee's department director and is completed under the supervision of an authorized user within said department. In such cases, both the department director and the person administering the training will be accountable for any violation. Further, the person administering the training must have signed the city's internet policy prior to engaging in the Internet-based training.
- N. Users have an obligation to report violations of this Policy.

16.8 Prohibited Use:

Prohibited uses of the city's computer resources include, but are not limited to, the following:

- A. Downloading, uploading, posting, reproducing, retransmitting or distributing material protected by copyright or trademark without permission of the copyright owner.
- B. Unauthorized access, use, alteration, duplication, destruction, or disclosure of any of the city's computer resources or proprietary information that compromises the integrity of the city and its business in any way. Confidential or sensitive information should not be sent over the Internet or e-mail system without supervisory approval.
- C. Use of Internet access or the electronic mail system for "moonlighting", job searches, playing interactive games, gaming, gambling, using "Internet chat" programs, solicitation, and/or sending chain letters or pyramid schemes.
- D. Use of city computer resources to send e-mail, communications, files, or programs that contain messages or images which are intended to or that in effect do harass, intimidate, disparage, offend, threaten or otherwise inflame another person or group of persons on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, political beliefs, pregnancy, religion, or any legally protected status.
- E. Use of city computer resources to view send or receive email, communications, files or programs that contain text or images which are sexually explicit, racially discriminatory, overtly religious, or messages or images that are otherwise inconsistent with the city's equal employment opportunity and anti-harassment policies.
- F. Personal use of the Internet and e-mail that adversely affects business uses and/or productivity as determined by the user's supervisors, city management, and/or I.T.
- G. Downloading of games and other software applications from the Internet except as provided for by this policy.
- H. The utilization of personal Internet accounts on city-owned equipment is strictly prohibited. All such personal accounts and access will be removed. Users shall access the Internet, WWW, and/or e-mail systems solely through the city file server unless approved by a department director or city management. Locally installed modems to access personal internet service provider accounts or services are strictly prohibited. The user is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination for violation.
- I. Proxy servers for Internet access, unless configured by authorized personnel in the I.T. Department.

- J. Falsifying or actively concealing one's identity in an e-mail message.
- K. Intentionally allowing unauthorized access to a password or Internet account.
- L. Any transmission that constitutes or encourages a criminal offense or violates any local, state, federal, or international law.
- M. Any intentional transmission that contains a virus, worm, or other harmful component.
- N. Use of computer resources to assist with, support, conspire to or commit any criminal or otherwise illegal acts, or fraud or deceptive practices, solicitations, or representations.
- O. Use of city computer resources for personal financial gain or personal commercial purposes, including the transmission of commercial or personal advertisements, solicitations, promotions, or political material except as may be approved in writing by city management through the director of information technology.
- P. Attempting to circumvent, evading, compromising, assisting someone else, or requesting that someone else circumvent any security measures or administrative access control that pertains to city computer resources.
- Q. Transmitting confidential, personal, or sensitive information of other persons or the city, on the Internet or e-mail system, except for lawful and authorized city business purposes.
- R. Any act that endangers, compromises, or damages specific computer software, hardware, programs, data, networks or the system as a whole, whether located at the city or elsewhere on the global Internet.
- S. Creating or intentionally allowing a computer or network malfunction or interruption of operation.
- T. Sending a message with the intent to disrupt computer city operations or the operations of outside entities, including spam, etc.
- U. Use of city computer resources for the unauthorized disclosure of confidential or privileged information. By virtue of their relationship with the city, some users are in a position to obtain documents that may contain information protected by the attorney-client privilege, or otherwise privileged. This information should not be disclosed without the approval of the City Manager. These documents are the property of the city. See TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE ANN. Chapters 201 and 202. Users are

138

Revised 10/01/2023

Deleted: 2022

hereby notified that it is an offense under the Texas Public Information Act to distribute information considered to be confidential. TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN. § 552.352. Such an offense is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars (\$1,000) and/or confinement in county jail for not more than six (6) months. Such a violation also constitutes official misconduct and may subject users to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

V. Failure to comply with internal policies and procedures that pertain to the use of city

16.9 Privacy Issues:

The City of Burleson desires to notify users of privacy-related issues as follows:

- A. A user has no expectation of or right to privacy when using the city's computer resources. A user does not have a privacy right in any matter involving the creation, receipt, or distribution of information and communications through the Internet or e-mail provided through city computer resources. Communications made through the city's computer resources and equipment is not confidential.
- B. As provided by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act (18 USC Chapter 119), the city, as a provider of computer resources, is allowed to intercept, disclose, or use a user's communications in the normal course of business while engaged in any activity which involves the protection of rights or property of the city.
- C. A user expressly consents to having all computers use monitored. If such monitoring reveals possible evidence of criminal activity, the city may provide that evidence to law enforcement officials without notice to the user.
- D. A user's e-mail, electronic communications, and other data that is any way tied to the city's computer resources are company-owned resources of the city of Burleson.
- E. All users should understand that the city is unable to guarantee the protection of electronic files, data, or e-mails from unauthorized or inappropriate use, and that the city expressly disclaims any representations or guarantees the integrity or confidentiality of any such files, data, or communications are or will be maintained.
- F. A user required to use a unique password to protect access to the city's computer resources shall not constitute or be deemed an implied right to privacy or confidentiality.
- G. A user of the city's computer systems should be aware that computer information may be subject to review or disclosure in accordance with, but not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Response to a public records request, administrative, or judicial order, or request

for discovery in the course of litigation.

2. Audits and administrative review of computer use for security purpose or in regard to policy or legal compliance concern.
3. Repair, maintenance, or upgrade of computer system and related equipment.
4. Investigation of improper or illegal use of resources where there is reasonable suspicion to believe there is use for unauthorized or personal financial gain; threatening, harassing or illegal e-mail or communications; use which interferes or threatens to interfere with city operations; copyright, trademark, or other intellectual property violations; unlawful activity or criminal acts; or other use/conduct prohibited in this Policy.
5. Suspected use/conduct that is prohibited in this Policy.
6. Any reason that is necessary or appropriate to protect the reasonable interests of the city and other users of the computer system.

16.10 Responsibilities:

A. Management

1. Directors, division heads, elected officials, and any other management and supervisory personnel who oversee employees or volunteers who have Internet access shall be responsible for implementing this Policy.
2. Directors, division heads, and/or I.T. are empowered to deny, limit, prohibit, and regulate internet and e-mail access if they determine that the user's activity adversely affects the conduct of the city's business and/or the user's or other employees' productivity, or otherwise interferes in carrying out the department's or city's mission.
3. Each supervisor should contact I.T. to report any suspected misuse of computer resources.

B. Users

1. Users of the city's computer resources shall be individually liable for implementing this Policy. It is the user's responsibility to read, understand, and implement this Policy. Failure to abide by this Policy may subject the user to disciplinary action up to and including termination.
2. Access to the internet is discretionary with the city. The ability to access the

Internet is not license to access without regard to the priorities set by city management.

3. Any user who becomes aware of misuse of the city's computer resources, including the internet and e-mail systems, must promptly contact their supervisor and report the misuse.
4. The user is encouraged to send messages to the sender of a non-business message that violates this policy, requesting them to cease. Information Services can assist with this activity.
5. A user must comply with requests made by I.T. in relation to the implementation and enforcement of this Policy.
6. A user is responsible for all usage on their computer account. A user must maintain the secrecy of their password(s).
7. When communicating with others using the city's computer system, the user's communications should reflect high ethical standards, mutual respect and civility.

Deleted: his/her

C. Information Technology

1. I.T. is responsible for receiving and investigating any complaints and/or alleged violations of this policy. Legal counsel and other management personnel may be involved.
2. I.T. reserves the right to audit, monitor, retrieve, and/or distribute communications or information obtained related to the user's use of the city's computer resources as necessary to comply with external investigations, internal compliance audits, or other reason as allowed under this policy.
3. All activities of a business nature dealing with the internet or world wide web (WWW) shall be coordinated through and approved by the Information Technology (I.T.) department prior to being performed.
4. I.T. will establish the necessary rules, policies, and procedures to enforce this policy.
5. I.T. will notify public providers, or other network entities, if a non-city user sends inappropriate communications to a city user.

Deleted: 2022

16.11 Consequences of Violating This Policy:

- A. Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment or removal from office or duty.
- B. Violating this policy may result in the withdrawal or restriction of all or a part of the user's computer privileges.
- C. Violating this policy may result in a violation of state, federal, or local laws and may be referred to the appropriate law enforcement agency for investigation and prosecution under applicable criminal provisions and may also subject the user to civil liability.

16.12 Procedures:

- A. Any city employee requesting internet access or internet email will be required to complete the *Internet Access and Justification – Form IT-1*. The employee shall be required to sign the form stating they have reviewed, understands, and will comply with the city's policies on internet/WWW and/or internet email access and usage. The employee shall then forward the completed request to their director. After review and if approved, the director will then forward the form to the applicable member of city management (for internet access) for final approval.
- B. Upon receipt of an approved *Internet Access and Justification* form, I.T. will provide the employee with the necessary hardware and software to access the internet and WWW.
- C. All departments requesting home page or website creation or development shall forward a completed *Request for Internet Services – Form IT-2* to I.T. All requests must be approved by the director prior to being sent to I.T. The content of all home pages and other website materials is subject to city guidelines. The city's communications director will be involved as required.
- D. All departments shall be charged for all fees associated with their city-owned dial-up internet accounts for use when traveling or conducting city business outside city offices.
- E. When an employee leaves the city, the director shall notify I.T. immediately, at which point internet access will either be terminated or transferred.
- F. Departments that do not have internet access may utilize the Information Technology department to obtain information from the internet at any time.
- G. Existing internet users are required to sign Form IT-3.

Deleted: he/she has

Deleted: 2022

16.13 Training:

Any authorized internet user needing training on the city's approved WWW browser or for home page development will contact I.T. via the *Request for Internet Services – Form IT-2* to arrange for a training session.

16.14 Home Page:

- A. All requests to develop a new home page or substantially modify portions of an official city home page (or other website materials) shall be approved by the director, the applicable City Manager and forwarded to the communications director. A copy of the request will be forwarded to the I.T. director. All such requests should be submitted via the *Request for Internet Services – Form IT-2*.
- B. All departmental home pages and other website content that is approved for individual department websites, separate from the city's official home page, will be maintained solely by a designated departmental webmaster.
- C. Each departmental internet contact person will be responsible for ensuring information provided is current and accurate.
- D. The I.T. web design technician shall provide city management with monthly reports on website activity.
- E. All city-related home pages, including department websites, must reside on the city's home page. All system changes shall be performed by the information technology department.
- F. All home pages that are maintained by a designated departmental webmaster must be coordinated with the Information Technology webmaster. Failure to do so will result in removal of departmental webmaster duties.
- G. All website materials shall be verified by the communications director to be free of materials that may constitute a copyright, trademark or other intellectual property infringement.

16.15 Information Technology Forms Used:

- A. Acknowledgement of Receipt and User Agreement Form: IT-3

Chapter 17: Family Medical Leave Act Benefits (FMLA or FML); revised (02/23/09) (12/31/15) (11/01/16) (01/01/19) (10/01/22)(10/01/23)

This policy is a guideline for administration of federally mandated benefits through the Family Medical Leave Act. No part of this policy is intended to contradict the Federal act. If at any point (due to legislative changes or errors in this guideline language) Burleson's protocol conflicts with Federal law, Federal law will prevail.

- (a) Federal law. Family Medical Leave (FML) is provided in compliance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (as amended 2008). When questions arise concerning FML that are not answered in this section, the department director or director of human resources should refer to federal regulations, 29 C.F.R. Part 825, for additional guidance. These regulations are controlling in any matter on which this policy is silent.
- (b) Eligibility. An employee is eligible for FML if the employee has been employed by the city:
 - (1) for at least 12 months; and
 - (2) has worked at least 1,250 hours during the previous 12-month period.
The 12-month period an employee must have been employed with the City to be eligible for FMLA leave need not be consecutive months. However, prior service which occurred more than seven years prior to the request for leave will not be considered in determining whether the employee worked for the City for at least 12 months.
- (c) Expiration of entitlement to leave. Entitlement to FML leave for the birth or placement of a child expires at the end of the 12-month period beginning on the date of the birth or placement.
- (d) Leave taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule.
 - (1) Although the City is not required to allow an intermittent or reduced schedule leave for the birth or placement of a child, the Department Director may approve such an arrangement if conducive to business needs.
 - (2) Other forms of medically necessary leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule according to federal regulations.
- (e) Entitlement and reasons for leave-Medical. An employee who is eligible for FML is entitled to take a total of 480 (672 Fire shift personnel) work hours of leave during a 12-month period, measured on a rolling 12-months basis, for one or more of the following reasons:
 - (1) the birth of a child of the employee, in order to care for the child;
 - (2) the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care;
 - (3) to care for the spouse, child, or parent of the employee, if the spouse, child, or parent has a serious health condition; or

Deleted: leave

Deleted: 2022

- (4) a serious health condition, as documented by an approved licensed healthcare provider, that makes the employee unable to perform the functions of the employee's position.

(f) Entitlement and reasons for leave – Military status:

- (1) Military Personnel: Those called for deployment and the serviceperson's family will be granted family medical leave in keeping with the National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) and the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) which together govern the regulations related to FML for military purposes.
- (2) Military Caregiver Leave: an eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin of a covered Servicemember who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is on out-patient status, or is on the temporary disabled list for injury or illness is entitled to up to 26 weeks of leave in a single twelve-month period to care for the Servicemember.
- (3) Military Exigency Leave: Up to 12 weeks (480 hours or 720 for Fire shift personnel) of exigency leave may be granted to an eligible employee whose spouse, son, daughter, or parent is on active duty, or has been notified of an impending call to active duty status in support of a contingency operation.
- (4) Qualifying exigency leave includes but is not limited to:
 - (A) Short notice deployment – seven or fewer days' notice of deployment.
 - (B) Military events and related activities – official ceremonies
 - (C) Childcare and school activities – arrange alternative childcare/meet with teachers;
 - (D) Financial and legal arrangements – powers of attorney/banking authority.
 - (E) Counseling-provided need arises from call to active duty;
 - (F) Rest and recuperation – up to five days to spend time with Servicemember.
 - (G) Post deployment activities – arrival ceremonies and similar activities.
 - (H) Additional activities – to address other events which arise out of active duty.

(g) Calculation period.

- (1) Medical Leave (All Employees Except Fire Personnel Assigned to an ABC Shift): The 12-month period during which an employee is eligible for 480 work hours of leave, will be - a "rolling" 12-month period measured backward from the date of any FML leave usage.

(2) Medical Leave (Fire Employees Assigned to an ABC Shift): The 12-month period during which an employee assigned to an A, B, or C shift schedule in the Fire Service is eligible for 672 work hours of leave, will be a “rolling” 12-month period measured backward from the date of any FML leave usage.

(3) Military Caregiver Leave: An eligible employee is entitled to a combined total of 26 workweeks (1040 hours) of leave for any FMLA qualifying reason during a single 12 month period. However, the employee is not entitled to more than 480 (672 for Fire shift personnel) hours for a traditional family medical leave, even if less than 14 weeks (560 hours) are taken to care for a covered Servicemember. The calculation begins on the first day leave is taken.

(4) Exigency Leave: Eligible employees may take up to 12 weeks (480 hours) of leave because of any qualifying exigency arising from a call to active duty of the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent, or has been notified of an impending call to active duty status, in support of a contingency operation. The calculation begins on the first day leave is taken.

(h) Effect of workers compensation leave. FML shall run concurrently with leave taken by an employee as workers compensation leave, if the injury meets the criteria for a serious health condition.

(i) Effect of workers compensation leave; Fire Work Shift Switching. The City of Burleson’s Fire Department policy related to allowing employees to switch shifts does not affect eligibility or calculation of time away for a qualifying FML purpose. Management of the Fire Department will make the usual and customary notification of absence (regardless of switching) so that timely Federal Family Medical Leave regulations are followed regarding notice and calculation of leave time.

(j) Use of paid benefit hours accrued. An employee who takes FML must substitute and exhaust all accrued vacation, sick and compensatory leave as part of the 480 work hours (672 hours for Fire shift personnel) of FML, before beginning leave without pay status. [In the event of an approved Short-Term Disability or Worker’s Compensation, employees will only be required to use at least the equivalent amount of leave to compensate the portion of unpaid, base compensation. For example, if Short-Term Disability compensates 60% base wages, employees are required to use leave hours equivalent to 40% base wages. Employees may use up to the maximum amount of leave up to their normal work schedule.](#)

(k) Duties of employees.

(1) When the necessity for FML under Subsection (c)(1) or (c)(2) is foreseeable because of an expected birth or placement, the employee shall provide the

Deleted: ¶
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", First line: 0"

Deleted: 2022

director of human resources with notice of the employee's intention to take FMLA leave, not less than 30 days before the date the leave is to begin. If the date of the birth or placement requires leave to begin in less than 30 days, the employee shall provide notice as soon as practical.

- (2) When the necessity for FMLA leave is foreseeable because of planned medical treatment or qualifying exigency arising from active duty or call to active duty, the employee:
 - (A) shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the city, subject to the approval of the health care provider; and
 - (B) shall provide the employee's department director with not less than 30 days' notice, before the date the leave is to begin. However, if the date of the treatment or qualifying exigency requires leave to begin in less than 30 days, the employee shall provide the notice as soon as practical.
- (3) When an employee takes paid or unpaid leave for a reason that qualifies for FMLA leave, the employee shall include in the notice or request given to the department director a description of the reason for the leave.
- (4) An employee giving notice for or requesting paid or unpaid leave does not need to expressly mention the FMLA. If the employee states a reason that qualifies for FML, the employee has met the obligation of giving notice.
- (5) In the absence of unusual circumstances, nothing herein excuses an employee from complying with the requirement to notify their supervisor of an absence as required.

Deleted: his/her

(l) City's notice to employee.

- (1) Upon receipt of an employee's notice requesting FML, the department director shall notify the director of human resources (or their designee):
- (2) Within five business days of receipt of notice from an employee requesting paid or unpaid leave, the director of human resources, or designee, shall notify the employee of the employee's eligibility to take FML and the employee's rights and responsibilities for taking FML. This written information must be provided to the employee in a language in which the employee is literate. Leave taken before the date of the director of human resources' notice may be counted against an employee's FMLA entitlement hours.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: 2022

- (3) Within five business days of receipt of enough information to determine whether the leave is being taken for an FMLA-qualifying reason (e.g. after receiving certification) the City must notify the employee whether the leave will be designated and counted as FML. For unusual circumstances involving notice and designation of FML, the Human Resources Director should refer to 29 C.F.R., Part 825.
- (m) Spouses employed by the city. If spouses are both employed by the city, the combined number of hours of FML to which both are entitled is limited to:
- (1) 480 work hours (672 hours for Fire shift personnel) during any 12-month period for the birth (or placement) of a child or the care of a child or parent with a serious health condition (employees are not qualified to use FML for the care of parent in-laws); or
 - (2) 1040 work hours during a single 12-month period to care for an injured or ill Servicemember.
- (n) Certification – Medical FML. The Director of Human Resources may require, by giving a written request to an employee, that FML be supported by a certification issued by the health care provider of the employee or the child, spouse, or parent of the employee. A certification must be furnished in a timely manner when requested.
- (1) FMLA – medical certification must state:
 - the date on which the serious health condition commenced;
 - the probable duration of the condition;
 - the appropriate medical facts within the knowledge of the health care provider regarding the condition;
 - when leave is requested due to the serious health condition of the employee’s child, spouse or parent, a statement that the eligible employee is needed to care for the child, spouse, or parent and an estimate of the amount of time that the employee is needed to care for the child, spouse, or parent.
 - (2) In the case of certification for intermittent leave, or leave on a reduced leave schedule, a statement of the medical necessity for the intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule, and the expected duration of the intermittent leave or reduced leave schedule is required.
 - (3) If the City determines that a certification is incomplete or insufficient, the City will provide the employee with seven calendar days to cure any deficiency. If the deficiency is not cured, the City has the right to either deny FMLA leave or contact the health care provider for purposes of clarification and authentication of the medical certification. Any contact with a health care

provider will be made only by a health care provider, the Director of Human Resources, or the City Manager, and when necessary, upon receipt of a HIPAA authorization provided by the employee. If an employee refused to provide a necessary HIPAA authorization and does not otherwise clarify the certification, the City may deny FML leave.

- (4) If the second opinion differs from the opinion in the original certification provided, the city may require, at the expense of the city, that the employee obtain the opinion of a third health care provider designated or approved jointly by the city and the employee concerning the need for leave. The opinion of the third health care provider is final and binding on the city and the employee.

(n) Certification-FML-Servicemember Care:

- (1) the eligible employee is required to provide certification of the need for leave to be provided by the Servicemember's health care provider. The Department of Labor form WH-385 may be used.
- (2) invitational travel orders issued by the military branch to join an injured or ill Servicemember at his or her bedside may be used in lieu of form WH-385.

(o) Certification – Exigency Leave:

- (1) Employees are required to provide certification of the need for leave. The Department of Labor form WH-384 may be used for this purpose.

- (p) Group Health/Dental/Life Insurance Premiums: During approved FML, the city will continue to provide group health, dental and life insurance on the same terms and conditions as provided other employees. The employee must pay for the employee's share of the dependent health, dental and life insurance premiums during the employee's absence. If the employee's payment of health benefits premium is more than thirty (30) calendar days late, the obligation for the city to maintain the related insurance ceases. If the employee cannot financially afford the premiums due to unpaid leave status, the employee is required to make arrangements with the Human Resources Director (or her designee) for payment of premiums. Such arrangements will be placed in writing, and should an employee fail to return from leave and resign from employment voluntarily, the employee is still responsible for the financial arrangements. In addition, in the event an employee does not return from leave and the inability to return is within the employee's control, the employee will be responsible to repay the City for the City's share of premiums beginning from the first date of the leave.

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: he/she

Deleted: his/her

Deleted: he/she is

Deleted: 2022

(q) Delay or denial of FMLA benefits.

- (1) The city may delay the taking of FML under the following circumstances:
 - (A) if an employee fails to give timely advance notice when the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, FML may be delayed until 30 days after the date the employee provides notice to the city of the need for FMLA leave;
 - (B) if an employee fails to provide in a timely manner a requested medical certification to substantiate the need for FML, fails to provide clarification, or cooperate in the City's efforts to seek clarification, the continuation of FML leave may be delayed or denied.
 - (C) An employee makes it known prior to or during the course of the leave, they do not intend on returning from FML or resigns during the course of approved FML.
- (2) If an employee fails to provide a requested fitness-for-duty certification to return to work, which addresses the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the employee's job, the city may delay restoration until the employee submits the certificate.
- (3) If the employment relationship terminates, an employee's rights to continued leave, and restoration cease under FML.
- (4) If an employee fraudulently obtains FML leave, the city may deny job restoration.

(r) Definitions:

- (1) Qualified employee: one who has been employed at least 12 months and who has worked at least 1250 hours during the 12 months. The 12-month period may include time previously worked for the City so long as the time worked was no more than seven years back.
- (2) Rolling 12-month period: each time an employee takes FMLA leave, the remaining leave entitlement is the balance of the 12 weeks which has not been used during the immediately preceding 12 months. As the rolling year moves forward, available hours will be gained if they were used more than a year prior due to the look back period change.

Related Forms:

Federal Form WH-381-Eligibility Notice to Employee Under FMLA
Federal Form WH-382-Designation Notice Under FMLA
Federal Form WH-384- Military Exigency Leave
Federal Form WH-385-Military Care of Servicemember

Chapter 18: American With Disabilities Act Grievance Process Via Risk Management (for citizens) (12-1-15)

This Grievance Procedure is established to meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"). It may be used by anyone who wishes to file a complaint alleging discrimination on the basis of disability in the provision of services, activities, programs, or benefits by the City of Burleson. The City of Burleson's Personnel Policy governs employment-related complaints of disability discrimination.

The complaint should be in writing and contain information about the alleged discrimination such as name, address, phone number of complainant and location, date, and description of the problem. Alternative means of filing complaints, such as personal interviews or a tape recording of the complaint, will be made available for persons with disabilities upon request.

The complaint should be submitted by the grievant and/or the grievant's designee as soon as possible but no later than 60 calendar days after the alleged violation to:

Deleted: his/her

Matt Ribitzki
ADA Coordinator and Deputy City Attorney
141 West Renfro
Burleson, TX 76028
Phone: 817-426-9664
Email: mribitzki@burlesontx.com

Within 15 calendar days after receipt of the complaint, Matt Ribitzki or his designee will meet with the complainant to discuss the complaint and the possible resolutions. Within 15 calendar days of the meeting, Matt Ribitzki or his designee will respond in writing, and where appropriate, in a format accessible to the complainant, such as large print, Braille, or audio tape. The response will explain the position of the City of Burleson and offer options for substantive resolution of the complaint.

If the response by Matt Ribitzki or his designee does not satisfactorily resolve the issue, the complainant and/or designee may appeal the decision within 15 calendar days after receipt of the response to the City Manager or his designee.

Deleted: his/her

Within 15 calendar days after receipt of the appeal, the City Manager or his designee will meet with the complainant to discuss the complaint and possible resolutions. Within 15 calendar days after the meeting, the City Manager or his designee will respond in writing, and, where appropriate, in a format accessible to the complainant, with a final resolution of the complaint.

All written complaints received by Matt Ribitzki or his designee, appeals to the City Manager or his designee, and responses from these two offices will be retained by the City of Burleson for at least three years.

Deleted: 2022

**City of Burleson - Human Resources
Policy Manual - Glossary**

AFFINITY WITHIN THE SECOND DEGREE (RELATED TO NEPOTISM): includes an employee's spouse, stepparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, spouse's grandparents, spouse's grandchildren, brother-in law, sister-in-law, son-in-law and daughter-in-law.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES: alcohol, or any liquid containing more than one-half of one percent of alcohol-by-volume that is capable of use for beverage purposes alone or when diluted.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990: Title 42 U.S.C. '12101, et seq., as amended.

APPLICANT: a person who has completed a written application form and provided any clarification information requested.

BENEFIT: an employer-sponsored program that includes, but is not limited to, holidays, vacation leave, sick leave, and health and life insurance, but does not include salary, service credit, or seniority.

CALL BACK: the unscheduled return to work outside of normal hours, on a holiday or day off at the request of a supervisor. It does not include overtime or holiday work scheduled in advance.

CHARTER: the Home Rule Charter of the City of Burleson.

CHILD: a biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis, who is: under 18 years of age; or 18 years of age or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability.

CITY: the City of Burleson, Texas.

CITY MANAGER: the City Manager of the city or the City Manager's designee.

COMPLAINT: A "**complaint**" is an allegation that an employee's nonspecific employment conditions have been adversely affected. Examples include complaints about work schedule, hours of work, procedures, daily operations, department specific rules, performance evaluations, general treatment or disagreements among employees.

CONSANGUINITY WITHIN THE THIRD DEGREE (related to nepotism): includes an employee's great grandparents, grandparents, parents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brother, sister, nieces, nephews, half-nieces, half-nephews, and aunts and uncles who are sister/brother of a parent of the individual.

DEMOTION: the movement of an employee to a different classification having a lower maximum rate of pay.

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: an employee who is designated as a department director and is responsible for the administration of one or more city departments or the department director's designee.

DISMISSAL: involuntary termination of employment with the city.

DRUG PARAPHERNALIA: equipment, products, or materials, as defined in Chapters 481, 484 or 485 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, that may be used to facilitate the use of controlled substances or inhalants.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TEST: the entire process of testing an individual for the presence of illegal drugs or alcoholic beverages, beginning with the collection of a specimen of bodily fluids, and continuing through the conclusion of laboratory testing of the specimen or administration of a breath test.

EMPLOYEE: a person employed and paid a salary by the city and includes the following categories, but does not include an independent contractor, city board or commission member, or city council member:

EXEMPT EMPLOYEE: an employee who performs an executive, administrative, professional, [computer, or other exempt from overtime](#) function as defined in the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Deleted: or
Deleted:

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT: Title 29 U.S.C. '201, et seq., as amended.

FMLA or FML: [Family Medical Leave Act or Family Medical Leave; both acronyms are interchangeable.](#)

FRAUD: "An intentional perversion of truth for the purpose of inducing another in reliance upon it to part with some valuable thing belonging to him or to surrender a legal right; a false representation of a matter of fact, whether by words or by conduct, by false or misleading allegations or by concealment of that which should have been disclosed, which deceives and is intended to deceive another so that he shall act upon it to his legal injury. Any kind of artifice employed by one person to deceive another. A generic term, embracing all the multifarious means which human ingenuity can devise, and which are resorted to by one individual to get advantage of another by false suggestions or by suppression of truth, and includes all surprise, trick, cunning, dissembling, and any unfair way by which another is cheated." – Black's Legal Dictionary

Deleted: 2022

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE: a person employed by the city to work at least 40 hours a week. Only under the ACA for health benefits, it is a person that works at least 1560 hours per year (30 hours a week) when hours are seasonal or variable.

Deleted: 4

GRIEVANCE: A "**grievance**" is an allegation that rights or benefits specifically provided by law, policy, personnel rule, or employer action (such as overtime pay, fringe benefits, pay rate, protected employment rights) has been denied or misapplied.

HEALTH CARE PROVIDER:

- (1) a doctor of medicine or osteopathy who is authorized to practice medicine or surgery by the state in which the doctor practices;
- (2) podiatrists, dentists, clinical psychologists, optometrists, and chiropractors (limited to treatment consisting of manual manipulation of the spine to correct a subluxation as demonstrated by X-ray to exist) authorized to practice in the state and performing within the scope of their practice;
- (3) Nurse practitioners, nurse-mid-wives, and clinical social workers who are authorized to practice under state law and who are performing within the scope of their practice;
- (4) Christian Science practitioners listed with the First Church of Christ, Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts; and
- (5) any health care provider from whom the city or the city's group health plan will accept certification of the existence of a serious health condition to substantiate a claim for benefits.

ILLEGAL DRUGS: controlled substances, as defined in Chapter 481 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, and inhalants, as defined in Chapters 484 and 485 of the Texas Health and Safety Code.

IMMEDIATE FAMILY: the employee's brother, sister, mother, father, grandchildren, grandparents, child, stepparents, spouse and the spouse's immediate family.

IMPAIRED or IMPAIRMENT: the inability of an employee to perform duties of the employee's position safely and competently due to use of alcohol, illegal drugs, prescription drugs or over-the-counter drugs.

INTERMITTENT LEAVE (related to FMLA or FML): leave taken in separate blocks of time due to a single qualifying reason.

JOB: (see POSITION)

LEGAL GUARDIAN: a person appointed by a court to guard the interests of a child who is a ward.

Deleted: 2022

ON-CALL STATUS: a circumstance in which a department director or supervisor anticipates the need for an employee to report for work at some time other than the employee's regular working hours and in which the employee is expected to respond to a call to work at any time.

PARENT: the biological parent of an employee or an individual who stood in loco parentis to an employee when the employee was a child.

PART-TIME EMPLOYEE: a person who works fewer than 40 hours a week and is in a position that by city policy and practice is designated as "part-time."

PERSONNEL FILE: a collection of documents maintained by the Human Resources Department regarding an employee's work history with the city.

POSITION: a collection of tasks, duties and responsibilities regularly assigned to and performed by one person. The term "job" is synonymous with "position" when it is performed by one person.

PROMOTION: the change of an employee from a lower classification to a higher classification with a resulting increase in salary.

REASONABLE SUSPICION: a belief based on objective, particular facts sufficient to lead a reasonably prudent person to suspect that an employee may be under the influence of drugs or alcohol so that the employee's ability to perform the functions of the job may be impaired or so the employee's ability to perform the job safely may be reduced.

REDUCED LEAVE SCHEDULE: a leave schedule that reduces the usual number of hours per work period or work day of an employee.

REINSTATEMENT: the rehiring of an employee who was reduced in classification or separated from employment as a result of a position being vacated or abolished through the annual budget process.

REINSTATEMENT LIST: a list of persons who have been reduced or separated from a particular classification as a result of positions being vacated or abolished through the budget process, ranked in the order of seniority.

REPRIMAND: a statement to an employee by a supervisor describing deficiencies in the employee's performance or acts of the employee that are in violation of the standards of conduct and describes corrective measures which the employee should take. A reprimand is formal if it is in writing.

RETIREE: an employee who leaves the employment of the city at a time when the employee is entitled to receive retirement benefits under the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).

SEPARATION: any termination of employment with the city.

SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION: an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves:

- (1) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or
- (2) continuing treatment by a health care provider, including one or more of the following:
 - (A) a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days that requires:
 - treatment two or more times by a health care provider or by a provider of health care services under the orders of a health care provider; or
 - treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care provider;
 - (B) any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care even if no treatment is received during the absence;
 - (C) any period of incapacity or treatment for an incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition even if no treatment is received during the absence;
 - (D) a period of incapacity which is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may not be effective;
 - (E) any period of absence to receive multiple treatments by a health care provider or by a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by, a health care provider.

SMOKING: the combustion of any cigar, cigarette, pipe, or similar article, using any form of tobacco or other combustible substance in any form

SPOUSE: a husband or wife as defined or recognized under state law for purposes of marriage, including common law marriage.

STAND-BY: an employee who is assigned to be available during off hours to respond to emergencies.

SUPERVISOR: an employee having direct authority over other employees; such authority can include assignment of job duties, performance counseling and evaluation and disciplinary action.

SUSPENSION: an involuntary absence with or without pay imposed by a director for disciplinary purposes.

SWORN EMPLOYEE: an employee of the police department who is certified by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education or an employee of the fire

department who is certified by the Texas Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and Education.

TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE: a person

- (A) whose employment is scheduled to last less than six months;
- (B) who holds a seasonal position, even though the employment may last more than six months; or
- (C) in a position which, by city policy and practice, is intended to give introductory work experience to a person preparing for entry into the work force.

TERMINATION: the end of employment with the city.

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (TMRS): the retirement system established under the Texas Municipal Retirement System Act, Title 8, Subchapter G, Texas Government Code.

TOBACCO PRODUCT: a cigarette, cheroot, stogie, cigar, snuff, smoking tobacco, chewing tobacco and any article or product made of tobacco substitute.

TRANSFER: a change from one position to another in which departmental or classification lines, or both, may be crossed, but which does not result in either promotion or demotion.

UNDULY DISRUPTIVE: to grant an employee leave would impose an unreasonable burden on the city's ability to provide services of acceptable quality and quantity for the public during the time requested. Inconvenience is insufficient as a basis for determining that leave would be unduly disruptive.

WORK DAY: one shift during which a department is open for business or for which an employee is scheduled to work.

WORKING HOURS: the time during which an employee is on duty, including regular time, overtime, and emergency duty.

WORK PERIOD: a regularly recurring designated period of work which is used in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act to determine when a nonexempt employee is entitled to overtime compensation.

WORK WEEK: the number of hours an employee is regularly scheduled to work during a seven-day work period.